# **AGREEMENT**

# Between the



# **Board of Directors**

and the

**Membership** 

of the



# **Unified Collective Bargaining Agreements**

September 1, 2014 - August 31, 2019

# **TACOMA SCHOOL DISTRICT #10**

# **BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

Kurt Miller, President
Scott Heinze, Vice President
Karen Vialle
Catherine Ushka
Debbie Winskill

# **SUPERINTENDENT**

Carla J. Santorno

Tacoma School District No. 10 P.O. Box 1357 Tacoma, WA 98401-1357 (253) 571-1000

# TACOMA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

## **BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

Angela Morton, President
Mark Craypo, Vice President
Veronica Munyan, Treasurer
Michelle Morris, Secretary
Tina Taylor, Stadium Zone Representative
Crystal Hartman, Lincoln Zone Representative
John Kingery, Foss Zone Representative
Sandra Heffernan, Mt. Tahoma Zone Representative
Deborah Sterbick, Wilson Zone Representative
Miles Fiala, High School at Large Representative
Lisa Howard, OP/PT Representative
Jacqueline Canley, Minority at Large Representative

Tacoma Education Association 3049 S 36th St., Suite 300 Tacoma, WA 98409 (253) 565-4411

# **Table of Contents**

PREAMBLE	. 1
ARTICLE I - CONTRACT IMPLEMENTATION	. 1
Section 1 - Definitions	. 1
Section 2 – Recognition	. 1
Section 3 – Agreement Duration and Reopeners	. 2
Section 4 – Status of the Contract	. 2
Section 5 – Conformity to Law	. 2
Section 6 – Rights of the Board	. 3
Section 7 – Distribution of the Contract	. 3
Section 8 – Bargaining a New Contract	. 3
ARTICLE II – BARGAINING UNIT PRIVILEGES	. 4
Section 9 – Association Leaves	. 4
Section 10 – Dues Deductions	. 5
Section 11 – Representation Fee	. 5
Section 12 – Building Use	. 6
Section 13 – Communications	. 6
Section 14 – Delivery Service.	. 6
Section 15 – Labor-Management Meetings	. 6
Section 16 – Collaboration and Innovation	. 7
Section 17 – Site-Centered Decision-Making	. 7
Section 18 – Building Budgets	10
Section 19 – Employee Representation	11
Section 20 – Guidelines for the Pursuit and Acceptance of Grants by School Staff at School Sites	11
ARTICLE III – SALARIES AND BENEFITS	
Section 21 – Salary Guides	
Section 22 – Certificated Years of Experience Eligibility Criteria for Salary Schedule Placement	
Section 23 – Insurance Benefits	21
Section 24 – Extra Pay for Extra Work	22
Section 25 – Travel Allowance	
Section 26 – Compensation for Required Hearings	
Section 27 – Payments and Deductions of Salaries	
Section 28 – Payroll Deductions	24

Section 29 – Tax Sheltered Annuities	25
Section 30 – Compliance Provision	25
Section 31 – Summer School	25
ARTICLE IV – LEAVES	26
Section 32 – General Provisions	26
Section 33 – Leaves with Pay	27
Section 34 – Leaves without Pay	32
ARTICLE V – RIGHTS OF CERTIFICATED SUBSTITUTE EMPLOYEES	35
Section 35 – Salary and Contract Provisions of Substitute Employees	35
ARTICLE VI – INSTRUCTION	39
Section 36 – Academic Freedom	39
Section 37 – Classroom Visitors/Observation	39
Section 38 – Materials Selection.	39
Section 39 – Instructional Materials/Parental Review	40
Section 40 – Grading Practices	41
Section 41 – Ownership of Materials	41
ARTICLE VII – STAFF DEVELOPMENT	41
Section 42 – Professional Development	41
Section 43 – Optional Days	42
Building-based:	42
District-based:	43
Individually-directed:	43
Section 44 – Professional Growth Funds	43
ARTICLE VIII – CONDITIONS OF WORK	44
Section 45 – Calendar-Term of Employment	44
Section 46 – Non-Teaching Work Assignments	45
Section 47 – Professional Work Day Provisions	46
Section 48 – Planning Periods	47
Section 49 – Staff Protection	48
Section 50 – Covering Classes	51
Section 51 – Special Education.	52
Section 52 – Student Discipline/Administrative Responsibility	53
Section 53 – Documentation of Incidents	57
Section 54 – Employee Duties and Responsibilities	57

Section 55 – Physical Facilities	57
Section 56 – School Construction	58
Section 57 – Student Teachers	58
Section 58 – Scheduling, Secondary Schools	58
Section 59 – Job Description	59
ARTICLE IX – CLASS SIZE/STAFFING	59
Section 60 – Regarding Reduction in Staff	59
Section 61 – Elementary Schools (Grades K-5)	59
Section 62 – Middle Schools (Grades 6-8)	60
Section 63 – High Schools (Grades 9-12)	60
Section 64 – General and Overload Provisions	60
Section 65 – Special Education, and ESAs and Learning Specialists	62
Section 66 – Peer Review	65
ARTICLE X – EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	66
Section 67 – Employee Contract	66
Section 68 – Supplemental Contract	67
Section 69 – Teachers on Special Assignment	68
Section 70 – Personnel Files	69
Section 71 – Cause	70
Section 72 – Equitable Treatment	70
Section 73 – Harassment	70
Section 74 – Staff Diversity Plan	71
ARTICLE XI – EVALUATION AND PROBATION	71
Section 75 – Observation and Evaluation Procedures	71
Section 76 – Probation Procedure	75
ARTICLE XII – ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER	76
Section 77 – Terms	76
Section 78 – New School Year Assignments	77
Section 79 – General Procedure for Open Positions	78
Section 80 – Timeline Procedures for Filling Positions	80
Section 81 – Supplemental Conditions:	80
Section 82 – Displacement.	81
Section 83 –Involuntary Transfer	84
Section 84 – School Closures, Changes in School Attendance Boundaries or Grade Level Reorganizations between More than One (1) Site	

Section 85 – Opening/Reopening a New School	86
ARTICLE XIII – LAYOFF AND RECALL	86
Section 86 – Selection of Staffing Categories for Layoff and Recall	86
Section 87 – Staffing Categories for Layoff and Recall	86
Section 88 – Tie Breakers	87
Section 89 – Layoff	88
Section 90 – Recall	88
Section 91 – Involuntary Transfer Following Layoff	89
ARTICLE XIV – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	89
Section 92 – Definition	89
Section 93 – Procedure	89
Section 94 – Supplemental Conditions	92
AGREEMENT	93
MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING	94
MOU Regarding Extended Day Positions	94
MOU Regarding Fingerprinting	95
APPENDICES	96
Appendix I. Further Agreements	96
Appendix II. School-Centered Decision-Making District Team Waiver Request	97
Appendix III. 2014-15 Salary Schedule	99
Appendix IV. Evaluation Documents	106
Appendix V. Employee Personal Property Loss/Damage Claim Form and Instructions	127
Appendix VI. Waiver of Class Size Limits Form, Grades 6-12	129
Appendix VII. Request for Peer Review of Individual Workload Equity Form	130
Appendix VIII. Continuing Contract	131
Appendix IX. Supplemental Contract	132
Appendix X. Discrimination Complaint Form	133
Appendix XI. Four-Year Evaluation Schedule	134
Appendix XII. Self-Report	137
Appendix XIII. Self-Report Scoring Rubric	138
Appendix XIV. Scoring Narrative	139

1 2	PREAMBLE
3 4 5 6 7 8	The Board has a statutory obligation to bargain with the Association as the representative of certificated non-supervisory educational employees as the exclusive bargaining representative on wages, hours and terms and conditions of employment. The following articles of agreement hereto constitute an Agreement by and between the Board of Directors of Tacoma School District No. 10, hereinafter called the "Board," and the Tacoma Education Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association."
9	
10	The parties hereto agree as follows:
11	
12 13	ARTICLE I - CONTRACT IMPLEMENTATION
14 15	Section 1 - Definitions
16 17	Association - the Tacoma Education Association (TEA).
18 19 20	<b>Board</b> - the Board of Directors of Tacoma School District No. 10 or its authorized representatives.
21	<b>District</b> - Tacoma School District No. 10 or authorized representatives.
22 23	Employee - (certificated) – certificated non-supervisory educational employee.
24 25 26 27	<b>Seniority</b> - an employee's total certificated public school district experience in Washington State.
28 29 30	Superintendent - Superintendent of Schools, Tacoma School District No. 10.
31	Section 2 – Recognition
32 33 34 35 36	The Board recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining representative of all full-time and regular part-time non-supervisory certificated employees of the District, excluding the Superintendent, other chief administrators of the District, confidential employees, supervisors, principals and assistant principals.

- 1 Duties presently performed by bargaining unit members shall not be assigned to any other
- 2 bargaining unit, outside agencies, or individuals without providing the Association notice of the
- 3 proposed assignment and an opportunity to bargain its impact.
- 4 Nothing in this language shall preclude the occasional employment of consultants or contractors
- 5 as historically utilized by the District or prohibit work presently performed by other bargaining
- 6
- 7 Non-certificated personnel will not be used to replace teachers.

# **Section 3 – Agreement Duration and Reopeners**

10

11 **Duration**: The Agreement and each of its provisions is binding and effective from September 12 1, 2014 to August 31, 2019.

13 14

15

16

**Financial Reopeners:** In the event that there is a significant loss of revenue to the District resulting from a levy failure, legislative action, regulatory or agency action, or passage of an initiative or referendum, the parties shall reopen applicable sections of the Agreement within thirty (30) calendar days.

17 18

#### **Reopeners:**

- 19 20 A. Either party may reopen any provision of the Agreement exclusive of Section 21 (A),
  - Salary Guides, with written notice by March 1st annually provided that the Labor-Management Committee process as specified in Section 15, Labor-Management
- 23 Meetings, has determined that contract amendments are in the best interests of the 24 District and the Association.

25 26

21

22

B. In addition, the parties may open applicable sections of the Agreement to implement task force and committee recommendations as provided for in the Agreement.

27 28 29

C. Either party may reopen the Agreement sixty (60) days prior to August 31 of the current contract year for the purpose of negotiating changes to the salary schedule.

30 31

# Section 4 – Status of the Contract

32 33 34

This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, policies, resolutions or practices of the District which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.

35 36

**Section 5 – Conformity to Law** 

- 39 If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or
- 40 group of employees should be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not
- 41 be deemed valid except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications
- 42 shall continue in full force and effect.

# Section 6 – Rights of the Board

The Board retains and reserves all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Washington and/or the United States for the management and operation of the District, subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

### **Section 7 – Distribution of the Contract**

Copies of this Agreement shall be <u>posted online</u> by the District within <u>thirty (30) working</u> days after ratification by the Board and the Association and executed by the authorized representatives thereto. <u>One printed copy</u> of this Agreement will be provided to <u>each</u> building for TEA <u>member</u> use.

# **Section 8 – Bargaining a New Contract**

A. Bargaining will be conducted at times and places mutually agreeable to the negotiators named by each party. The first (1st) meeting shall be held within ten (10) school days after March 1.

B. During negotiations the Board and the Association will present data, exchange points of view, and make proposals and counter proposals. The negotiators for each party shall have the authority to make tentative agreements. However, final agreement shall be contingent upon favorable ratification by the Board and the Association.

C. Bargaining sessions should be held at least twice a week subsequent to the first (1st) meeting unless there is mutual agreement to the contrary. Negotiators on the Association team will be released from school without loss of pay when day sessions are scheduled.

D. The District shall furnish the following information prepared by the District in whatever form, format and/or title, after it is prepared, upon request by the Association: budget(s), student teacher ratio report, monthly classification report, monthly and annual financial report(s), computer printout of the budget(s), and staff placement on the salary schedules.

E. Any changes in these procedures shall be made through the process of bargaining as provided herein.

### ARTICLE II – BARGAINING UNIT PRIVILEGES

# **Section 9 – Association Leaves**

**TEA President:** The Board agrees to provide a leave of absence with pay to the President of the TEA during his/her term of office. TEA will reimburse the District a sum equal to the salary, PRS, Optional Days, all benefits, and other compensation of the President.

**TEA Vice-President:** The Board agrees to provide a leave of absence with pay to the Vice-President of the TEA during his/her term of office. TEA will reimburse the District a sum equal to the salary, PRS, Optional Days, all benefits, and other compensation of the Vice-President.

Such leave and reimbursement shall be for full-time or part-time release as determined by TEA. TEA shall provide the District notice of a change in leave of absence for executive officers by June 1 for the subsequent school year.

Upon return from leave, a President or Vice-President will be considered as if actively employed by the Board during the leave and will be placed on the salary schedule at the level which would have been achieved had no absence occurred. Further, upon return from such leave, the President will be given the same consideration for returning to the position of last assignment as if he or she had been on active duty. If the position of last assignment no longer exists, the employee will be assigned in accordance with Article XII, Assignment and Transfer.

# **Association Officers and Representatives:**

1. Up to a total of ninety (90) days of released time per school year with the substitute paid by the District shall be provided to the Association for released time for the Association's officers and representatives. Requests for such leave shall be made to the Superintendent or Superintendent's designee in advance of the leave. In addition, an employee should notify his/her principal/supervisor at the time of the request. The purpose of the leave shall be clearly stated. The leave shall not be granted if the purpose violates Chapter 41.59 RCW. The Association may petition for up to an additional thirty (30) days of Association leave related to the District's Strategic Plan.

2. Once the ninety (90) days as provided above have been used, the District shall, upon request, grant up to ninety (90) days of additional leave provided that the cost of the substitute shall be reimbursed to the District by the Association. Requests for such leave shall be made to the Superintendent or Superintendent's designee in advance of the leave. The purpose of the leave shall be clearly stated. The leave shall not be granted if the purpose violates Chapter 41.59 RCW. No more than thirty (30) employees shall be released at one time.

3. If the District has concerns about the effect of Association leaves on the education process the District and Association will meet and confer regarding such concerns.

4. All requests for such leave must be submitted two (2) weeks prior to the need and/or event. Extenuating circumstances will be discussed between the Association and the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee.

#### **Section 10 – Dues Deductions**

**Authorization:** Upon written authorization, whether for unified membership dues in the Association or equivalent fee, the Board agrees that said sums will be deducted from payrolls and forwarded promptly to the Association. All enrollments and cancellations shall be handled by the appropriate officers of the Association.

**Cancellation:** Cancellation of dues must be received in the finance office directly from the officers of the Association. The District shall provide for automatic reinstatement of deduction for Association dues for employees returning from leave, unless canceled, through written notice by the Association.

**Substitutes:** The Association must notify the Superintendent in writing no later than September 1 annually of the <u>amount of the</u> payroll deduction for substitutes. The District will deduct the amount specified by the Association for dues if authorized in writing by a regular substitute.

# **Section 11 – Representation Fee**

No employee will be required to join the Association; however, those employees who are not Association members but are members of the bargaining unit will have deducted from their salaries a representation fee. The District is authorized to deduct the required amount from each monthly paycheck. The amount of the representation fee will be determined by the Association and communicated to the finance office in writing. The representation fee shall be an amount less than the regular dues for the Association membership in that nonmembers shall be neither required nor allowed to make a political (WEA-PAC) deduction. The representation fee shall be regarded as fair compensation and reimbursement to the Association for fulfilling its legal obligation to represent all members of the bargaining unit. (Reference RCW 41.59.090).

In the event that the representation fee is regarded by an employee as a violation of their right to nonassociation, such bona fide objections will be resolved according to the provisions of RCW 41.59.100, and Chapter 391-95 WAC.

The Association agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the District harmless (suits by the District excepted) against any and all claims, suits, orders, or judgments brought or issued against the District as a result of any action taken or not taken by the District pursuant to proper implementation of this section contingent upon the District's agreement that the Association shall be authorized to defend such suit through an attorney of the Association's own choosing.

# **Section 12 – Building Use**

**School Visits:** The President, Vice-President and a UniServ Director of TEA may visit schools at all reasonable times, or the President and a UniServ Director of TEA may appoint one designated representative to visit in their place; provided, however, that this shall not interfere with, nor interrupt, normal school operations; and provided further that upon arrival at a school the main office is notified.

**Association Meetings:** The Association may use District school buildings and equipment with replacement of consumable supplies for meetings and to transact official business on school property at all reasonable times as long as the meeting shall not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations.

# **Section 13 – Communications**

The Association shall have the sole and exclusive right to communicate with employees represented by the Association through use of employee mailboxes in the building and use of faculty bulletin boards, except as provided by law. In implementing this section the only requirement of the District is to notify each competing organization that the Association has the aforementioned sole and exclusive right.

# **Section 14 – Delivery Service**

The District will provide intra-district delivery service to the Association office consistent with intra-district delivery service supplied to schools and without censorship of content.

# **Section 15 – Labor-Management Meetings**

At least monthly or at the written request of the District or the Association, Labor-Management meetings shall be held to discuss issues of mutual interest to the parties; to resolve concerns regarding the interpretation and implementation of the collective bargaining agreement and to provide an opportunity for the Association to provide feedback to the Superintendent on District operations and direction.

Agreements reached in Labor-Management meetings <u>may not</u> abridge, add to, or subtract from the collective bargaining agreement, <u>unless agreements are made specifically through the memorandum of understanding process</u>, which is subject to mutual agreement by both parties.

The Association may include up to four (4) employee representatives, inclusive of the President of the certificated TEA employee group/designee and UniServ Directors. The Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee(s), and up to four (4) additional members shall represent the District. Other resource personnel shall be available upon request by either party.

In order to assure communication, agendas and minutes for meetings shall be taken and distributed by the parties.

## **Section 16 – Collaboration and Innovation**

As the first state designated Innovation Zone, Tacoma Public Schools and the Tacoma Education Association believe strongly in partnership and innovation as strategies that enhance school performance and student learning. The parties will work together to make improvements to teaching and learning as an essential part of meeting the benchmarks of its strategic plan. In support of these improvements and in the spirit of the partnership element of our District Strategic Plan, specific contractual provisions provide forums for professional conversations which support selection of, decision making around, and implementation of innovations. These include:

• The SCDM section of the contract which delineates a process by which waivers to an existing District policy, regulation, or a portion of the Collective Bargaining Agreement may be sought by specific building in the District.

• The Grants section of the contract, which provides a framework for buildings to seek staff input when in the pursuit of grants which would provide additional resources to support innovative programs for teaching and learning.

• The staff development and staff evaluation processes, which are critical collaborative cornerstones for improving teaching and learning by the entire instructional staff of the District.

The District shall strive to provide students with equitable access to innovative approaches, and shall prioritize access, to the extent possible, for students with the greatest needs. Teachers shall be provided with frequent and easily accessible information so they understand what innovative options exist within the District, the results the innovations are achieving, the types of learners who benefit from the innovations, and how schools can participate.

The parties are committed to partnership and to introducing innovations designed to improve the

# Section 17 – Site-Centered Decision-Making

- 39 SCDM is a joint planning and problem-solving process that responds to diverse educational
- 40 needs. SCDM is a shifting of decision-making from a centralized process to a shared process
- 41 involving certified staff, classified staff, administrators and parents. Students may be included as
- 42 determined at each school site.
- 43 SCDM requires time, commitment and trust. SCDM empowers educational employees and
- increases the involvement of all staff in the educational process. SCDM is a process that
- 45 ultimately improves achievement and instruction.

educational experience of all students.

- 1 SCDM is a process in which those affected by a decision participate, either collectively or
- 2 through a representative of their selection, in making decisions. Each school shall be responsible
- 3 for developing and communicating written procedures which describe their decision-making
- 4 model(s) and shall include how staff, parents and students are involved in the process.

#### **District-Level Facilitation**

- 8 The Superintendent, President of the Tacoma Education Association, and a Superintendent-
- 9 <u>designated member of the School Board serve as "anchors" for the Site-Centered Decision-</u>
- 10 Making process. They shall be responsible for facilitating the process when it runs into
- difficulties and obstacles, and will model and encourage participatory decision-making at all
- levels of the organization.

A committee appointed by TEA/TPS Labor-Management Committee will take on the role of supporting the success of SCDM at school sites. Their role shall include but not be limited to the following:

- 1. Review the needs for SCDM training on a yearly basis.
- 2. Collaboratively develop content of SCDM training.
- 3. Attain resources and other support for those involved in the form of training sessions and facilitated meetings.
- 4. Establish general steps for preparation and training at school sites.

# **Decision-Making Principles/Parameters**

The District and Tacoma Education Association agree to the following parameters and operating principles which shall guide the Site-Centered Decision-Making process at school sites:

1. Before a building's Site-Centered Decision-Making decision is implemented, there must be a consensus of staff (as defined by staff at the site) as well as parent involvement and input for decisions that impact students. Once consensus has been reached as defined by SCDM by-laws, the decision becomes an expected norm for the learning community.

2. If a Site-Centered Decision-Making proposal is contrary to any terms of the collective bargaining agreement, state or federal guidelines or District guidelines, regulations or policies, a waiver from the appropriate body must be obtained.

3. The Site-Centered Decision-Making team will be responsible for overseeing, implementing, and evaluating the school improvement process and plan, building mission statement, common agreements, and initiatives.

4.	The SCDM team should develop by-laws that include the following categories: Article I
	Mission/Purpose, Article II. Membership, Article III. Decision-making Process, Article
	IV. Meetings, Article V. Communication Process, and Article VI. Evaluation Process.
	The by-laws will be kept on file at the building, with a copy provided to the Association.

5. The SCDM team will maintain appropriate records: bylaws, minutes, rosters, agenda, etc.

7 8 9

10

11

- Each site shall conduct an annual self-assessment of its Site-Centered Decision-Making process. The content and format for any such evaluation shall be approved by the District's anchors. Content and format will be reviewed annually by the Labor-Management Committee. All staff
- members and participating parents and students in Site-Centered Decision-Making shall have an opportunity to participate in the assessment which shall include, but not be limited to, the clarity
- of the decision-making process, the effectiveness of communication, the level of staff and parent
- participation and the impact of Site-Centered Decision-Making on school improvement efforts.
- 16 The results of the assessment shall be shared with staff, parents and students who participated in
- 17 Site-Centered Decision-Making, and the appropriate Assistant Superintendent to refine and
- improve the process.

19

#### Limitations

21 22

23

20

The Administration, the School Board and Tacoma Education Association shall not be required nor expected to set aside legal responsibilities or certain traditional dimensions of organizational roles. Such legal responsibilities and organizational roles include the following:

242526

1. The District anchors will accept state and federal laws as applicable.

2728

2. Superintendent of Public Instruction rules.

29 30

3. Tacoma Public Schools Board policies and administrative regulations and guidelines including adopted curriculum and programs.

31 32 33

34

4. The collective bargaining agreements between any of the organized labor groups and the Tacoma Public Schools.

35 36 5. The responsibility, authority and accountability of the principal in the day-to-day management of the schools.

37 38

#### Waivers

- The District anchors will accept requests for waivers from an existing Policy, regulation, or a
- 41 portion of the collective bargaining agreement. These requests will then be referred to the
- 42 appropriate mechanism for action (i.e., take to TEA if issue deals with the Agreement, take to
- 43 Board of Directors if issue deals with Board Policy, etc.). The timelines for submitting

<u>completed</u> waiver requests shall be determined by the support team and shall be communicated to staff annually.

1. Any potential impact on students and parents and their involvement in the development of the waiver proposal shall be clearly documented prior to the submission of the request.

2. It is clearly understood that these approved waivers are not to be considered as a precedent nor shall they be District-wide.

3. The approved waivers are subject to time limits established by the appropriate body.

4. Sites shall be expected to report to the District anchors regarding the implications, successes and failures based on such exceptions/waivers.

5. Any budget implications or potential impacts on other schools and/or programs shall be determined prior to consideration of waiver requests.

# **Participation**

Appendix II).

Each school shall be expected to participate in the Site-Centered Decision-Making process. The decision-making process in each school will be clearly defined, highly participative, team oriented, and parent and student focused. Individuals within schools may choose not to participate. No adverse employment action will be taken against any staff member because of his/her non-participation in the Site-Centered Decision-Making process (waiver request,

# Section 18 – Building Budgets

The building principal will make the monthly <u>financial summary reports</u> available to the Site-Centered Decision-Making Team and each employee.

These reports include:

1. Annual allocation and changes.

2. Source of funds (vocational, special education, etc.)

3. Budget and expenditures to date by category and/or department.

In the development of the annual budget, employees shall submit written requests to the building principal identifying instructional material needs. At the secondary level, departmental requests shall be signed by the department head.

# **Section 19 – Employee Representation**

The parties agree that authentic employee participation on District and building level committees is essential to creating a learning community. Such participation is often accomplished through representation.

Employees who are expected to represent their site colleagues on building level committees should be selected for such representation by their appropriate constituents. The SCDM shall oversee the election or selection of employees who serve as representatives on building committees.

TEA will be notified regarding the formation of any new or existing District committees and will be consulted on the election or selection of employees who are requested to represent their colleagues on District—level committees.

Examples of such committees shall include but not be limited to the following: school leadership committees, building teams, grade level committees, professional development committees, School Improvement Plan (SIP) committees, Site-Centered Decision-Making (SCDM), curriculum committees, and planning committees. Representation might be according to sites, programs, grade levels, or departments.

It shall be understood that an employee so selected or elected to represent employees shall be expected to communicate with employees s/he represents. Accordingly, principals and/or program directors shall provide access to time at staff meetings and other resources needed for adequate representation of employees. SCDM committees will provide time on SCDM agendas as needed.

# Section 20 – Guidelines for the Pursuit and Acceptance of Grants by School Staff at School Sites

A. Purpose and Intent: These guidelines are designed to assist staff at the building level to establish processes for considering, applying for and accepting grants.

1. Not all circumstances can be addressed in advance on issues like these and these guidelines are not intended to be a barrier to applying for grants that will enhance the teaching and learning at individual sites. However, the more closely the guidelines can be followed, the more likely a site will have a positive experience in utilizing grant opportunities.

2. Because it is in the interest of both the TEA and the District for school sites to be successful in properly implementing grants once they are received, it is the belief of the parties that schools should only rarely consider having more than one school-wide grant in place at a time. We recommend that multiple grants be considered only in exceptional circumstances.

#### B. Role of the SCDM:

- Decisions to pursue or accept building-based grants should be made consistent
  with the SCDM processes at the school site. Additionally, any requirements of
  the grant process itself, including staff votes of support must be followed. When
  the SCDM bylaws are not specific regarding participation in the decision-making
  process, at least those employees specifically impacted by the grant under
  consideration must be included in the decision. Records of this process should be
  kept.
- 2. Each SCDM should develop a clear process of communication about grant issues that solicits views from staff and channels information back to staff while the grant is under consideration. This process should account for, as completely as is possible, short time frames for grant applications and application opportunities that arise when staff is not generally available. See the communication recommendations below.
- 3. A written proposed budget should be developed and shared with staff through building communication processes prior to the application being submitted. The budget should address issues like compensation for coordination activities, training participation requirements and mileage. It should also address how materials and other supplies will be acquired.

#### C. Building Administration/Building Oversight:

- 1. It is the legitimate role of the building administrator to monitor and initiate (consistent with SCDM processes at the school site) the entire grant process. If the initiation occurs while the building staff is unavailable for the summer break, the initiation must be done in collaboration with the TEA President or UniServ representative.
- 2. When a building has more than one grant or when a grant provides facilitators or others from outside the District, the various committees and leadership roles already present in the building and those related to the grant(s) should be clearly delineated.
- D. Communication: All involved in this process, building administrators and SCDM members, must make communication a key component in each and every step of this process. The communication must have as its goal the complete sharing of information in a timely manner with all involved in the process and anyone who will be impacted by the decisions. This must include those inside the building and those outside the building who also will be impacted by the decision.
  - 1. Notification Process: Buildings should be sure that the Superintendent's Office and Tacoma Education Association have advance notice of the intent to apply for a grant.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
10
20
21
21
22
23
25
26
27
28
29
30
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 33 33 34 35 36 36 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37
32
33
34
35
36

- 2. If a building plans to expand the application of a grant beyond its specific focus, to teachers outside the focused grade band for instance, the impact of the grant on those additional staff should be included in the information provided to staff.
- 3. Training: The potential training impact of the grant should be described for staff, to the extent it is known in advance, including the number of trainings, anticipated dates (at least general time frames) and the length of trainings, pay rates for trainings, and whether or not the training is optional or required beyond the contract. Required training beyond the contract shall be compensated at the extrapay-for-extra-work rate.
- 4. Duration: The staff must be informed of the duration of the grant and a description of the renewal process, if any. Additionally, staff should be aware of the consequences for the school if not meeting the terms of the grant.
- 5. Impacts: Finally, the staff and administration at the building site should discuss and consider the anticipated impacts of adhering to the grant requirements. For example, staff should discuss the following questions:
  - a. How do we anticipate acceptance of this grant will change the workload in our building?
  - b. Will the grant necessitate any realignment of existing leadership roles and responsibilities?
  - c. Will acceptance of the grant require applying for waivers from the existing contractual language in the TEA/TPS contract?

#### E. Employee Rights:

- 1. Site members not wishing to participate in a grant may voluntarily displace after the decision to accept the grant is made and prior to grant implementation.
- 2. Any open position announcements for buildings with grants will include pertinent grant information, and the estimated obligation of teachers accepted at the building.

1 2	ARTICLE III – SALARIES AND BENEFITS
3 4	Section 21 – Salary Guides
5 6 7 8 9 10	A. Base Salary: The base salary of the salary schedule, while maintaining the current index, shall be \$40,105 (inclusive of Professional Responsibility Stipend) for the 2014-2015 school year, provided, however, any employee on a salary schedule cell who is paid less than the state law requires, now or hereafter amended, will be paid the salary required by said law as per Appendix III, Salary Schedule.
11	<u>2014-2015</u> School Year
12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>State pass-through percentage amount for cost of living increases for educational employees.</li> <li>1.6% applied to the salary schedule (reflected in 2014-15 salary schedule and base rate of pay)</li> <li>One self-directed technology optional day for certificated employees</li> </ul>
18 19 20	<u>2015-2016</u> School Year
21 22 23 24 25 26	<ul> <li>State pass-through percentage amount for cost of living increases for educational employees.</li> <li>2.4% applied to the salary schedule</li> <li>\$750 certificated 25-year longevity stipend, payable at the end of the 25<sup>th</sup> year</li> <li>One self-directed technology optional day for certificated employees</li> </ul>
27	2016-17 School Year
28 29 30 31 32 33 34	<ul> <li>State pass-through percentage amount for cost of living increases for educational employees.</li> <li>2.4% applied to the salary schedule</li> <li>\$750 certificated 25-year longevity stipend, payable at the end of the 25<sup>th</sup> year</li> <li>One self-directed technology optional day for certificated employees</li> </ul>
35	2017-18 School Year
36 37 38 39	<ul> <li>State pass-through percentage amount for cost of living increases for educational employees.</li> <li>0.5% applied to the salary schedule</li> </ul>
40	• \$750 certificated 25-year longevity stipend, payable at the end of the 25 <sup>th</sup> year

#### 1 2018-19 School Year 2 3 State pass-through percentage amount for cost of living increases for educational 4 employees. 5 • 2.5% applied to the salary schedule \$750 certificated 25-year longevity stipend, payable at the end of the 25<sup>th</sup> year 6 7 8 B. Professional Responsibility Stipend: The District will provide a Professional 9 Responsibility Stipend as determined by the employee's placement on the negotiated 10 Professional Responsibility Stipend Schedule, as an incentive to provide the additional services required of all certificated staff members in the Tacoma School District outside 11 12 of the base contract and supplemental work days. Payment for this Professional 13 Responsibility Stipend shall be made in twenty-four (24) equal installments. A part-time 14 employee will receive a pro-rata share of this stipend based on the employee's full-time 15 equivalency (FTE). 16 17 C. The Professional Responsibility Stipend recognizes that employees provide a 18 professionally responsible level of services in, but not limited to, the following areas 19 which are beyond the basic contract: 20 21 1. Attendance at the day before the first student day of the year and at the 22 conference/semester day. 23 2. Preparation of the classroom or work space before, after, and during the school 24 year for quality instruction or support of instruction. 25 3. Conferencing with parents and/or students. 26 4. Preparation for and attendance at reasonable building activities such as open 27 houses, curriculum nights, parent education nights, school and community 28 functions, student orientation and concerts. 29 5. Participation in self-reflection, goal setting and related professional growth

30 31

32

33

34

35

36

- 7. Planning of instruction and curriculum, the evaluation of student work, the
- 37 38 39
- 40 41 42
- 43 44 45
- 1. New Professional signing bonus:

activities.

students.

activities such as workshops, classes, conferences, seminars or research projects.

preparation of student assessments, the preparation of summative progress and

grade reports for timely distribution, participation in a reasonable and equitable

number of IEP and Section 504 meetings, and communicating with parents and

6. Participation in a reasonable and equitable number of grade level, department,

building, job-alike and/or District committees, task forces, processes and

8. Employees shall document the completion of these activities in the District-

designated system. Leave provisions do not apply to PRS days.

D. Incentive Supplemental Contracts: The following incentive supplemental contracts are

provided outside of the base contract and in compliance with applicable state laws:

- <u>a.</u> Newly hired certificated staff will receive a supplemental contract in the amount of \$1,000 in the first year of employment with the District.
- <u>b.</u> In the second year of employment these same individuals will receive a supplemental contract in an amount between \$700 and \$1,000.
- <u>c.</u> The stipend received in the second year will be calculated so that, to the extent possible:
  - i. It will not be less than that received in the first year; and
  - <u>ii.</u> It does not exceed the salary which will be received in the third year of employment with the District as set forth on the salary schedule after the pass through percentage is known and applied to the base and the professional stipend schedule adjusted according to Section 21 (A).
- <u>d.</u> The stipend received in the first year shall be paid on the second pay day in September.
- <u>e.</u> The second year stipend shall be paid on the second January pay day.
- 2. Hard-to-fill position signing bonus: The District may designate certificated positions as "hard-to-fill" on the position postings. As part of its review of postings, the Association may request more information or object to the designation of the position as hard-to-fill. If the position posting is accepted by the Association, the position can then be advertised as having a signing bonus of \$1,000 for each of the first two (2) years employed by the District which will be paid on the second January pay day.
- 3. ESA Hard-to-fill position signing bonus: The District and Association will jointly agree to designate for each school year those ESA categories that are hard to fill. These positions will be advertised as having a signing bonus of \$1,000, which will be paid on the second January pay day.
- 4. ESA National Certification Stipend: When an ESA has achieved national certification in his/her profession, the ESA will receive a stipend equal to the state stipend for National Board for Professional Teaching Standards certification. National Certification for ESA stipend will continue as long as the state continues to fund the National Board Certification Teacher stipend.
- E. Prorating of per diem pay for salary computation shall be based on a work day assumed to be seven and one-half (7.5) hours. The appropriate basis for calculating per diem pay is provided for in the provisions of the Agreement specifically authorizing per diem pay, and is described generally in Section 24 (C) of the Agreement.
- F. Employees who are authorized and agree to teach beyond their contractual work day shall be paid at their individual hourly per diem rate based on the employee's placement on the

combined salary schedule (base + personal responsibility stipend). Such extra work shall be limited to one (1) hour per day and shall not be authorized for more than the contract year in three (3) years for an individual employee. Exceptions may be granted only in the event that no other qualified employee is available. Qualified employees with less than full time contracts shall be offered such extra work prior to full time contracted employees.

1 2

G. When employees are required to work beyond their contract year\_performing substantially the same duties as in the regular school year, they will be compensated at their per diem rate based on their placement on the combined salary schedule (base + personal responsibility stipend).

H. All clock hours and in-service or professional credits that are accepted by the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) (Form S275) as per WAC 181-85-030 will be accepted by the District for the purpose of salary schedule advancement. District employees under contract on or before August 31, 1990, shall be grandfathered. All credits earned prior to September 1, 1989, and currently applied to the salary schedule shall be maintained.

I. An employee with an Extra Pay for Extra Work assignment will be paid in accordance with Section 24, Extra Pay for Extra Work.

J. Certificated part-time time staff assigned to provide Title I services in eligible private schools shall be paid at the authorized hourly pay rate for employees working more than seventy-five (75) days in a school year.

K. Contingent reopener: In the event the Legislature authorizes and funds additional State monies to the District, or reduces State monies to the District for salary increases or decreases (as the case may be) for certificated, non-supervisory employees, the District and Association will reopen this section for negotiations for the purpose of distributing such additional monies or allocating such reductions.

L. For purposes of <u>Reduction in Force</u> (RIF), counselors hired prior to September 1, 1997 <u>will be granted</u> prior related service credit for agency experience. Two (2) years of agency experience equals one (1) year of experience to a maximum of six (6) years on the salary schedule. Employees hired after September 1, 1997 must have their agency experience meet the LEAP guidelines as developed by the state of Washington.

M. One (1) additional year of seniority shall be granted for each year of service thereafter that meets the criteria for advancement on the salary schedule.

# Section 22 – Certificated Years of Experience Eligibility Criteria for Salary Schedule Placement

3 4

Placement on the salary schedule shall be dependent upon verification of credits and experience supplied by the employee no later than December 31st of the school year in which the placement is being sought.

A. Employees hired after September 1, 1999 shall be placed on the Tacoma School District No. 10 salary schedule as provided in this Subsection.

B. The recognition of years of service and applicable degrees and credits earned shall be consistent with state-established guidelines for placement on the Legislative Evaluation and Accountability Program (LEAP) salary allocation documents.

C. Employees hired on or before September 1, 1999 shall be placed on the Tacoma School District No. 10 salary schedule as provided in this Subsection.

1. The term "certificated years of experience" for salary placement only means the number of years of accumulated full-time and part-time professional education employment prior to the current reporting school year in the state of Washington, out-of-state, and a foreign country.

2. Employees who have been teaching in a Washington public school will be given one (1) increment for each year of contracted, full time teaching experience.

3. For salary schedule placement purposes, teaching experience outside the state of Washington will be granted at the rate of one (1) increment for each year of experience at an accredited/approved school. (preschool, elementary, secondary)

4. For purposes of attaining the twenty year increment the District may count only four (4) years of out-of-state teaching experience credit.

5. Teaching experience at non-public schools which have been recognized by OSPI at a rate of one (1) increment for each year of experience will be granted if the service was in a position requiring education certification and the non-public school was accredited by the state in which the service was rendered. (preschool, elementary, secondary)

 6. For certificated years of experience credit and increment purposes, the equivalent of ninety (90) student days as per the approved calendar on temporary contract or on regular contract shall constitute a year of service and entitles the certificated employees to the normal increments. After nineteen (19) years of service an employee is eligible for a twenty (20) year service increment equal to <u>five percent</u> (5%) of the previous step as defined in 4 above.

- 7. All clock hours and in-service or professional credits that are accepted by OSPI (Form S275) will be accepted by the District for employees under contract on or before August 31, 1990 and shall be grandfathered. All credits earned prior to September 1, 1989, and currently applied to the salary schedule shall be maintained.
- 8. Additional specific provisions are as follows:
  - a. Guidance staff hired before September 1, 1997 will be granted agency experience at the rate of one (1) year experience credit for each two (2) years of agency experience up to a maximum of six (6) years on the salary schedule. Guidance staff hired after September 1, 1997 will be granted experience in accordance with the LEAP schedule requirements developed by the State of Washington. For experience to be recognized it must be educational experience in public or private preschools, elementary or secondary schools which require certification.
  - b. Physical Therapists and Occupational Therapists will be given four (4) or more years' experience credit for previous certificated employment in positions which required certification.
  - c. One (1) year experience will be granted for every two (2) of military experience, to a maximum of two (2) years.
  - d. Effective September 1, 1998 for new hires, military experience, up to a total of four (4) years, (for a maximum of two (2) years credit) will be given on the salary guide on the basis of one-half year for each year of military service. Credit for military service will be granted only if an employee's actual teaching service was interrupted by military service.
  - e. Nurses, Psychologists, and Speech Language Pathologists hired between November 25, 1980 and August 31, 1990 were granted agency experience at the rate of one (1) year experience credit for each two (2) years of agency experience up to a maximum of six (6) years.
  - f. Nurses, Psychologists, and Speech Language Pathologists hired between September 1, 1990 and August 31, 1997, according to Regulation 4141.1 in effect at that time, were granted experience as follows:
    - i. For nonpublic school work experience approved by the Human Resources Department, credit will be given at a rate of one (1) increment for each year of approved experience up to a maximum of ten (10) years of credit on the salary schedule. No credit will be given for self-employment.
    - ii. The only work experience considered is the work experience after degrees, certification, etc., which are required by the District, have been completed; provided, however, that the degrees, certification, etc., were also required for the position by the other employer.

#### D. Placing Vocational Educators

- 1. Degreed employees: Each certificated instructional employee, including vocational educators, with a related degree shall be placed on the salary schedule based on the employee's years of educational experience, highest degree level and total eligible credits. (The Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction recognizes some community and technical college experience.) The Director of Vocational Education will determine whether the vocational certificate was acquired as the result of the college degree rather than business and/or industry experience or whether the degree is "incidental to or not related to" the vocational certificate. (WAC 392-121-250).
- 2. Non-degreed employees: Each employee holding a valid vocational certificate obtained as a result of occupational experience shall be placed on the salary schedule as follows:
  - a. Initial placement shall be on the BA column.
  - b. Additional credits shall be calculated thus:
    - Only credits earned after all of the minimum requirements for initial vocational certification will be applicable. These credits must be approved as vocational educator training by OSPI Vocational-Technical Education office. (These requirements are generally more restrictive than those for regular certified employees.)
    - ii. Only occupational experience earned after the date upon which the employee met the minimum experience requirements for initial vocational certification can be converted into non-degree credits. This date is indicated by the date the initial certification is issued.
      - a) Non-degree credits are determined as one (1) credit for each one hundred (100) clock hours of occupational experience up to a maximum of twenty (20) credits per calendar year. (Management experience is also occupational experience.)
      - b) Non-degree vocational educators are not eligible for reporting of academic, in-service or "excess" credits.
  - iii. Eligible years of certificated years of experience:
    - a) Credit may be granted for prior professional educational employment (including teaching at some community and technical colleges).
    - b) Credit may be granted for up to a maximum of six (6) years of verified management experience calculated thus:

	1)	Work as a supervisor, foreman or manager in the occupational area in which the person will instruct. Occupational experience is defined by WAC $\underline{181}$ -77-003(7) "as paid or unpaid work experience in the career field to be taught."	
	2)	The "start point" for conversion of management experience into	
		certificated years of experience is the date upon which the individual	
		met the minimum occupational experience requirements for vocational	
		certification. Only management experience acquired after that date	
		may be converted into certificated years of experience.	
	3)	One (1) year equals two thousand (2,000) hours of occupational	
	•	experience in the specific vocational field to be taught.	
	4)	The years of experience resulting from the process are not credited to	
	,	seniority. Only educational experience is credited to seniority.	
Secti	on 23 – Insur	rance Benefits	
A.	Sound Partnership	Trust	
	All insurance prog	grams shall be offered to the employees through the Sound Partnership	
	(hereinafter "TRU	ST"), unless otherwise expressly provided for the term of this	
B.	Benefits		
	In keeping with th	e powers and responsibilities as described in the TRUST document, the	
		rmine the benefits to be provided and the contributions required of	
		and eligible part-time plan participants. The TRUST shall offer group:	
	_	ty, term life, vision, dental and health insurances.	
	$\mathcal{E}$		
C.	District contribution	on	
	The District shall provide an insurance benefit contribution to the TRUST of the State		
	allocation amount per month designated for current employees, per eligible FTE. In		
	addition, the District shall provide an additional amount per eligible FTE equal to the		
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	state retiree sassie	*J ·	
D	Eligibility		
ν.	2.15.0.1117		
	An employee is el	igible for insurance benefits if the employee's regular working	
		at least half time. An employee whose working assignment is for at	
		more but not full time shall be eligible for a prorated payment for	
	A. B.	3)  Section 23 – Insur  A. Sound Partnership  All insurance prog (hereinafter "TRU Agreement.  B. Benefits  In keeping with the trustees shall detereligible full-time along-term disability  C. District contribution  The District shall allocation amount addition, the District state retiree subsides  D. Eligibility  An employee is eleassignment is for a	

E. In the event of a qualified change in family or employment status, an employee will be allowed thirty (30) days in which to enroll in the health insurance plan.

#### F. Benefit Effective Dates

The Insurance benefit contributions and provisions contained in this section shall remain in full force and effect for the term of this agreement and may be reopened for negotiations only in the following events unless otherwise provided for in this agreement:

1. Legislation is passed which requires fringe benefit coverage from another source.

2. Any provision of this section does not comply with the law.

3. Legislation removes or eases compensation limitations. Or,

4. The TRUST is dissolved or considers dissolving.

# Section 24 – Extra Pay for Extra Work

A. Extra Pay for Extra Work assignments shall be posted with consideration given to members of the bargaining unit prior to hiring from outside candidates.

The principal in collaboration with the Site-Centered Decision-Making team shall recommend specific additional stipends for their building. Given the parameters of each building's Extra Work allocation, the SCDM team shall also determine the pay for each additional Extra Work assignment. Upon recommendations by the Site-Centered Decision-Making team, the signature of the TEA building representative, and approval of the building administrator, discretionary building funds will be disbursed for eligible activities. Any extra pay activity that occurs within the workday will result in an extension of the employee's workday as agreed to by the employee and their supervisor. Discretionary building funds will be dispersed for eligible activities in addition to those activities funded by the District. The rate of compensation for work for "other assignments" and assignments in specialized programs will be established by the TEA president/designee and the Superintendent/designee.

 B. The appropriate Extra Pay for Extra Work will be determined by the principal in collaboration with members of the SCDM. The rates will be used for all additional work assignments outside the professional work day, except those specifically designated in this Agreement as compensated at the per diem rate of pay, which is the daily or hourly rate of pay of the specific employee based on his or her placement on the salary schedule. There are two per diem rates of pay, one based on the employee's placement on the base salary schedule, and one based on the employee's placement on the combined base + personal responsibility stipend salary schedule. Generally if the extra work assignment is a continuation of the employee's full, regular work beyond the school day or year, the appropriate rate of per diem pay is pay based on the employee's placement on the

- combined salary schedule (base + personal responsible stipend). If the work is a specific extra work assignment, the appropriate rate of per diem pay is pay based on the employee's placement on the base salary schedule.
- C. There shall be three (3) hourly rates of pay, based upon the Extra Pay for Extra Work salary base. The Extra Pay for Extra Work salary base shall be based on the Extra Pay Rate (EPR). The EPR is equivalent to the combined salary (base + PRS at BA + 0, year 0).
  - 1. When employees are authorized pay as in-service presenters or trainers on instructional topics, the rate of pay shall be 0.12% of the EPR.
  - 2. Summer school, extended learning activities, and other assignments authorized for pay at an hourly rate shall be paid .10% of the EPR. Employees will be selected for summer school based upon Section 31, Summer School. Employees for building extended learning activities will be selected by their school protocol.
  - 3. When employees are authorized hourly pay as a workshop participant, the rate of pay shall be .08% of the EPR.

#### **Section 25 – Travel Allowance**

Employees approved by the Superintendent or designee to use their private vehicle(s) to travel on school business shall be compensated at the IRS rate.

# **Section 26 – Compensation for Required Hearings**

When an employee attends a hearing or court proceeding by District request or by subpoena for reason(s) directly related to his or her work on behalf of a District <u>student</u>, said employee will be compensated at the hourly rate for the required hours when such hearings occur on noncontract days or time. The employee must notify the Human Resources Department prior to the hearing or court proceeding to be eligible for payment.

# Section 27 – Payments and Deductions of Salaries

- A. Method of Payment of Salaries
  - 1. Except for those employees contracted for a number of days which is less than the number normally required for the position, an employee shall be paid in twenty-four (24) installments consistent with the negotiated salary schedules to be distributed on the fifth (5th) and twentieth (20<sup>th</sup>) day each month.
  - 2. All bargaining unit employees will have their pay deposited by automatic payroll deposit to an institution(s) of their choice.

- 3. In the event an employee serves less than the full contract year, the amount due shall be computed by crediting the employee with a pro rata of the annual salary for each day contracted (including days absent on authorized leave with pay) and by subtracting from any amounts previously paid.
- 4. If an employee should die, the estate of that person will not be held liable for any overpayment on contract.

#### B. Deduction of Salary for Absences

- 1. Deduction of salary for employee absences not covered by leave with pay is computed at per diem, based on the employee's placement on the combined salary schedule (base + personal responsible stipend), based on the annual salary for each day's absence. This is determined by dividing the combined contracted salary by the number of days agreed to in the employee's personnel contract.
- 2. Employees under contract who are unable to report for duty during the first (1st) pay period in September because of personal illness shall be placed on the payroll and be paid, pursuant to Section 27 (A 1), as provided above, until all sick leave is exhausted.
- 3. An employee who does not release his or her substitute in accordance with the approved procedure for releasing a substitute will have half (½) the substitute daily wage deducted from his or her salary if both the employee and the substitute report for work for the same position and the substitute is not reassigned. In the event there is a malfunction of District equipment, the employee shall not be held liable for the substitute penalty.

# **Section 28 – Payroll Deductions**

- A. Payroll deduction will be provided for salary insurance payments under the American Fidelity Insurance Company as sponsored by the Association.
- B. A certificated employee returning to the District whose payroll deduction was interrupted will be allowed thirty (30) days after the first (1st) day of work to reenroll.
- C. Payroll deductions shall be provided for authorized 457 tax deferred savings plans and authorized 529 college savings plans.
- D. In the event of any overpayments, the finance office shall inform the Association or company concerned who will be responsible to refund the overpayment to the concerned party.
- E. Underpayments shall be promptly paid by the finance office.

- F. Payroll deduction shall be provided for authorized tax sheltered annuity plans.
- G. The District shall provide for reinstatement of payroll deductions of previous health and dental insurance premium(s) for an employee returning from leave unless canceled or changed through written notice by the employee. To insure the deductions from the next payroll warrant for an employee returning to work on any of the first (1st) ten (10) calendar days of any month, it is necessary for the employee to go to the finance office to complete the proper forms on or before the tenth of the month.

## **Section 29 – Tax Sheltered Annuities**

The District shall place in each school a list of companies for which tax sheltered annuity payroll deductions are authorized.

# **Section 30 – Compliance Provision**

If the District would be in violation of State law or would incur any penalty or decrease in State support as a result of the compensation and benefits provided herein, the excess compensation and/or benefits provided shall be reduced to the maximum amount legally allowable without the District incurring any penalty or reduction in support. The reduction in compensation shall be made on a pro rata basis among all certificated employees who received an increase in compensation under collective bargaining agreements or other contracts entered into on or after the effective date of RCW 28A.400.200. The reduction in insurance benefits shall be made by reducing the maximum benefit being received by any employee to the point where the District is in compliance with the FTE average specified by law. Any overpayment may be collected from the employee or offset against future payments as determined by the District. If a final and binding decision is made declaring the compensation and benefit limitation provisions of RCW 28A.400.200, or the appropriation act unlawful, provisions of this contract affected by the ruling shall be reopened and the District and the Association shall renegotiate the provisions in accordance with the law. Negotiations will begin within ten (10) days following the decision. A final and binding decision is a final decision of the Supreme Court of the State of Washington, or a final decision of the Superior Court, State of Washington, in an action in which the District is a party and which is not appealed within the time permitted by law.

# **Section 31 – Summer School**

- 1. Summer school positions may be authorized by any one of the following:
  - 1. District supported summer school, including the high school program. Title I/LAP Program, ELL, and Special Education Program (extended school year [ESY]).
  - 2. Building-designed summer school.

- 1 2. Employees interested in applying for summer school openings become candidates by 2 completing the "Request for Summer Assignment" form and submitting it by the 3 published deadline. 4 5 1. To fill openings created by A, above, qualified candidates will be considered by 6 program administrator(s). 7 8 2. The summer school program qualified candidates will be defined by the following: 9 10 a. Meeting highly qualified standards where applicable or having a valid endorsement for curricular area and level being offered: 11 12 13 b. Having instructional experience in the curricular area 14 15 3. To fill the position, the three (3) most senior qualified candidates and a qualified internal 16 candidate of the District's choice will be considered. 17 18 3. Should no candidate meet the qualification criteria, the District may look at qualified 19 (as defined in B(2 a)) external candidates or internal individuals may be considered 20 who are endorsed in the subject area with related instructional experience. 21 If the most senior qualified candidates are not hired for the position they will be 22 notified of the specific reasons in writing. 23 24 Qualifications being equal, seniority will be the deciding factor. 25 26 3. An individual accepting a summer school assignment is committing to the full 27 assignment. No planned absences, except for the specific days of the NEA convention 28 plus reasonable travel days, when the employee has identified a substitute who has the 29 approval of the program supervisor and is available for the entire absence, will be 30 approved during the summer school assignment. When considering candidates in 31 subsequent years, attendance may be a consideration in the hiring decision. ARTICLE IV – LEAVES 32 33 Section 32 – General Provisions 34 35 36 Leave (i.e., sick, bereavement, family, personal, jury duty, and subpoena) may be utilized in 37 minimum increments of one (1) hour, except under the following condition: If a substitute is 38 required, or special coverage must be arranged by the principal/department supervisor, which 39 requires additional pay, then leave must be used in half and whole day increments. Staff taking 40 leave shall report their leave through the employee attendance reporting system. 41
  - 26

Employees on a long-term leave, except for medical leave, shall, on or before February 1 of each

year, give notice of intent to return to the District. If employees give notice to return after

February 1, they will be treated as displaced employees for placement purposes.

42

43

<u>Preliminary notification and completed medical documentation will be submitted prior to March</u> 1. Final notification of return shall be made as soon as possible, but no later than August 1.

The District and the Association agree to comply with the provisions of the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 and state laws governing leave for school district employees except that any provisions of the agreement that provide benefits and protections beyond those of the Act shall continue in full force and effect.

An employee returning from an absence will complete a Certification of Reason for Absence form and/or their timesheet (TIP - Time Input Processing) immediately upon resumption of duties. If reason(s) for absence, as certified on this form, are found to be inaccurate the employee will be subject to appropriate consequences; willful falsification of payroll records will result in appropriate discipline up to and including termination.

 In addition, an employee who demonstrates a sudden change in <u>attendance</u> or <u>a</u> pattern of <u>absence</u> may be required to submit an initial medical report and follow-up reports. Requests for exceptions to leave provisions may be granted by the Assistant Superintendent Human Resources, or designee.

# Section 33 – Leaves with Pay

A. **Sick Leave** (includes illness, injury and emergency)

Employees contracted for a full contract year shall be credited with twelve (12) days sick leave at the beginning of each year of employment with the District.

1. Employees who are contracted for less than a full year or less than a 1.0 FTE shall receive a proration of the twelve (12) days.

2. The unused portion of sick leave allowance shall accumulate from year to year in accordance with current State law. Pursuant to state laws, Employees may accumulate up to one hundred and ninety-four (194) days of sick leave (182 plus the annual allocation of 12 days). Sick leave days in excess of one hundred and ninety-four (194) days will not be credited to an employee's annual sick leave account. Employees affected by this maximum may participate in sick leave sharing, cash out excess days pursuant with Subsection B of this section, or participate in the annual sick leave cash out under the Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (VEBA) III plan.

3. Sick leave shall apply to illness (including disabilities caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage, abortion, childbirth and recovery therefrom), injury, illness or injuries to family members covered by the state Family Care Act, RCW 49.12.265-295, and up to three (3) days for emergencies.

The following conditions apply to emergencies:

1 The problem has been suddenly precipitated. 2 3 b. Pre-planning is not possible. 4 5 c. Pre-planning cannot relieve the necessity for the employee's absence. 6 7 d. The problem is not minor or of mere convenience, but of a serious nature. 8 9 e. Auto trouble shall not be considered an emergency except in case of an accident. 10 4. Any employee claiming benefits of more than five (5) consecutive work days for 11 12 reasons of illness or injury shall submit a medical report the sixth (6th) consecutive 13 work day and every thirty (30) days thereafter while the illness persists. Forms shall 14 be provided by the District for this purpose. In the case of documented serious or 15 life-threatening illness, follow-up medical reports may be waived. A physician's 16 release must be submitted to Human Resources Department upon return to work if absence is for medical reasons and leave is more than five (5) days. 17 18 19 5. Employees who resign from the District and are rehired shall retain the number of 20 days of accumulated sick leave held at the time of resignation from the District 21 provided that the sick days have not been used while employed by another employer 22 or paid pursuant to the attendance incentive program. 23 24 B. Parental/Adoption Leave 25 26 1. An employee may choose to use paid sick leave and personal leave for the birth of a 27 child for the disability period of the employee's pregnancy as established by the employee's physician. The disability period may include time before and after the 28 29 birth and the child's recovery period. Under normal circumstances the disability 30 period is six (6) to eight (8) weeks. Leave for time beyond the physician designated 31 disability period will be granted without pay as set forth in Section 34 (C). The 32 benefits of the federal and state Family and Medical Leave Act also apply to 33 childbirth. 34 35 2. An employee who is legally adopting a preschool child six (6) years or younger may 36 have the privileges of parental leave. The leave shall commence as soon as the child

37

38 39

40

41

paid leave.

has been placed in the care of the adopting parent(s). An employee may choose to use paid sick leave and personal leave before or after the actual adoption for up to six

(6) weeks if the adoption occurs within the United States or up to eight (8) weeks if

the adoption occurs outside the United States, up to the amount of his/her accrued

#### C. Sick Leave Cash Out

An employee, at his or her option, may cash in a maximum of twelve (12) of the eligible unused sick days above an accumulation of sixty (60) days, in January of the school year following any year in which the employee has a minimum of sixty (60) days of accumulated sick leave, at a rate equal to one (1) day's current monetary compensation of the employee for each four (4) full days of accumulated sick leave. The employee's sick leave accumulation shall be reduced four (4) days for each day compensated.

At the time of separation from District employment due to retirement, or for employees who separate from employment and who are at least age fifty-five (55) and with at least ten (10) years of service under either TRS 3 or SERS 3 or employees who separate from employment and are at least fifty-five (55) and have at least fifteen (15) years of service under either TRS 2 or SERS 2 or PERS 2, or death, an eligible employee or the employee's estate shall receive remuneration at a rate equal to one (1) day's current monetary compensation of the employee for each four (4) full days of accumulated sick leave

Annually, the Association shall conduct an election to determine whether the employees will participate in a VEBA plan for cash out of sick leave annually as well as at retirement or separation from the District. The District will assist the Association in distributing materials required for the vote. Should employees elect to participate in the VEBA plan, the Association and District will follow the state and federal law regarding the implementation of the program, the eligibility for participation and the determination of cash out payment amounts.

#### D. Bereavement Leave

1. Employees shall be granted up to five (5) days of paid bereavement leave as the result of the death of any family member (defined below).

Family member means an individual with any of the following relationships to the employee:

a. Spouse and parents thereof;

c. Parents and spouses thereof;

b. Sons and daughters and spouses thereof;

d. Brothers and sisters and spouses thereof;

 e. Grandparents and grandchildren and spouses thereof;

f. Domestic partner and parents thereof, including domestic partners of any individual in (b) through (e) of this definition as defined by Sound Partnership Trust, or other governmental agency.

g. Any individual related by blood or affinity whose close association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship as approved by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources.

1		
2	2.	Bereavement leave is non-accumulative.
3		
4	3.	Requests for exceptions to bereavement leave provisions may be granted in
5		extraordinary circumstances, including travel consideration, by the Assistant
6		Superintendent, Human Resources Department/designee.
7		

E. Family Illness Leave

9

8

10

11

12

13

14

Employees shall be granted a leave of absence with pay of not more than three (3) days during a contract year. Family illness leave applies when the health condition of a family member (defined below) is of a serious enough nature to require treatment, care or supervision by the employee.

Family member means an individual with any of the following relationships to the employee:

15 16 17

18 19

20

21

22

23 24

- 1. Spouse and parents thereof;
- 2. Sons and daughters and spouses thereof;
- 3. Parents and spouses thereof;
- 4. Brothers and sisters and spouses thereof;
- 5. Grandparents and grandchildren and spouses thereof;
- 6. Domestic partner and parents thereof, including domestic partners of any individual in 2 through 5 of this definition as defined by Sound Partnership Trust, or other governmental agency; and
- 7. Any individual related by blood or residing within the employee's household.

25 26 27

28 29 If the need is such that additional leave is required, the employee may use their personal sick leave (as of January 2003) or personal leave to address their family illness needs as described above. Additional documentation will be required from the employee. Additionally, benefits of federal and state Family and Medical Leave laws may apply.

30 31 32

#### F. Personal Leave

33 34 35

Personal leave will be granted for up to two (2) days per year and is accumulative to a total of six (6) days. The following conditions apply to personal leave:

36 37

1. The employee must report their absence to the District leave system.

38 39

2. Leave may not be used to extend a holiday, vacation, or break period or during the first (1st) or last five (5) days of the student school year.

40 41 42

3. Leave may not be used for political purposes or en masse meetings/activities.

4. When the absence is reported after 6:00AM on the same day the leave is to be used. the employee will make a good faith effort to contact the building directly.

### G. Military/Reserve Duty and Annual Training Leave

- 1. Any employee who is a member of the Washington National Guard or of any organized reserve or armed forces unit of the United States shall be entitled to and shall be granted military leave of absence in accordance with RCW 38.40.060.
- 2. Military leave shall be granted in order that the person may take part in active training duty when required to do so by the military service if such duty cannot be taken during non-contract days.
- 3. When military leave is granted the employee shall receive his or her regular pay from

### H. Jury Duty, Subpoena Leave

- 1. Leaves of absence with pay are allowed for jury duty. Any compensation received for jury duty performed on contract days will be deducted from the employee's net salary. An employee dismissed from jury duty must report to his/her assignment if such release occurs at such time the employee could complete one-half  $(\frac{1}{2})$  work day.
- 2. Leaves of absence with pay shall be granted for an employee who is subpoenaed to testify in an official proceeding except as provided below:
  - a. If the proceeding involves the District and the employee has a direct or indirect interest in the outcome, leave with pay shall be restricted to the first eight (8) employees subpoenaed to testify per specific proceeding. If more than eight (8) employees are subpoenaed, such leave for each additional employee over eight (8) shall be without pay. One designated Association representative shall be granted leave with pay to attend such proceeding upon being subpoenaed and shall not be included within the count of the first eight (8) employees if the proceeding involves the Association.
  - b. If the proceeding involves self-employment or other employment, leave shall be without pay.
  - c. Any compensation received while an employee is honoring a subpoena will be deducted from employee's net salary, if it is determined that the employee is entitled to a leave of absence.
  - d. Leaves under this section are only for the portion of the day when attendance is

#### **I.** Professional Leave

Leaves of absence with pay and with or without reimbursement of certain expenses may be granted to employees for the purpose of attending professional meetings. Requests for such leave shall be on the appropriate form required by the District. Additional forms are required to be completed if travel is involved consistent with Board Policy and Regulation 6213R. Final approval for professional leave is delegated to the Superintendent or designee, except in the case of leave involving travel outside the State of Washington. Leave involving professional meetings outside the state must be approved by the Superintendent and Board.

Categories of professional leave which are permitted without salary deductions are as follows:

1. Substitute and necessary expenses paid by the District.

This category applies to employees authorized by the Board to attend educational conferences.

2. Substitute paid by the District; necessary expenses paid by the educator or outside agency.

This category applies to employee authorized by the Board to attend educational conferences in cooperation with outside agencies.

3. Substitute paid by the educator or his/her sponsor; no expenses paid by the District.

This category applies to employees authorized by the Board to participate in important conferences or meetings to represent their local organization. Reimbursement to the District for the cost of a substitute is required.

### **Section 34 – Leaves without Pay**

#### A. General Provisions

1. Requests for leave without pay for ninety (90) calendar days or longer must be approved by the Board of Directors.

2. The following supplemental conditions apply to all leaves in this section with the exception of E 4. Military Service (Active Duty):

a. An employee who returns from leave will be returned to the position of last assignment. If the position no longer exists, the employee will be assigned in accordance with Section 82, Displacement.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	

26 27

28

- b. An employee granted more than any two consecutive leaves of absence will be assigned in accordance with Section 82.
- c. An employee who returns from an extended leave may return only at the beginning of an applicable semester, quarter, or in the case of elementary schools, the grading period.

### B. Parental and Adoption Leave

- 1. An employee should notify the Human Resources Department by the end of the fourth (4th) month of pregnancy to assist the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources Department, in planning for replacement.
- 2. Parental leave shall apply to male and female employees and shall begin at a time determined suitable by the employee and the attending physician after consultation with the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources Department, or designee. Insofar as possible, leave shall begin at a time which is consistent with the orderly continuance of the educational program.
- 3. Parental and adoption leaves may run consecutively for a period not to exceed the end of the next applicable semester/quarter/grading period after eighteen (18) months from the birth, or placement in the case of adoption, of the child.
- 4. Upon the completion of parental/adoption leave, additional leave without pay to the end of the current school year, may be requested. The benefits of the federal and state Family and Medical Leave laws may apply.

#### C. Political Leave

2 3

Upon request, employees may be granted political leave in accordance with the following provisions:

1. With three (3) weeks' notice, an employee may be granted up to four (4) weeks of continuous leave without pay for the purpose of campaigning for his/her own election. If the employee is not elected to the political office, the employee shall return to the same position held prior to the leave.

 2. If the employee is elected to the office, the Board may return the employee to the same or mutually agreed upon position until such time that the elected term of office necessitates leaving the teaching assignment. Any employee may hold a political office and continue as an employee as long as it does not interfere with the contractual assignment.

3. The Board may extend to the employee who is elected to a political office a leave of absence without pay for one (1) year or a fraction of a year.

### D. Military Service (Active Duty)

1. Any employee who volunteers, is inducted or is recalled into active military duty shall be considered to be on a leave of absence without pay for the period of such service not to exceed five (5) years. If he/she requests reemployment within ninety (90) days of honorable discharge from such military service or after having presented other proof of having satisfactorily completed service, he/she shall be reinstated and restored, as nearly as existing circumstances permit, to the position previously held or to a position of like seniority, status and pay; provided, that the Board need not reemploy such person if circumstances have so changed as to make it impossible, unreasonable, or against the public interest to do so. Provided further, that to the extent permitted by law, this section shall not apply to an individual filling a temporary position at the time of the request for leave.

2. If a person is not qualified for his/her old position as a result of disability sustained during his/her service, but is nevertheless qualified to perform the duties of another position, under the control of the employer, he/she shall be reemployed in such other position; provided that such position shall provide like seniority, status and pay, or the nearest approximation thereto consistent with the circumstances of the case.

#### E. Other Unpaid Leaves Leaves of absence without pay, not to exceed one (1) year, may be granted. Such leaves of absence may be renewed for a second year. Leaves of absence without pay are subject to the following conditions: 1. Study A leave of absence without pay for study entitles a staff member to a service increment on a salary schedule provided that during the school year in the leave period at least twenty-two (22) semester hours or thirty-three (33) quarter hours of college credit have been earned or study without credit required in a degree program has been performed. 2. Other The Board may grant leave for a specific purpose recommended by the Superintendent. ARTICLE V – RIGHTS OF CERTIFICATED SUBSTITUTE EMPLOYEES Section 35 – Salary and Contract Provisions of Substitute **Employees** A. Substitute Rates: The daily rate of pay for a substitute teacher shall be as follows:

Substitute Position  Type	Working less than 4 hours paid at 60% of daily rate	Working more than 450 hours in a contract year	Rate per day effective September 1, 2014	Rate per day effective September 1, 2017	
Regular Substitute Assignment					
Substitute daily rate			<u>\$140</u>	<u>\$145</u>	
Substitute daily rate	<u>√</u>		<u>\$84</u>	<u>\$87</u>	
Substitute daily rate		<u>√</u>	<u>\$155</u>	<u>\$160</u>	
Substitute daily rate	<u>√</u>	<u> </u>	<u>\$93</u>	<u>\$96</u>	
Hard-to-Fill Substitute Assignment					
<u>Hard-to-Fill</u> <u>daily rate</u>			<u>\$155</u>	<u>\$160</u>	
Hard-to-Fill			Φ02	Φ0.6	
daily rate	<u> </u>		<u>\$93</u>	<u>\$96</u>	
<u>Hard-to-Fill</u>		✓	\$170	\$17 <u>5</u>	
<u>daily rate</u> Hard-to-Fill		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<del></del>	
daily rate	<u>✓</u>	✓	<u>\$102</u>	<u>\$105</u>	
	Extended Day Facility Assignment				
Extended day facility daily rate			<u>\$154</u>	<u>\$159.50</u>	
Extended day facility	/		\$92.40	\$95.70	
daily rate	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	Ψ23.70	
Extended day facility daily rate		<u>✓</u>	<u>\$169</u>	<u>\$174.50</u>	
Extended day facility	/	<b>√</b>	\$101.40	\$104.70	
<u>daily rate</u>	<u>-</u>	<u> </u>			
<u>E</u> 2	xtended Day Fac	cility Hard-to-Fi	ll Assignment		
Extended day facility			Ф1.60	Φ1 <b>7</b> 4.50	
<u>Hard-to-Fill</u> <u>daily rate</u>			<u>\$169</u>	<u>\$174.50</u>	
Extended day facility					
Hard-to-Fill	<b>✓</b>		\$101.40	\$104.7 <u>0</u>	
daily rate			<del>4 = 0 = 0 10</del>	<u> </u>	
Extended day facility					
<u>Hard-to-Fill</u>		<u>✓</u>	<u>\$184</u>	<u>\$189.50</u>	
daily rate  Extended day facility					
Extended day facility  Hard-to-Fill  daily rate	✓	<u> </u>	<u>\$110.40</u>	<u>\$113.70</u>	

1. Substitutes who are called to work for a full day assignment shall be paid at the full 2 daily rate 3 4 2. Beginning with the sixteenth (16th) consecutive day in the same assignment, retired Tacoma teachers shall be paid a daily rate equal to their placement on the current 6 salary schedule. 7 8 **B.** Assignment: 9 10 Principals can reassign a substitute, once they have arrived at a building, based on the 11 needs of the building. 12 **C. Substitute Training Opportunities:** 13 14 15 If any substitute is required to attend training, the employer will pay for the cost of the 16 training. Substitutes who are members of the TEA bargaining unit may attend curriculum 17 and other training offered by the District. Substitutes shall be paid their daily rate or 18 proration thereof for time in attendance at District or required trainings. 19 D. Feedback Forms: 20 21 22 The nature of substitute assignments dictates that formal observation/evaluation cycles 23 will not typically be possible for substitutes. Nevertheless, because of the importance of 24 providing substitutes with feedback on their performance, a form will be provided to 25 administrative/supervisory evaluators for their use in providing feedback in a standardized format. All feedback forms will be sent to the Human Resources 26 27 Department, which will file the original form in the substitute's personnel file, return a 28 copy to the originator, and promptly provide a copy to the substitute 29 30 A substitute may request an appointment to review any feedback received in the Human 31 Resources Department and may attach addenda to their feedback forms following such 32 review. 33 34 **E.** Contract Rights: 35 A regular substitute, as determined by the PERC decision, shall have the rights of the 36 37 following sections of this Agreement: 38 39 Preamble

1

5

40

41

42

43

1.

2.

3.

4

**Definitions** 

Recognition

**Duration and Reopeners** 

Status of the Contract.

1	5.	Conformity to Law
2	6.	Rights of the Board
3	7.	Distribution of the Contract
4	8.	Bargaining a New Contract
5	9.	Association Leaves
6	10.	Dues Deductions
7	11.	Representation Fee
8	12.	Building Use
9	13.	Communications
10	14.	Delivery Service
11	23.	Insurance Benefits
12	25.	Travel Allowance
13	26.	Compensation for Required Hearings
14	28.	Payroll Deductions
15	30.	Compliance Provision
16	35.	Salary & Contract Provisions
17	39.	Instruct. Materials/Parental Review
18	40.	Grading Practices
19	41.	Ownership of Materials
20	44.	Dissemination of Professional Information
21	46.	Calendar - Term of Employment
22	48.	Professional Work Day
23	49.	Planning Periods
24	50.	Staff Protection
25	51.	*Covering Classes
26	53.	Student Discipline/Administrative Response
27	54.	Documentation of Incidents
28	55.	Employee Duties and Responsibilities
29	56.	Physical Facilities
30	60.	Job Description
31	62.	Elementary Schools (Grades K-5)
32	63.	Middle Schools (Grades 6-8)
33	64.	High Schools (Grades 9-12)
34	65.	Middle School and High School Class Size/Staffing Compliance
35	66.	Special Education, ESA's and Learning Specialists
36	69.	Supplemental Contract
37	71.	Personnel Files
38	72.	Cause
39	73.	Equitable Treatment
40	74.	Sexual Harassment
41	75.	Staff Diversity Plan
4.0		

43 Article XIV – Grievance Procedure.

This article is the only article of this Agreement applicable to regular substitute employees

except as provided herein. Unless specifically noted, items included in the <u>appendices</u> do not

apply to substitutes.

### ARTICLE VI – INSTRUCTION

## 1 2

### Section 36 – Academic Freedom

A. Academic freedom is defined as:

1. The right/responsibility to teach and learn about controversial issues which have economic, political, scientific or social significance.

2. The right/responsibility to present instructional materials which are pertinent to the subject and levels taught, within the outlines of appropriate course content and within the instructional program.

3. The right/responsibility to maintain a classroom environment which is conducive to the free exchange and examination of ideas which have economic, political, scientific or social significance.

4. The right of teachers to participate fully in the public affairs of the community.

B. Employees shall be free to express their personal opinions on all matters relevant to the course content and appropriate to the subject and levels taught, provided that when this personal opinion is stated, the class is so informed. All facts of controversial issues shall be presented in a scholarly and objective manner within the limits of appropriate discretion and propriety in a manner consistent with Policy 2331. Employees should notify the administration when intending to cover a controversial topic.

### Section 37 – Classroom Visitors/Observation

In order to provide patrons the opportunity to visit classrooms with the least interruption to the teaching process, the following guidelines are set forth:

A. All visitors to a classroom shall obtain the approval of the building administrator.

B. The time will be arranged by the building administrator with the classroom teacher's approval.

C. The teacher shall be afforded the opportunity to confer with the classroom observer before and/or after the observation.

### **Section 38 – Materials Selection**

Instructional materials shall be selected and made available to interested persons according to the following guidelines:

- A. Core and supplemental instructional materials for each course and/or grade level shall be selected according to Policy and Regulation 2020, the applicable rules, regulations, and guidelines of the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction and the State Board of Education.
- B. Additional instructional materials may be selected by individual teachers for occasional use in the classroom. Individuals, grade level teams, or PLC's can bring their suggested materials to the principal directly for a discussion of the proposal. Principal consideration shall be based on level, ability and maturity of the students; the content of the course; best instructional practices; and, alignment with District curriculum, student learning requirements and content standards. After consideration, the building principal will respond through written notice to the employee(s) with a copy to the Association.

Procedures for material review and/or complaint(s) <u>are</u> set forth in Section 39, Instructional Materials/Parental Review.

#### Section 39 – Instructional Materials/Parental Review

- A. Any parent, guardian or person having control or custody of any student enrolled in a school may arrange, with the building administrator of that school, a specific time to review and examine all instructional materials of whatever nature, whether audible or visual, used or to be used in any course of instruction in which the student is enrolled except examination materials in advance of the date of examination.
- B. All complaints to the use of any materials must be presented utilizing the Request for Reconsideration of Instructional Materials Form (as per Regulation 2020) and will include the name of the author, title, the publisher, and the objections by pages and items; or in case of materials other than printed materials, written information specifying the precise nature of the objection. The statement must be signed and identified in such a way that a proper reply will be possible.
- C. When a complaint is received, all appropriate persons will be notified and the time and content of the review process will be established in consultation with such appropriate persons.
- D. An individual student may be excused from using challenged materials after the parent or guardian has completed the Request for Reconsideration of Instructional Materials Form. The teacher will then assign the student alternate materials of equal merit.
- E. The use of challenged materials by class, school or District shall not be restricted until final disposition has been made by the appropriate review committee. Individuals may be excused from using challenged materials according to the Procedure for Individual Request.
- F. In deliberations of challenged materials a District's Review Committee shall consider the educational philosophy of the District, the professional opinions of other teachers of the

1 same subject and of other competent authorities, reviews of the materials by reputable 2 bodies, the teacher's own stated objectives in using the materials, and the objections of 3 the complainant. 4 5 G. The findings of the Building Review Committee and/or District Review Committee shall 6 be a matter of written record and transmitted to the Superintendent and the appropriate 7 level Assistant Superintendent who will notify interested parties of the findings. 8 9 **Section 40 – Grading Practices** 10 The teacher shall have the authority and responsibility to determine grades and other evaluations 11 12 of students. No grade or evaluation shall be changed by anyone other than the teacher provided 13 that: 14 15 A. It is adequately documented. 16 17 B It is based on achievement 18 19 C. It is consistent with school and/or District rules. 20 Section 41 – Ownership of Materials 21 22 23 The Board recognizes that employees under contract to the District may, in carrying out their 24 professional responsibilities, develop materials related to their work. It is understood by the 25 Board and the employees that such materials developed as a part of regular employment are the 26 property of the District. It is also understood that materials created during the leisure hours when 27 an employee is not fulfilling contractual duties to the District are the property of the employee. ARTICLE VII – STAFF DEVELOPMENT 28 29 Section 42 – Professional Development 30 31 32 To ensure that professional development is appropriate, the District has a District-wide 33 <u>Professional Growth Committee (PGC)</u>. The parties agree that professional development should 34 be aligned with District goals, the District's Strategic Plan and the District's School 35 Improvement Plans. Professional Development shall be relevant and meaningful, resulting in 36 acquisition, enhancement, and refinement of skills and knowledge which further student 37 learning. 38 39 The District and the Association shall form a committee consisting of eight (8) District and eight 40 (8) Association representatives made up of elementary, humanities, math, science, electives, 41 ESA, special education, and at-large unless the chairs mutually agree upon a change in the

makeup of the committee. In addition the Association President or designee and a District leader

shall be the co-chairs of the committee and agree on the membership of the committee annually.

42

1 The Professional Growth Committee shall meet a minimum of seven (7) times per year. The 2 meetings schedule shall be set by the co-chairs of the committee, and minutes will be made 3 available on the District website after each meeting. The committee shall use data, including an 4 annual survey of certificated staff, to critique and appraise the professional development system 5 and make recommendations on the following, but not limited to: 6 7 Mentoring 8 9 • Best practices for curriculum, instruction and professional development 10 11 Alignment of professional development with teacher evaluation and student learning 12 13 • Alignment of professional development system with certification requirements 14 15 • Use of Professional Growth funds that are in accordance with the guidelines 16 established by TEA 17 18 Coordination of professional development opportunities 19 Section 43 – Optional Days 20 21 22 Each regularly-contracted full-time certificated employee shall be entitled to seven (7) optional 23 days at seven (7) hours of per diem rate, based on the employee's placement on the combined salary schedule (base + personal responsible stipend), days as follows: 24 25 Two (12) Building-based days (14 hours) 26 Three (3) District-based days (21 hours) 27 Two (2) Individually-directed days (14 hours) Optional days may be worked exclusive of meals, breaks and sign-in procedures as applicable. 28 29 Professional Development offered by the District will provide for clock hours whenever clock 30 hours can be given pursuant to OSPI guidelines. 31 Regularly contracted employees who work less than full time shall be entitled to a prorated 32 number of optional days. 33 **Building-based:** Building-based optional days are utilized for building-based extra work consistent with options established by the SCDM team or by a consensus of the staff. The 34 SCDM committee will solicit input from staff prior to creating a professional development 35 36 training schedule. Appropriate professional development activities include but are not limited to 37 the following: those which support the implementation of, building-based programs and School Improvement Plans (SIP), student learning plans, training or preparation for a new assignment, 38 39 diploma requirements, goals established pursuant to teaching and learning standards as identified 40 in evaluation documents (Appendix XI) or Professional Certification requirements, action research, teacher leadership (i.e. training for mentors, reading coaches, instructional facilitators, 41

- 1 etc.), team planning, preparation for the opening or closing of the school year, implementing
- 2 curriculum materials and instructional strategies, parent involvement and conferencing, and
- 3 improving student achievement and attendance.
- 4 **District-based:** District-based optional days are utilized for district-based extra work
- 5 consistent with options established by the Professional and Organizational Development
- 6 Advisory Committee (PODAC). Appropriate professional development activities include but
- 7 are not limited to the following: goals established pursuant to teaching and learning standards as
- 8 identified in evaluation documents (Appendix XI) and/or Professional Certification
- 9 requirements, action research, mentor and/or instructional facilitator training, curriculum
- alignment, implementation of technology to enhance instruction, differentiated or sequential
- curriculum components necessary to implement District initiatives, and SIP plans. The District
- will schedule District-offered professional development activities on waiver days or within the
- employee workday as an option for employees who prefer not to use optional days to obtain
- required training. These offerings may have limited capacity and be offered to those employees
- registering first. A calendar of approved District curriculum optional days training shall be made
- available to staff on or before the second (2nd) Friday of each school year and shall be updated
- 17 regularly.
- In addition to the District-approved list, other Professional Development proposals for activities
- including external training that supports the district-based work will be submitted to the
- 20 Curriculum and Instruction Office for approval. Employees must submit proposals for pre-
- approval a minimum of five (5) workdays prior to the start of the activity or class. A form for
- this purpose will be available to all employees.
- 23 If the employee's request is denied, the employee may submit a written appeal to the denied
- proposal within five (5) workdays to the Assistant Superintendent of K-12 and the TEA
- 25 President. The Assistant Superintendent and TEA President will confer and render a decision in
- writing to the employee within ten (10) workdays.
- 27 **Individually-directed:** Individually-directed optional days are utilized by the employee as
- 28 individually determined.
- 29 Usage and Reporting: August 15 will be the cut-off date for the reporting of optional days
- worked in the prior school year except as follows: Buildings and departments may conduct
- 31 optional day activities after August 15 and before the first required contract day of the next
- 32 school year, these days, as well as individual days, shall be allowed to be counted and reported
- by the participating employees provided that they are reported no later than September 15.
- Optional days for the upcoming school year may be worked prior to the start of school, but not
- before August 15 and should be reported for payment after September 1.
- 36 The District and Association will annually publish mutually agreed upon guidelines for optional
- 37 day use and reporting.

### **Section 44 – Professional Growth Funds**

In each year of the Agreement \$150,000 shall be made available for employee-directed professional growth. Allowable expenditures will be reimbursed pursuant to guidelines established by Tacoma Education Association. Guidelines and reimbursement applications are available to bargaining unit members in the TEA Office. An annual report shall be submitted to the District no later than September 30 of each year outlining the details of fund expenditures. The Association indemnifies and holds harmless the District for any loss or liability incurred by the District in providing this fund to the Association.

### ARTICLE VIII – CONDITIONS OF WORK

### **Section 45 – Calendar-Term of Employment**

School Year Calendar: The calendar shall be established within parameters which have been negotiated by the District and the Association. Staff and community input will be sought and used, along with state law, to substantially inform the development of each series of calendars. The series will include calendars for the duration of the collective bargaining agreement plus one (1) year. Large-scale community events, legislative action(s), and natural disasters may impact and require adjustments to the calendars.

The number of student days in the calendar will be consistent with all requirements regarding both total days of instruction and with regard to minimum instructional contact time for students.

The Wednesday prior to Thanksgiving will be a non-school, non-work day.

**PRS Days:** Professional Responsibility Days as set forth in Section 21 (B) require attendance. If an employee has an emergency he/she should request an exception by contacting the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources.

**Make-up Days:** Three (3) make up days for District-wide school closure shall be designated in the adopted calendar. When make-up days are necessary to meet the required number of student days, school closure days shall be made up in the order they were missed, i.e., the first available make-up day will be used for the first day of closure, and the make-up time shall not increase the previously established time in the calendar. In the event the Tacoma Public Schools are closed by the Superintendent in excess of the three (3) designated make-up days, negotiations shall begin within five (5) school days after schools are reopened to amend the school year calendar to ensure the required number of student days. If within ten (10) school days mutually agreeable make-up days are not arrived at, they will be scheduled at the end of the school year. In the event a closure only affects part(s) of the District, the parties will meet as stated above to identify the make-up days.

**Non-School Assignments:** Employees not assigned to a school/level will work the days on the school calendar which most closely correlates with the school/level at which they perform a preponderance of their duties.

**Early Dismissal Days:** The last day of school will be an early dismissal day for students. Employees will be released thirty (30) minutes after students are released. Employees not assigned to a school building will work the same number of hours as high school personnel.

**Conference Days:** Elementary and middle, and high school conference days may be flexibly scheduled with the approval of the <u>Superintendent or designee</u> to accommodate attendance by parents or in response to individual scheduling needs.

1 2

**Student Year Waiver Days:** The parties agree the District <u>may</u> make application for a state waiver of up to five student instructional days in each year of this Agreement. These days will be regular work days for employees as set forth in Section <u>47</u>. Placement of these days in the calendar is subject to the process outlined above in this section as part of establishing the school year calendar.

**Purpose:** The primary purpose of these days is for building-based activities that include the entire staff in supporting the implementation of School Improvement Plans, improvement of instruction and improvement of building leadership capacity. Building-based activities will be based on the goals of the School Improvement Plan and developed through the SCDM with input from the SIP team. It is the intention of the parties that these waiver days will eliminate the need to schedule required time beyond the contract day or during planning time for these activities.

The District will schedule District-offered professional development activities on these days as an option for employees who prefer not to use optional days to obtain required training. These offerings will have limited capacity and be offered to those employees registering first. These District-based activities will be scheduled at times which do not unduly fragment staff participation in building-based activities. They will be scheduled sufficiently far in advance that buildings can plan their activities around District activities. With input from staff involved, the District will develop professional development activities for itinerant employees for whom building-based activities are not relevant. District-based activities will be developed through the Professional and Organizational Development Advisory Committee (PODAC).

The parties will meet no later than March 15 of each year of the Agreement to evaluate the implementation of this provision. Either party may reopen this section with written notice by February 1 of each subsequent year, in order to provide an opportunity to review implementation of the waiver days and determine whether to continue to utilize up to five (5) waiver days prior to the establishment of the calendar for the next school year.

### **Section 46 – Non-Teaching Work Assignments**

 Necessary non-teaching work assignments such as recordkeeping and due process paperwork shall be kept to a minimum so the certificated professional's time can be directed to working with students directly. Reasonable effort will be made to facilitate this through appropriate use of technology.

### **Section 47 – Professional Work Day Provisions**

**Work Day:** Employees assigned to a school shall work a straight seven and one-half (7½) hour day inclusive of not less than a thirty (30) minute duty free lunch period exclusive of passing time. Passing time shall also apply to Elementary Specialists. This shall be considered the professional work day. No teacher will be required to teach outside the regular student day.

An employee, upon leaving word in the office, may leave his/her place of duty during lunch. An employee may leave his/her assigned building during the work day with the approval of the building administrator or supervisor.

Employees on the Salary Schedule for Teachers who work at the Central Administration Building will work a seven (7) hour day exclusive of lunch. Lunch period will be mutually agreed to by the employee and his or her immediate supervisor.

Adjustments in the Student Day shall be made in order to meet the minimum student contact time required by the Basic Education Act.

**Alternate Schedule:** Employees at school sites may voluntarily work an alternate schedule subject to review by the Site-Centered Decision-Making process and administrative approval when such a schedule is in response to program needs and services.

**Itinerant Teachers:** In order for itinerant teachers to be most effective in their duties, it is agreed that their schedules shall include no less than thirty (30) minutes for lunch, and sufficient time for traveling from one (1) assignment location to another. Travel time will include the time it takes to exit one place of duty and arrive at the second place of duty.

**Staff Meetings:** Staff meetings should be held for the purpose of discussing methods of teaching, discipline, and management and for the consideration of methods for the improvement of the school.

Employees are also required to attend not more than eight (8) staff meetings which extend up to forty-five (45) minutes beyond the professional work day; up to ten (10) minutes of the agenda will be reserved for joint Association-principal conversations. Meetings shall be scheduled with advance notice to staff. This shall not preclude meetings being scheduled during the professional work day.

Whenever possible, agendas will be provided for meetings at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance. However, additional announcements or items may be added, at any time, to the agenda. Employees may recommend items for the agenda.

**School-wide Supervision:** School-wide supervision, school activities and control will be shared equitably by all staff members. The SCDM process shall be used to establish a procedure to insure equitable participation.

**Delayed Start due to Hazardous Conditions:** In the event of a delayed start of school, certificated staff or work sites impacted by such a change in schedule shall make a good faith effort to arrive at work at the normal start time. However, if due to hazardous driving conditions, the employee is unable to arrive on time there shall be no deduction of leave time or loss of pay provided the employee arrives one-half (½) hour prior to the altered start of the student school day. In the event school(s) are dismissed early due to inclement weather, certificated staff shall be released one-half (½) hour after the student dismissal.

1 2

### **Section 48 – Planning Periods**

Being prepared each day to provide their students with worthwhile learning experiences is a major responsibility of classroom teachers. To this end, it is recognized that all employees are required to make adequate preparations for meeting their responsibilities.

Individual Planning is self-directed by the teacher without other assigned duties. This could include, but is not limited to, lesson planning, parent communication, materials preparation and student evaluation.

A. Planning times shall be provided during the professional work day as follows:

 1. Secondary school employees with full time assignments shall have the equivalent of one (1) class period (not less than fifty (50) minutes) each school day to be used for educational planning. Schools seeking a waiver from this language shall use the waiver process found in Section 17 of this agreement. Waivers cannot reduce planning time below two hundred and fifty (250) minutes per week.

2. All full-time certificated elementary employees shall have a minimum of two hundred and fifty (250) minutes per five (5) day week for the purpose of educational planning. Each employee shall have at least one (1) continuous thirty (30) minute planning period on each full student day, amounting to a total of at least one hundred and fifty (150) minutes per five day week. In addition, the remaining one hundred (100) minutes shall be provided in no less than twenty (20) consecutive minute blocks.

3. Part-time employees shall have weekly minute educational planning time allotments pro-rated by the length of their assignment and the allotment of planning time at their grade level for full-time employees. Planning time shall be in blocks of time of no less than twenty (20) minutes.

No regular, required meetings will be scheduled during planning time.

Elementary planning periods shall be assigned during the student instructional day and shall be exclusive of elementary conference days, the thirty (30) minute duty free lunch, travel time between assignments. The planning time provision is not in effect on non-student days.

- B. ESA personnel assigned to more than one location shall have planning time allocated proportionally to the time assigned to each school or program site. Planning time shall be in blocks of time of no less than twenty (20) minutes. The planning time schedule shall be developed in consultation with the appropriate principal(s) or supervisor(s).
- C. Planning periods shall not be assigned during the Board Policy designated thirty (30) minutes at the beginning and end of the professional work day.

### **Section** <u>49</u> – **Staff Protection**

- **A. Safety Initiatives:** In order to assure a safe learning environment for students and staff and to affirm a commitment to zero tolerance for weapons and violence in the Tacoma Public Schools, the District and the Association agree that the following initiatives will be implemented over the duration of the Agreement.
  - 1. A needs assessment of school safety involving students, staff and parents will be undertaken as needed. The needs assessment shall include building security and operational procedures, staff access to phones for emergency communications, District-wide policies on school safety, and emergency procedures as needed.
  - 2. Best practices and promising approaches in violence prevention training shall be made available to staff.

#### **B.** Preservation of order in the Schools:

- 1. An employee may use such force as is necessary for self-protection from attack or to prevent injury to another person (adult or student).
- 2. The District shall give priority consideration to the utilization of appropriate security personnel at functions such as athletic events, school plays, concerts, and other school functions to maintain discipline and order.
- 3. Employees will not, nor shall they be asked or required to, search students, lockers or student possessions.
- **C. Threats to Safety:** Employees who are threatened with bodily harm by any individual or any group, while carrying out their occupational obligations shall immediately notify the building principal or supervisor. The principal or supervisor shall notify the <u>designated Level Director</u> of the threat and take immediate steps in cooperation with the employees to provide every reasonable precaution for their safety. Precautionary steps shall be reported to the <u>designated Level Director</u> at the earliest possible time.
- **D.** L & I Disability: Upon determination by the Washington Department of Labor and Industries that an employee has been physically disabled by a job related injury

 or illness because of an assault on the employee's person arising out of and/or in the course of the employee's employment, the District will grant the injured employee leave of absence with normal contract pay for the duration of the injury or illness, not to exceed twelve (12) months, with no reduction in accumulated sick leave.

- 1. The injured or ill employee shall undergo such medical examinations by qualified examiners as requested by the District. When found fit for duty the employee shall return to duty pursuant to the rules and procedures of and standards set by the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries, except that placement in a position shall be pursuant to the terms of the Agreement; provided, however, the District is authorized to establish a modified duty assignment to accommodate the employee until said employee is released to assume regular duties.
- 2. The employee shall, as a condition of receiving benefits under Section <u>49</u> (D), Staff Protection, L&I Disability, execute an assignment of the proceeds of any judgment or settlement in any third (3rd) party action arising from such injury or illness in amount of compensation received pursuant to Section <u>49</u> (D), Staff Protection, L & I Disability, but not to exceed the amount of such proceeds. Such assignment shall be in the form prescribed by the Prosecuting Attorney's Office of Pierce County.
- **E. District Liability Insurance:** The District shall protect employees by maintaining a standard comprehensive bodily injury and property damage public liability insurance contract in the amount of \$1,000,000 per occurrence.

It is further agreed that the Board will not surrogate its rights to the insurance carrier for any claim paid as a result of a loss occurring while the employees are acting within the scope of their duties as employees, whether such duties were expressed in the employment contract or implied because of the nature of the employment, whether such duties were performed during the regular duty hours or for the extracurricular activities outside of the regular duty hours.

The District recognizes its obligation to provide insurance under RCW 28A.400.370. In the event of a repeal or amendment of that statute during the life of this Agreement, the District agrees to continue in effect the insurance provided under that statute for the remaining life of this Agreement.

- **F. Personal Public Liability Insurance:** It is the personal responsibility of an employee who uses her/his personal automobile in the performance of duties to carry public liability insurance for bodily injury and property damage. The Board cannot be obligated to provide insurance for the employee's vehicle on a first party basis.
- **G. Medical Professional Liability Protection:** The District shall provide School District psychologists, nurses, occupational therapists, physical therapists, and all others who perform medical services as part of their duties with medical professional liability protection in the amount of \$250,000 per occurrence to a

maximum of \$1,000,000 per policy year. In the event that the present coverage for psychologists is canceled by the insurance carrier, this item is subject to immediate renegotiations.

### **H.** Vehicle Damage/Loss Provisions:

When an employee's vehicle is damaged in a school setting or in the course of employment (i.e. typical work hours), the District will reimburse the employee, to a maximum of \$1,000 per incident, for damage caused to his/her personal vehicle. Damage caused by the employee's negligence will not be covered. Damage to an employee's vehicle by the District, or as the result of a District action, will be fully covered.

#### Procedures for submitting a claim:

- 1. Notify your supervisor and site security immediately.
- 2. <u>Notify police, and get a report or an incident/case number within forty-eight (48) hours of the event.</u>
- 3. <u>Complete an Employee Personal Property Loss/Damage claim form</u> (Appendix V).
- 4. Attach the police report or provide the incident/case number, along with a description of the damage, and a repair cost estimate of the damage.
- 5. <u>Submit information to the District's Risk Management department within</u> thirty (30) calendar days of the incident.

<u>Damage in excess of \$1,000 may be submitted to the employee's insurance for</u> reimbursement.

### I. Personal Property Damage/Loss Provisions:

The District will reimburse an employee for damage or loss of personal property, vehicles excluded, or personal instructional/educational equipment used by the employee in the course of his/her employment pursuant to the following conditions. When this loss occurs through no fault of his/her own, the District will reimburse the employee to a maximum of \$1,000 per incident. Reimbursement shall be based upon a reasonable estimate of current value. The District may, at the District's discretion, require an employee to show reasonable evidence of theft or damage. An employee must take reasonable care to protect his/her personal or instructional/educational equipment.

#### Procedures for submitting a claim:

- 1. Notify your supervisor and site security immediately.
- 2. <u>Notify police and get a report or an incident/case number within forty-eight (48) hours of the event.</u>

1		3.	Complete an Employee Personal Property Loss/Damage claim form
2			(Appendix V).
2 3		4.	Attach the police report or provide the incident/case number, along with a
4			description of the damage or loss, and a repair or replacement cost
5			estimate of the damage(s) to or loss of the property.
6		5.	Submit information to the District's Risk Management department within
7			thirty (30) calendar days of the incident.
8			
9		Damage i	n excess of \$1,000 may be submitted to the employee's insurance for
10		reimburse	
11			<del></del>
12		Damage f	hat occurs to District equipment/property, due to employee negligence, will
13		_	sed on the District Equipment Theft/Damaged/Loss Report, unless covered
14			provisions of the Required Transportation of Equipment. The employee
15			lled for the repairs or replacement of the damaged equipment/property.
16		may oc or	near for the repairs of repracement of the damaged equipment property.
17	т	Madical	Emergencies: In the event of a medical emergency, school staff shall
18	J.		e appropriate medical or emergency personnel and notify the appropriate
19			ator(s). In addition, the District shall make available to all staff written
			es for seeking such assistance when necessary. Staff acting in emergency
20		1	
21			will be afforded legal protection by the District except in cases of
22		negngenc	e or unlawful activity as determined by the Board of Directors.
23	<b>T</b> 7	<b>CI</b> .	
24	K.		ng Intermittent Catheterization: No employee(s) other than
25			ed school nurses and special education personnel currently assigned to serve
26			impaired students shall be required to provide cleansing intermittent
27			zation (CIC). Any training required in CIC for such personnel shall be
28			at no cost to the employee. For all open positions that require CIC, such
29		requireme	ent shall be specified in the job posting.
30			
31	Section	50 - Cc	overing Classes
32	Section	<u>20</u> 00	yvering classes
33	Δ	Class Co	nverage
33	110	Class C	, veruge
34			
35		1. The p	rincipal or his/her designee may request employees holding valid teaching
36		certifi	cates to cover classes in cases of emergency or when arrangements for a
37		regula	r substitute cannot be made either because of a time factor or the
38			ilability of a qualified substitute.
39			
40		2. An en	nergency is understood to mean a sudden condition or state of affairs calling
41			mediate action. If it is evident that the emergency will extend beyond one-
42			/2) hour and if time will permit a substitute to serve at least two (2) hours of
43			hool day, a qualified substitute will be immediately called.
44			

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

- 3. Arrangements for class coverage may be made between teachers with the building principal's approval.
- 4. Student teachers and non-certificated personnel may be used to cover classes only in an emergency situation. Except in unusual circumstances, student teachers and non-certificated personnel shall not cover classes other than those to which they are regularly assigned.
- 5. The Board agrees that any District-wide effort to use classroom teachers, itinerant teachers, librarians, student teachers, counselors and personnel other than regular substitutes to cover absences of teachers for the purpose of avoiding the usual costs for substitutes shall first be subject to the negotiations process.

### **B.** Loss of Planning/Overloads

Due to unavailability of a substitute, staff members, including specialists, who are required by the principal to cover for another teacher, resulting in a loss of their contractually guaranteed planning time, or are required by the principal/supervisor to cover a class or a portion thereof in addition to their own, resulting in a class size which exceeds negotiated lids, regardless of loss of planning time, shall be paid in the following manner:

More than fifteen (15) minutes/less than one (1) hour	\$30.00	
One (1) hour to three (3) hours	\$65	
Three (3) hours or more	Substitute Daily Rate	

At the beginning of the school year the principal/supervisor shall seek names of volunteer staff members willing to provide such coverage. Staff members who do not wish to provide such coverage shall only be required to do so in the event of an emergency when no other certificated or classified staff members are available.

### **Section 51 – Special Education**

The District and the Association recognize the right of each student to be educated in an environment appropriate to his/her needs.

For students eligible to receive special education and related services, the IEP shall indicate the services to be provided. The inclusion of students with disabilities in the general educational program requires cooperation and communication between general and special education staff.

Prior to the entry <u>of a student with disabilities</u> into the general classroom, the receiving teacher shall be provided with information regarding the student's special needs.

- 4 The format and procedure for sharing such information shall be determined at each school/site.
- 5 The general education teacher and <u>specialists are</u> considered valuable partners in the IEP process.
- 6 Students with disabilities who are included in general and specialist classrooms shall be counted
- 7 in the class count of the general teacher and specialist for the portion of the day they are included
- 8 in the class. For students placed on interim IEPs, the designated program manager shall be
- 9 responsible for sharing relevant and appropriate information with the receiving school.

If, in the judgment of the general education teacher <u>or specialist</u>, a student with disabilities is not profiting from a placement or the student is creating a substantial disruption to the educational process, the teacher may request an IEP meeting to discuss the student's placement, request assistance and/or recommend that consideration be given to modifying the IEP, consistent with federal, state and District rules, regulations and policies.

### **IEP Meetings**

Any employee required to attend an IEP meeting that occurs outside the regular work day shall be compensated at the per diem, based on the employee's placement on the base salary schedule, hourly rate for the accumulated hours rounded off to the nearer thirty (30) minutes. Claims shall be submitted the last working day of the pay period following the pay period in which the time was worked.

### **Section 52 – Student Discipline/Administrative Responsibility**

The District shall assure that an administrator or <u>identified</u> designee shall be available to respond to emergency situations at each school and program site during the student school day.

A. Enforcement: Student discipline will be enforced fairly and consistently based on the infraction, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, national origin, or ancestry, the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, or age. Corporal punishment, which is defined as any act which willfully causes the infliction of physical pain on a student, is prohibited.

B. Cause for Discipline: Sufficient cause for discipline will be:

1. Verbal or physical threats, intimidation or assault or interference with an employee by use of force or violence.

2. Failure by a <u>student</u> to comply with written rules and regulations established by the District; or

3. Failure by a <u>student</u> to comply with the instructions of an employee made within the scope of his/her authority; or

- 4. Failure by a student to submit to the reasonable disciplinary actions of employees; or
- 5. Conduct which materially and substantially interferes with the educational process; or
- 6. Failure to identify oneself upon request by an employee in the school building, on school grounds, or at school sponsored events.

# **C. Authority to Discipline:** Employees shall have the authority to discipline <u>students</u> under their supervision within the following limits:

- 1. Employees shall administer discipline pursuant to federal and state laws and regulations.
- 2. An employee may use such force as is necessary for self-protection from attack or to prevent injury to another person.
- 3. Disciplinary Removal from Class or Activity Period: Employees are empowered to exclude students from the classroom or activity area under certain conditions. Employees may exclude a student under their supervision who is creating a disruption of the educational process or who is in violation of the building disciplinary standards.

The student may be excluded for all or any portion of the school day or until the principal or principal's designee and the employee have conferred within the limitations contained herein.

#### Limitations:

- a. Except in emergency circumstances as provided in WAC <u>392-400-290</u>, the employee shall have first (1st) attempted one or more alternative forms of corrective actions.
- b. The consent of the employee will be required if any excluded student is returned to a particular class or activity from which the student was initially excluded during the same class or activity period.
- c. In the case of an assault on a staff member, the student, at the recommendation of the employee, shall be removed from the employee's class and a disciplinary transfer will be initiated unless otherwise prohibited by state or federal law. In the case of an assault by a student who is not assigned to the employee, a disciplinary transfer will be initiated at the recommendation of the staff member unless otherwise prohibited by state or federal law.

In cases in which a student's conduct substantially disrupts the classroom, a student may be sent immediately to the school office by the employee without corrective action.

8

12 13 14

15

11

21 22

23 24

25

20

30

31

36

37

38

39

40

41 42 43

44

45

46

Generally, conduct that rises to the level of substantial disruption is conduct that essentially prevents instructional activities from occurring, regardless of efforts to remediate the conduct of concern, unless state law dictates otherwise.

Discipline Report: In cases in which the employee sends a student to the school office, a discipline report explaining the facts of the misconduct shall be sent to the principal/designee.

The discipline report shall provide descriptions of problem behavior prior to intervention, punishment or remediation. Documentation of an incident must be sent to the principal or designee as soon thereafter as possible, but not later than the end of the professional work day.

4. The employee may, at any time, request in writing that an alternative class assignment, disciplinary contract or specific assistance be provided for a student whose conduct or misbehavior warrants a recommendation for change. Such request shall include a documentation of the behavior and a list of the types of corrective action already taken.

### **D.** Administrative Response:

- 1. When a written report is sent to the principal or other school administrator regarding student discipline, a request for alternative class assignment and/or specific assistance, or recommendation for suspension or expulsion, the principal or school administrator shall respond to the employee in writing concerning the action taken, contacts made with the parents or guardians, and any conditions imposed on the student's return to class. Response to the request will be made within five (5) school days and include a plan of action to support the student.
- 2. When school authorities endeavor to correct misconduct or misbehavior through counseling and/or conferencing with the student and his/her parents, the employee will be notified and be involved upon his/her request.
- **E. Recommending Suspension/Expulsion:** If, in the employee's judgment, student conduct warrants suspension or expulsion of the student, the employee shall make written recommendation accordingly to the building administrator. Suspension may also be recommended by the employee when he/she reasonably believes that the student is an immediate and continuing danger to himself/herself, other students, employees, school administrators or the educational process of the student's school. Any recommendation must include specific examples and/or documentation of the disruptive or disorderly conduct.
- **F. Special Education Discipline:** The District will comply with all pertinent state and federal laws and Board Policy when disciplining special education students. Upon request, the regular education classroom teacher directly impacted by a special education student's disruptive behavior will be given input into the IEP process and will have his/her concerns considered prior to the placement or change of placement of a special

education student. Within the IEP process, which includes a meeting of the parent, teacher and District representative who is qualified to provide or supervise special education services, a plan may be established for the discipline of a specific behavior in order to reach behavior goals. This plan may include removal from school for specified amounts of time as a part of the IEP. The statements of Student Rights, Responsibilities and Regulations are not to be used when following the IEP plan as the IEP itself will prescribe the disciplinary procedures. Either the appropriate school personnel or the parent may request a new IEP meeting if either finds that the plan is not satisfactory or in need of revision. In the absence of a specific IEP discipline plan, all other items of Section 53 Student Discipline/Administrative Responsibility will apply.

**G. Assault of Employee:** If a student assaults an employee, intimidates by threat of force or violence, or interferes with an employee by use of force or violence, in addition to appropriate disciplinary action, the District will report the incident to the proper law enforcement agency.

**H. Building Discipline Review:** School principals will meet with the employees annually to establish and/or review building disciplinary standards and procedures to ensure uniform enforcement of building standards.

**I. Staff <u>Information</u>:** The District shall provide <u>information to all employees</u> annually concerning all applicable federal, state and local laws and District rules, regulations and procedures pertaining to student rights, employee rights, due process and the processing of student discipline.

**J. Major Incidents:** Major incident reports relative to weapons incidents, violent acts, and/or incidents which result in intervention by District Security personnel or the police department shall be <u>communicated</u> to TEA within twenty-four (24) hours of the incident and shall be reviewed on a regular basis with Association leadership.

**K. State Law** provides <u>that</u> whenever a minor enrolled in school is convicted in adult criminal court, adjudicated, or entered into a diversion agreement with the juvenile court on any of the following offenses, the court must notify the principal of the child's school of the disposition of the case:

- 1. A violent offense (includes weapons)
- 2. A sex offense
  - 3. Inhaling toxic fumes
- 4. A controlled substance violation
- 5. A liquor violation
- 6. Assault and other crimes involving physical harm
- 7. Kidnapping, unlawful imprisonment, custodial interference
  - 8. Harassment
  - 9. Arson, reckless burning, malicious mischief

The principal shall provide the information received to every teacher of the student and any other personnel who, in the judgment of the principal, supervise the student or for security purposes should be aware of the student's record. Any information received by a school principal or school personnel is confidential and may not be further disseminated except as provided in RCW 28A.225.330, other applicable statutes or case law, and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. 

### **Section 53 – Documentation of Incidents**

Any incident which will adversely affect the status of a student shall be adequately documented. This should include date, time, place and witnesses. In addition, any other pertinent facts that clarify the incident should be included.

### Section 54 – Employee Duties and Responsibilities

It is the responsibility of employees:

- A. To work in accordance with their job description.
  - B. To take into consideration the individual differences of students.

### **Section 55 – Physical Facilities**

- A. The District shall provide a minimum of one (1) staff room in each school.
- B. The District will endeavor to provide suitable facilities for all employees. Facilities will include the following:
  - 1. Work space reasonably free from distractions and interruptions.
  - 2. A work surface, a locking file, a computer, and adequate storage space for educational material.
  - 3. A telephone available for use when confidentiality is required.
  - 4. Reasonable effort will be made so Speech Language Pathologist (SLP) therapy rooms include water to meet standards for universal precautions and for use during therapy. Hand disinfectant, gloves and other items needed for disinfecting and universal precautions will be available where needed.
- C. On an annual basis, the District will review space utilization at school sites. Such review shall consider suitability of work space for all employees and any safety concerns which have been raised by staff.

### **Section 56 – School Construction**

When the District establishes a Building Advisory Committee to develop a bond issue election, the Superintendent shall appoint at least four (4) designees to the committee from a list of seven (7) recommended to the Superintendent by the President of the Association.

When the proposed construction pertains to a particular school, the Superintendent shall appoint at least three (3) members of the school's faculty from a list of five (5) recommended to the Superintendent by the President of the Association to the building planning committee.

There are no limitations in the appointment of other members to the aforementioned committees.

### **Section 57 – Student Teachers**

A. The teachers in the District acknowledge their professional responsibility to participate in and give leadership to the student teacher practicum.

B. A teacher shall have taught at least three (3) years before being assigned a student teacher.

C. A teacher shall have taught at least one (1) year in the District before being assigned a student teacher

D. Teachers requesting a student teacher shall make application through their building principal.

E. Teachers requesting a student teacher will be advised by letter from the Human Resources Department of action on their application.

F. The cooperating teacher is responsible for the class and the program even though a student teacher may be conducting the class.

G. Teachers should have only one (1) student teacher a year. Any exception to this practice must be approved by the teacher, principal and the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources Department.

H. The District will negotiate with the Association any change(s) in honoraria paid cooperating teachers.

## Section <u>58</u> – Scheduling, Secondary Schools

A. Before the District makes any changes to the format (periods per day or semester/quarter) in a secondary school, the District will notify the Association; the Association shall have ten (10) days to initiate negotiations in accordance with Chapter 41.59 RCW. In the event

1 the Association does not initiate negotiations, the District shall be free to make said 2 format changes immediately. 3 4 B. Individual schools, however, may initiate changes in format subject to District approval; 5 provided, however, such changes have been approved through the building's SCDM 6 process or have the written approval of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the 7 certificated employees in the school and are consistent with the District's adopted 8 curriculum and the appropriate provisions of the Basic Education Act. 9 10 C. Each spring enrollment projections shall be shared with the Association and SCDM teams for the purposes of developing master schedules, allocating resources and planning 11 12 for the successful transition and assignment of students. Building master schedules may 13 include alternative workday schedules for employees, with their written consent, 14 consistent with the provisions set forth in Section 17. 15 **Section 59 – Job Description** 16 17 18 A copy of the District's organizational chart is available upon request from the Public 19 Information Office and existing job descriptions within the bargaining units shall be sent to the 20 TEA office. 21 22 Before changes are made to the existing job descriptions within the bargaining unit, the 23 recommendations of the Association will be considered. 24 25 No duties presently performed by bargaining unit members shall be transferred to other District 26 employees, nor contracted with outside vendors. 27 ARTICLE IX – CLASS SIZE/STAFFING 28 29 30 **Section 60 – Regarding Reduction in Staff** 31 32 33 In the event of a reduction in staff, the class size and lids shall be increased proportionate to the 34 reduction in certificated teaching staff. 35 **Section 61 – Elementary Schools (Grades K-5)** 36 37 Kindergarten teachers will be assigned to schools by the Human Resources Department using a 38 39 maximum of twenty-four (24) students per session. 40 41 Regular classroom teachers, grades 1-5, will be assigned to schools by the Human Resources 42 Department using a maximum ratio of twenty-five and three-tenths (25.3) students per building.

Learning specialists will not be included in these ratios. <u>If after the second (2<sup>nd</sup>) Friday staffing</u> numbers exceed the ratio of twenty-five and three-tenths (25.3), adjustments may be made.

No regular class shall have more than twenty-four (24) students per session in kindergarten, or more than twenty-seven (27) students at grade one (1) through two (2), and twenty-eight (28) students at grades three (3), four (4) and five (5).

There will be no first (1st) grade splits. There will be no second (2nd) grade splits without the written consent of the teacher. No split shall be assigned more than twenty-six (26) students. In schools <u>identified by the state as needing improvement</u> for two (2) consecutive years, every effort will be made to avoid assigning split classes in grades three through five (3-5).

### **Section 62 – Middle Schools (Grades 6-8)**

 Middle schools will maintain a school ratio not to exceed 23.3 students to one regular classroom teacher. School ratios are determined by dividing the total number of regular students by the number of full-time equivalent teachers with full-time teaching loads (or the appropriate proration) except those students in specialized programs.

The Middle School maximum will be twenty-eight (28) students per class. If one or more classes exceed the maximum, the daily student load will be less than twenty-six and three-tenths (26.3) times the number of periods taught exclusive of the advisory period. Music and physical education classes will not exceed thirty-four (34) students per class. No individual class shall exceed the class maximum by more than two (2) students, unless agreed to in writing by the teacher as part of the class size/daily load waiver process (Appendix VI).

### **Section 63 – High Schools (Grades 9-12)**

High school will maintain a school ratio not to exceed 25.5 students to one regular classroom teacher. School ratios are determined by dividing the total number of regular students by the number of full-time equivalent teachers with full-time teaching loads (or the appropriate proration) except for those students in specialized programs.

The class size maximum for any individual class will be thirty (30). If one or more classes exceed the maximum, the daily student load will be less than one hundred and forty-nine (149). Music and physical education classes will not exceed thirty-five (35) per class. If one or more classes exceed the maximum, the daily student load will be less than one hundred and sixty-five (165). No individual class shall exceed the limit by more than two (2) students, unless agreed to in writing by the teacher as part of the class size/daily load waiver process (Appendix VI).

### **Section 64 – General and Overload Provisions**

- Compliance will be determined using the <u>elementary classification report</u>, or middle school or
- 44 high school class schedule documents which show class loads as of the third (3rd) Friday or
- 45 fifteenth (15th) student day of each semester, whichever is later.

1 In the event that actual opening enrollment varies significantly from projections and there is an 2

undue overload in a specific department(s), adjustments will be made by the District in

3 consultation with the Tacoma Education Association by the third (3rd) Friday or fifteenth (15th) 4

student day in September, whichever is later.

5 6

7

In subsequent grading terms (semester or trimester), adjustments will be made no later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the term in order to comply with class size provisions.

8 Individual staff and class counts by school will be supplied to the Tacoma Education Association

- 9 by October 15 and monthly thereafter. The District and Association representatives will meet at
- 10 Labor-Management meetings to discuss class load documents, review any implementation plans,

and make further necessary adjustments. 11

12 13

14

15 16

17

If the maximum ratio is exceeded at any level, adjustments may be made to, but not limited to, the following: building staffing, building duty schedules, reassignment of students, ParaEducator assistance, additional planning time, or other adjustments responsive to the class size overload. If classroom space is not available to adequately house additional teachers, the President of Tacoma Education Association and the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources/designee

18 19

shall meet with the principal and the teacher to discuss alternatives including, but not limited to.

the assignment of an additional .5 FTE certificated teacher to work directly with the teacher.

20 21

#### **Other Elementary Provisions**

22 23

24

25

26

27

28 29

30

31

If any elementary class size exceeds the contractual limits, the principal, Association representative, and impacted teacher(s) shall meet within five (5) days to determine the appropriate adjustment(s) from the following alternatives: additional full or part-time certificated staffing, reassignment of students, ParaEducator assistance, additional planning time, or other adjustments responsive to the class size overload, subject to approval by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources/designee. A recommended solution to resolve the overload shall be in place within (5) working days of this meeting. If the recommended solution is not acceptable to the employee, an appeal of the decision can be made through the peer review process set forth in Section 66. Employees who disagree with the peer review decision may appeal the decision to the Labor-Management Team.

32 33 34

#### Other Middle and High School Provisions

35 36

37

A classroom teacher may consent to exceed the maximum class and/or daily loads by completing the form "Waiver of Class Size Limits Grades 6-12" on or before the second (2nd) Friday of the semester or trimester.

38 39 40

When a middle or high school class/daily student load exceeds the maximums after the third (3rd) Friday or fifteenth (15th) day of the semester, whichever is later, one of the following will occur:

42 43 44

41

A. The program supervisor shall meet with the principal, Association representative and impacted teacher(s) to determine an appropriate adjustment(s), as indicated above; or

B. The teacher must agree to sign a waiver which stipulates the number of students the teacher agrees to accept above the contract limits within five (5) workdays of the overload occurring.

All Career and Technical Education (CTE) classes will follow the individual class size and overall caseload maximums. If CTE class size or overall caseloads are to be lower than the individual class size the Director of CTE will submit this recommendation to the building principal for approval prior to implementation (e.g. Wood Technology with a class size of twenty-four (24) for safety issues).

For purposes of determining class size maximums and load, student assistants who have been requested in writing by the teacher shall not be included in the counts.

### Section <u>65</u> – Special Education, and ESAs and Learning Specialists

A. Educational Staff Associates (ESA) includes physical therapists, occupational therapists, speech/language pathologists, psychologists, school nurses and guidance counselors.

B. Special education students shall be assigned to special education teachers as follows: No special education class shall exceed twelve (12) students at a time except learning resource classes, where no class may exceed sixteen (16) students at a time. For LRC teachers in grades 6-12, the average number of students per period will not exceed twelve (12). No LRC in grades K-5 will be assigned more than forty (40) students. If class size exceeds the lid, adjustments may be made through rearrangement of building staffing, reassignment of students, ParaEducator assistance at a ratio of two (2) hours per day for each student exceeding the class lid, or the assignment of additional certificated staff. Pre-school special education teachers will be assigned no more than twenty-five (25) special education students per day.

These lids may be exceeded with the recommendation of the special education teacher(s) in consultation with the building principal and designated program manager and the approval of the Superintendent.

In the event of a reduction in staff, the class size and lids shall be increased proportionate to the reduction in certificated special education teaching staff by classroom classification.

Substitute ParaEducators shall be provided at the request of the teacher when his/her regular ParaEducator cannot be present, subject to the availability of a qualified and trained substitute. The District shall endeavor to maintain a pool of substitute ParaEducators to serve students with disabilities. If there is no ParaEducator substitute available and no other ParaEducator assigned, or available to be assigned to the special education classroom for a second consecutive school day, the teacher shall be eligible for stipend of \$60.00.

31

32 33

34 35

36 37

38

39

40 41

42 43

44

45 46 Special education teacher class load information shall be made available to the Association by October 15, February 15 and May 15, annually.

C. The District shall allocate special education and ESA staffing on a fair and equitable basis, considering the handicap severity of students served, degree of itinerancy, direct service responsibilities and total student load. Caseload information for all ESA staff shall be made available to the Association by October 15 and monthly thereafter.

1. In the event of a certificated basic education teacher reduction, the \*student/teacher ratios and class size lids may be increased no more than the percentage of the reduction in certificated basic education teachers from the prior school year.

In the event that the numbers of basic education certificated teachers are increased for reasons other than an increase in student enrollment, the student/teacher ratios and class size lids shall be reduced no less than the percentage of the increase in basic education certificated teachers from the prior school year.

Prior to a staff reduction and to adjustments of student/teacher ratios and class lids, the Association shall be provided with all relevant data as to the computation of student/teacher ratios and/or lids.

- 2. Administrators will work to equalize teaching loads within subject(s)/grade level as a factor when students are scheduled.
  - \*For purposes of this Agreement, student/teacher ratios and class size lids shall be determined based upon the budget adopted by the Board in August annually.
- E. Each full-time elementary school Learning Resource Center (LRC) teacher shall be allocated five (5) days per year, within the existing contract year, to assist with administrative tasks related to the Special Education Department. Part-time elementary LRC teachers will be provided with a pro-rata portion of days.
- F. The District will provide two (2) workload assistance pools:
  - One (1) in an amount equal to ten (10) days' release time per elementary LRC teacher as established in the approved budget for the fiscal year, to support elementary Learning Resource Center (LRC) teachers with the administrative tasks/recordkeeping related to the Special Education Department. Support for parttime elementary LRC teachers will be provided on a pro-rata basis.
  - A second workload assistance pool in the amount of \$75,000 each year shall be provided to support all special education teachers and ESAs to address unusual workloads, including an unusually high or complex number of IEPs.

Requests for support shall be submitted to a Workload Relief Committee comprised of the Executive Director for Student Services and the TEA President or designee.

Funds may be authorized for, but are not limited to, Extra Pay for Extra Work, substitute time to release teachers, mentor support or additional ParaEducator time.

- <u>G.</u> At each comprehensive secondary school the Special Education Department chair, or one other member of the Special Education Department, shall be provided one additional planning period per day to assist the department with administrative tasks related to the Special Education Department.
- H. Special Education staff will receive materials and supplies yearly as appropriate to provide instruction identified on the IEP including consumable materials required by student IEP. Special Education staff will be trained yearly on how to request materials. If materials are not provided within two (2) weeks of a written request, a written explanation for the delay along with a predicted timeline will be delivered.
- <u>I.</u> Training provided to Basic Education staff will be offered to Special Education certificated staff, with modifications when appropriate.
- J. Building Student Review Team (SRT) meetings are held for no more than sixty (60) minutes per meeting and attendance of those assigned to that building is required, along with a general education representative, and any itinerant special education staff who can attend depending upon the number of other schools assigned. Additional meetings may be held at the discretion of the SRT. If a SRT meeting goes beyond the employee workday, the employee(s), building administrator, and representative of the Special Education Department will mutually decide if the employee(s) will be compensated as provided in Section 47 or by redistributing before and after instructional day time to provide meeting flexibility.
- <u>K.</u> At each comprehensive secondary school the Special Education Department chair, or one other member of the Special Education Department, shall be provided one additional planning period per day to assist the department with administrative tasks related to the Special Education Department.

#### L. Support for Testing Requirements

- 1. Special Education teachers will be assigned staff who will either substitute for them in their class or provide the accommodations required by the IEP's of those students taking state tests.
- <u>2.</u> <u>At</u> least one (1) work day and one (1) optional day opportunity for obtaining the mandatory training in this Subsection and Subsection 3 <u>will be provided</u>. The District shall train and all Special Education teachers shall attend one of these trainings in the allowable accommodations for each test.

- 3. In addition, all appropriate Special Education staff shall participate in mandatory training on the allowable alternate assessments for Special Education students.
- 4. For those students requiring the portfolio method, regular data collection should serve as part of the portfolio requirement and additional staffing assistance for journaling will be provided as appropriate. The District will continue to offer Optional Day opportunities, with clock hours, so staff may collaborate on <u>portfolio</u> tasks.
- <u>5.</u> For those students in a mixed grade level special education classroom <u>that</u> require an alternative test or performance testing, provision will be made so testing can be accomplished without negatively impacting students who are not testing.

### **Section 66 – Peer Review**

1 2

- 1. In the event that a certificated employee has concern that his/her <u>caseload/workload</u> is inequitable based on student contact hours, the academic and behavioral characteristics of students, or the lack of adequate work space, he/she may request a peer review by filing with the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources with copies to the Association and the employee's supervisor (Appendix VII).
- 2. The Peer Review Committee shall consist of the involved employee, the appropriate central office administrator, a Human Resources Department representative, an Association representative, the involved principal or designee, other personnel necessary to solve the problem(s), and at the request of the employee, another certificated colleague. The committee is to act as an intermediary agent to problem solve and examine concerns of inequitable workload.
- 3. On receipt of the request for Peer Review, the Association shall schedule a meeting of the Committee within seven (7) calendar days (timelines may be extended by mutual agreement). At the Peer meeting a timeline for resolution and/or response shall be agreed to by all the parties. Following the meeting the Association shall distribute to all committee members, with a copy to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, a summary of the recommended resolution and/or response and timeline agreed to at the meeting. The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources shall coordinate the District's response and shall respond in writing with the final outcome of the Peer Review to each member of the Peer Review Committee within five (5) business days of a final decision in the matter.
- 4. A pool of \$75,000 per year is available to fund solutions the District has concluded it can implement for inequitable workload situations analyzed in the peer review process.
- 5. The <u>Peer Review</u> process may be used by certificated staff in the classifications of speech language pathologist, occupational therapist, physical therapist and psychologist as a means to present concerns and issues regarding an individual's caseload/workload.

1 6. An individual in one of the classifications listed above may take concerns/issues of 2 caseload/workload through their respective deployment process. The individual's 3 respective ESA administrator will facilitate the process in conjunction with the 4 appropriate department head or designee. The information will be presented to the 5 program-specific Peer Review Committee and recommendations made regarding any 6 assistance to be provided and the form(s) of that assistance within seven (7) calendar 7 days. A written response with the final outcome will be sent to each Peer Review 8 Committee member, the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, and the 9 Association within five (5) business days. ARTICLE X – EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 10 11 Section 67 – Employee Contract 14

12

13

Each employee employed by the Board shall be issued a Personnel Contract Agreement which shall be in conformity with Washington State law.

15 16 17

The following statement shall be a part of the employee's Personnel Contract Agreement:

18 19

"This contract shall be subject to the terms and conditions of any agreement between the District and the appropriate exclusive bargaining representative."

20 21 22

The types of employee contracts are as follows:

23 24

25

26

#### A. Continuing Contract (Appendix VIII):

- 1. Provisional Status employee's contract will be pursuant to RCW 28A.405.220.
  - a. Provisional status employees shall be subject to nonrenewal of employment contract during the first three years unless otherwise indicated by the referenced RCW

27 28 29

b. In a non RIF Situation employees shall have access to the displacement pool

30 31 32

c. In a RIF situation

33 34 35

i. Provisional status employees who are in their first three (3) years of the profession are the first laid off in a RIF situation unless the third (3rd) year of the provisional status is waived by the Superintendent.

36

ii. Following a RIF if provisional status employees remain in the District they shall have access to the displacement pool

37 38

2. Continuing status – employee's contract will be pursuant to RCW 28A.405.210.

39 40

B. Replacement Contract:

41 42

43

1. An employee with a Personnel Contract Agreement pursuant to RCW 28A.405.900.

- 2. A replacement contract will be issued to an employee replacing a certificated employee who is on leave for at least forty-five (45) days and for the duration of such leave. 3. Each replacement contract agreement shall identify the name of the employee replaced and the anticipated duration of leave. On request, the District shall provide the Association with a list of employees on leave and list of employees who have been issued replacement contracts.
  - 4. Each replacement contract shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement.
  - 5. A person on a replacement contract of forty-five (45) or more days who has received an overall evaluation rating of proficient or distinguished and who is recommended for continued employment by the evaluator will be considered for hire pursuant to Section 80 (I) of the contract.

# **Section 68 – Supplemental Contract**

#### General Provisions:

A. Each employee with an <u>extra work</u> assignment shall be issued a supplemental contract (Appendix IX) which shall be in conformity with Washington State law.

An employee who does not desire to continue in the same extracurricular assignment for the following school year will notify the principal in writing by May 15 of the current student school year.

If an employee is not to be recommended by the principal to continue in the same extracurricular assignment the following school year for an assignment covered by this Agreement, the principal will notify said employee in writing by the end of the current student school year with the following exceptions:

- 1. When there is insufficient student participation to continue the assignment.
- 2. The District is not obligated to offer an extracurricular assignment to an employee who is transferred to another school.
- 3. An employee will not be continued in an extracurricular assignment if the assignment is not authorized. Such notification will state the reason(s) for the action. The District's decision shall not be made for arbitrary and capricious reasons.
- B. When a school assignment is made based upon an extracurricular program need, the employee and the Association will be notified in writing.
  - No employee shall be involuntarily transferred from a school so that another employee might be transferred into the school based on an extracurricular program need.

C. School Librarians: School librarians shall be provided not less than five (5) days' work at the end of the school year through released time or supplemental days or combination thereof to complete library closure activities. These days do not count toward the limit on release days requiring a substitute, unless a substitute is requested.

D. High School ESA Guidance: ESA guidance staff assigned to the high schools and alternative programs may work up to five (5) supplemental per diem, based on the employee's placement on the base salary schedule, days in support of guidance activities at his or her work site annually. The days shall be scheduled in cooperation with the principal and may be worked during vacation periods, weekends, and/or other non-work days. An additional three (3) supplemental per diem, based on the employee's placement on the base salary schedule, days are available to ESA guidance staff assigned to the high schools specifically to assist with scheduling prior to the start of school and at the semester break. These days will be scheduled with the approval of the principal and shall be worked during vacation periods, weekends, and/or other non-work days.

Guidance staff not planning to use all of their supplemental per diem days shall be permitted to pool their unused days for the use of guidance staff willing to utilize the days. The principal(s) shall collaborate with those guidance staff members willing to utilize the available pooled days to establish guidelines and work schedules for the use of the pooled days.

- E. Middle School ESA Guidance: At the middle schools, four (4) supplemental per diem, based on the employee's placement on the base salary schedule, days shall be allocated to each ESA guidance staff member.
  - In the event an individual staff member chooses not to utilize the supplemental allocation, any unused days may be utilized by other guidance staff assigned to the school.
- F. Senior Staff Opportunity: Certificated employees who give notice of their retirement on or before the March 15 prior to their retirement date shall be eligible for two (2) additional seven and one-half (7.5) hour days of work, at their per diem rate of pay, based on the employee's placement on the base salary schedule, as mutually scheduled by the employee and his/her principal/supervisor.
- G. School Psychologists: School psychologists may work up to ten (10) supplemental per diem, based on the employee's placement on the combined salary schedule (base + personal responsible stipend), days in support of their assignments annually. The days shall be scheduled in cooperation with the psychologist's supervisor and must be worked during vacation periods, weekends, and/or other non-student days.

#### **Section 69 – Teachers on Special Assignment**

<u>Teachers on Special Assignment (TOSAs) include, but are not limited to, positions such as deans, instructional facilitators, and instructional coaches. TOSAs may be released from part or all of their classroom teaching duties to support students and staff.</u>

<u>These positions</u> shall be selected pursuant to Article XII of this Agreement. <u>TOSAs</u> will be deployed through the appropriate department and may be assigned to buildings consistent with goals established through the building SCDM.

<u>TOSAs</u> will remain in the TEA bargaining unit and shall be prohibited from participating in the evaluation and/or assessment of other members of the bargaining unit. Information about the performance of individual members of the bargaining unit which is obtained through or by any <u>TOSA shall</u> not be used in the evaluation of any member or members of the bargaining unit. The District shall <u>consult with TEA before assigning a TOSA</u> to an administrative position in any building <u>to</u> which they were <u>assigned</u> in the previous year.

TEA and TPS <u>will review</u> guidelines for the selection and deployment of facilitators <u>on an</u> annual basis.

# **Section 70 – Personnel Files**

A. The District personnel files on any employee in the possession of the District shall be subject to review at reasonable times by the employee.

B. Principal/Supervisor working files

Any file kept by the principal/supervisor on an employee is considered a working file. Employees shall be able to review their working file upon request. An employee may request the deletion of a document from their working file at any time. If <u>the</u> supervisor refuses, then the employee may file an appeal to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources.

C. Any critical written matter or any commendatory items shall be shared with the employee prior to its inclusion in the District personnel file and shall be signed or initialed by the employee as proof of knowledge of its entry. Any complaint not signed by the employee cannot be used for either investigative or disciplinary files.

D. Materials reviewed by an employee and judged by the employee to be derogatory to his/her service, character, or personality may be answered and/or refuted by the employee in writing. Such written response shall be permanently attached to said materials and shall become a part of his/her District personnel file.

E. If a disciplinary document has been in an employee's personnel file for at least three (3) years, at the employee's request the document shall be removed from the personnel file. The Assistant Superintendent's decision will be rendered in writing.

F. Copies or records of grievances filed by an employee shall not be entered into the District personnel file.

#### **Section 71 – Cause**

An employee will not be disciplined for an arbitrary or capricious reason. Discipline will be for cause. The extent of any disciplinary action will be in keeping with the seriousness of the infraction. When applicable, corrective action steps will be considered prior to implementation of discipline. A process of progressive discipline will be used. Progressive discipline includes verbal warning, written reprimand, suspension, or termination as appropriate to the infraction. The employee will receive a copy of any written reprimand.

This section shall apply only to discipline up to and including suspension for regular employees for infractions in matters not related to job proficiency or competency.

 The District will make a good faith effort to call to the attention of the employee any written complaint within ten (10) working days of the day the District became aware of the complaint. Any complaint not called to the attention of the employee may not be used as the basis for disciplinary action, unless otherwise provided by law. The employee must be apprised of any written complaint and the name(s) of the complainant(s) and may request a copy of such a complaint unless otherwise provided by law.

If an employee is on administrative leave every effort will be made to expedite the investigation process. <u>Employees</u> shall receive twice monthly status updates of their case, <u>and such cases will</u> be reviewed at each labor-management meeting.

# Section 72 – Equitable Treatment

The Tacoma School District and the Tacoma Education Association agree to comply with all state and federal guidelines and/or regulations. Therefore, all applicants seeking employment opportunities will be considered and will not be discriminated against on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex or disability. This is in accordance with Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, 1973, as amended; Title IX of the Education

Amendments of 1972, as amended and Chapter 28A. <u>642</u> RCW.

The District shall not discriminate against any employee in violation of this Agreement and/or, state and federal laws, rules, and/or regulations.

The Board agrees that it will not discriminate against employees because of their membership or non-membership in employee organizations.

# **Section** <u>73</u> – **Harassment**

 Any employee who has a complaint regarding harassment may file said complaint with his/her direct supervisor. If the complaint is not satisfactorily resolved or if the complaint involves the supervisor, the complaint should be made with the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. The appropriate form may be obtained <u>from the District's</u> website. A copy of the form is reproduced in <u>Appendix X</u> of this Agreement.

- 1 Any employee who has a complaint regarding sexual or racial harassment may file said
- 2 complaint with the Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources. The appropriate form may
- 3 be obtained from the District's website. A copy of the form is reproduced in Appendix X of this
- 4 Agreement.

# Section <u>74</u> – Staff Diversity Plan

- The ultimate goal of the Staff Diversity Plan is to ensure the District's compliance with federal and state law.
- 10 Recommendations for changes in the plan may be made by the Association. Copies of the Staff
- Diversity Plan shall be kept on file in each school and shall be available to employees upon
- request from the <u>Director of Equity and Achievement</u>.

## ARTICLE XI – EVALUATION AND PROBATION

# **Section <u>75</u> – Observation <u>and</u> Evaluation Procedures**

A. Philosophy of Evaluation: Tacoma Public Schools and the Tacoma Education Association believe that evaluation is a collaborative, supportive, and continuous process meant to improve learning and instruction while enhancing job proficiency. <u>To this end, teachers who achieve Level Four (4), Distinguished will be recognized by both the Association and the District.</u>

B. General Provisions:

1. All employees will be evaluated yearly.

<u>2.</u> Evaluator: Employees shall be notified by November 1 by the administration as to who is responsible for their evaluation.

3. TEA bargaining unit members shall be prohibited from participating in the evaluation of other members of the bargaining unit. Information about the performance of individual members of the bargaining unit obtained through or by a member of the same bargaining unit shall not be used in the evaluation of any member(s) of the bargaining unit.

 4. A general staff meeting shall be scheduled prior to the beginning of formal observations in order to acquaint staff with the process to be followed and answer questions pertaining to the format for the observations, evaluations, and the pre- and post-conferences.

5. A reassignment to a different grade level (P-K, 1-3, 4-5, 6-8, or 9-12) or subject area, or a <u>transfer to a</u> different building shall be noted on the evaluation record for the first (1st) two (2) years. If an employee is assigned to an area other than that of his/her

3		
4 5	<u>6.</u>	All unsatisfactory <u>and basic</u> evaluation ratings ( <u>Levels 1 or 2</u> ) shall be explained in writing by the evaluator at the time of the final evaluation meeting.
6		<i>C</i> <del>→</del>
7 8	<u>7.</u>	Yearly evaluations of each employee shall be completed no later than May 15.
9	<u>8.</u>	Comprehensive evaluation will be used under the following circumstances:
10		A marrial and annularies shall be evaluated on the community and see
11		• A provisional employee shall be evaluated on the comprehensive process.
12		• The comprehensive evaluation process shall be followed at least once every
13		four (4) years.
14		• An employee may require that the comprehensive evaluation process be
15		conducted in any given school year.
16		An evaluator may require that the comprehensive evaluation process be
17		conducted in any given school year. If the employee's and evaluator's choice
18		of evaluation process are in conflict, the comprehensive process shall be used
19		• <u>Classroom teachers who have scored at Levels 1 or 2 will be placed on the</u>
20		comprehensive plan.
21	0	F
22	<u>9.</u>	Focused evaluation will be used under the following circumstances:
23		Classroom teachers who have scored at Levels 3 or 4 on their annual
24		evaluation and are not scheduled for a comprehensive evaluation on the four
25		(4) year cycle.
26		• Non-provisional classroom teachers will be evaluated on the focused plan
27		three (3) years out of four (4), unless the evaluator initiates a move to the
28		comprehensive evaluation.
29 30	10	The featured evaluation process shall be as follows:
	<u>10.</u>	The focused evaluation process shall be as follows:
31 32		• One of the eight state evaluation criteria must be proposed by the teacher at the first pre-observation conference and approved by the evaluator.
33		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
34		• If the employee chooses criterion 1, 2, 4, 5, or 7, he/she must also complete the student growth components in criterion 3 or 6. If the employee chooses 3,
35		6, or 8, no other criteria are required.
36		<ul> <li>The score received on the selected criterion is the score assigned as the final</li> </ul>
37		summative score.
38		<ul> <li>A group of teachers may choose to collaborate on a shared goal.</li> </ul>
39		
40		• Observations and conferences shall follow the guidelines set forth in the comprehensive evaluation process.
41		comprehensive evaluation process.
42	11	For non-provisional employees, the evaluation rotation schedule for the term of this
43	11.	contract shall be contained in the appendices (Appendix XI).
44		conduct shall be contained in the appendices (11ppendix 111).
45	12	If the principal wishes to place the employee on the comprehensive evaluation
46		process when the employee is eligible for the focused evaluation process, the
.0		process when the employee is engine for the focused evaluation process, the

professional preparation, it may be indicated by the teacher/educational staff associate on the evaluation record during the <u>pre-conference</u>.

principal and the employee shall meet to discuss the reasons for placement on the comprehensive evaluation process. A TEA representative may be included at the employee's request.

6

13. Information shall only be included in any evaluation if it has been previously addressed by the assigned evaluator during the evaluation period.

7 8

#### C. Observation and Evaluation Forms:

9 10

1. There shall be separate evaluation instruments for classroom teachers, non-classroombased certificated instructional staff and educational staff associates.

11 12 13

14

15

16

17

2. Observation notes and evaluation forms will be discussed with the employee. The observation notes or evaluation form shall be signed by the employee and the evaluator. A signature by the employee implies only that the employee has had an opportunity to review the written observation notes or evaluation form. In signing, the employee does not waive any right to due process, including the use of the grievance procedure.

18 19 20

3. The employee shall have the right to include a written statement or document as an addendum to the evaluation/observation forms if the employee wishes to do so. The statement shall be attached to the evaluation/observation record.

22 23 24

25

26

21

4. The original copy of the completed evaluation packet shall be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources for review and placement in respective personnel files. The second (2nd) copy shall be retained by the evaluator. The third (3rd) copy shall be given to the employee.

27 28 29

#### D. Observations:

30 31 32

1. Prior to formal observation(s) as outlined, an individual pre-conference is required. At this time, the evaluator and the employee will focus on the upcoming observation(s) and share learning targets aligned with the state criteria and instructional framework.

34 35 36

37

38

33

2. All employees newly employed by the District shall be observed within the first ninety (90) calendar days of the commencement of their employment for a period of not less than thirty (30) minutes. Observation material must be completed and distributed following the procedures prescribed in C(2) of this section.

39 40 41

3. Third (3<sup>rd</sup>) year provisional employees will be observed three (3) times during the school year for no less than a total of ninety (90) minutes (RCW 28A.405.100).

42 43 44

4. In addition to the formal observation(s) required herein, the evaluator may make formal observations at any time during the school year, providing the employee has been notified prior to the observation. Observation notes shall be completed following

each formal observation. Evaluators are expected to monitor the performance of staff through formal and informal observations. Evaluators are expected to give prompt feedback on examples of good teaching, as well as performance issues of concern, regardless of the circumstances in which the issues arose. 5. Employees may provide additional artifacts and evidence for consideration as part of the evaluation process. 6. During the school year each employee shall be observed for the purpose of annual evaluation at least twice in the performance of his/her assigned duties. Total observation time for each employee for each school year shall not be less than sixty (60) minutes. 7. A series of observations must be completed within a period of six (6) work days. 8. Within three (3) work days, observation notes shall be provided to the employee per RCW 28A.405.100. 9. Within six (6) work days of the completion of an observation or series of observations, a post-observation conference must be held to share perceptions and identify avenues for continued growth. 10. Non-classroom-based certificated instructional staff and ESAs may continue to use the long or short evaluation processes until the parties mutually agree that appropriate evaluation processes are ready for implementation for these professionals. ESA staff may request an optional peer observation for feedback from someone in a like assignment. Such requests and their results are for self-use but may be added to the employee's personnel file by request of the ESA. 

#### E. Summative Evaluation:

- 1. The purpose of the summative evaluation is to foster ongoing professional growth. Relevant artifacts and evidence will be considered and discussed.
- 2. The <u>final summative</u> evaluation <u>packet</u> shall be <u>considered completed</u> only after the required observations and conferences have been conducted.
- 3. A conference between the evaluator and the employee must be held prior to the distribution of the <u>completed</u> evaluation <u>packet</u> copies. The purpose of this conference should be for communication and for signing the <u>completed</u> evaluation <u>packet</u>.
- 4. Many factors affect student performance, therefore, <u>multiple measures rather than a</u> single standardized test will be used <u>as part of a process</u> to evaluate certificated staff performance.

## **Section 76 – Probation Procedure**

1 2

An employee placed on probation shall have received and signed a completed unsatisfactory or basic evaluation packet on or before January 15.

When a non-provisional employee's evaluation shows an unsatisfactory rating(s), the employee is not eligible for transfer to a new position or voluntary displacement without the agreement of the Superintendent or designee, Association, and supervisor, and the following procedures shall be followed:

**Step 1**: The evaluator will <u>notify the</u> employee <u>in writing</u> when the employee's rating(s) is (are) unsatisfactory. The evaluator and the employee shall work together to resolve the unsatisfactory condition(s) at this level <u>per RCW 28A.405.100</u>.

Step 2: If, in the judgment of the evaluator, the matter is not being resolved at Step 1, then <u>a</u> <u>written recommendation about the</u> situation will be given to the employee <u>and</u> the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. That letter shall identify the deficiencies and note steps taken to resolve the problem. Having been so notified of the possibility of being placed on probation, the employee may request a meeting with the appropriate Human Resources Department administrator. The meeting will be held within five (5) days of the request.

**Step 3**: If, in the judgment of the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, the matter is not being resolved at Step 1 or Step 2, or if the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, after insuring that reasonable efforts have been made to assist the employee, deems the situation to be of such nature that it be referred to the Superintendent immediately, the Assistant Superintendent shall summarize the situation; in writing to the Superintendent, with a copy to the employee.

 **Step 4**: If, in the judgment of the Superintendent, the matter has not been resolved at Step 2 or 3, and the employee's performance is still deemed unsatisfactory, the Superintendent may either involuntarily transfer the employee or place the employee on probation by following the procedures listed below, unless otherwise provided by law.

A. The employee may be placed on probation by the Superintendent any time after October 15 for a period of sixty (60) school days and shall be notified in writing of stated areas of deficiencies, along with recommendations for improvement. During the period of probation, the employee may not be transferred from the supervision of original evaluator.

B. The original evaluator and an evaluator appointed by the District and agreed to by the Association shall meet with the employee at least twice per month to supervise and make written evaluation of progress of the employee.

C. The probationary status may be lifted at any time if satisfactory improvement of stated deficiencies has been documented but no later than May 15 of each school year.

D. Immediately following the completion of a probationary period that does not produce performance changes detailed in the initial notice of deficiencies and improvement program, the employee may be removed from his/her assignment and placed into an alternative assignment for the remainder of the school year or, at the District's option, be placed on paid leave for the balance of the contract term. This reassignment may not displace another employee, nor may the District's action adversely affect the probationary employee's compensation or benefits for the remainder of the employee's contract year.

## ARTICLE XII – ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER

The provisions of this Article may be superseded by the rights of employees affected by provisions of Article XIII Layoff and Recall.

#### Section <u>77</u> – Terms

A. "Assignment" means the specific position within a building or program that a staff member holds for a school year.

B. "Displacement" means the transfer of a Tacoma Public Schools (TPS) staff member due to a loss of building FTE or a reduction in building/program/categorical allocation. Displaced persons will retain their continuing contract status, pay and benefits.

C. "Open position" is a vacant position, not occupied by an incumbent, for which the site administrator has submitted an Open Position Announcement and <u>which</u> the District intends to fill.

D. "Placement" means the appointment of an employee by the Human Resources Department to a position within the bargaining unit.

E. "Position" means the building(s), the grade(s) or department(s), the core(s), team(s), and/or subject(s), and any specialty such as, but not limited to, special education, counselor, and librarian, Title I, elementary music, and elementary physical education.

F. "Qualified" An employee shall be qualified for a position as set forth in Chapter 181-82 WAC.

G. "Reassignment" means a voluntary or involuntary change in assignment within a building or a program by the appropriate administrator.

H. "Transfer" means a voluntary change from an employee's current position to an open position in a different building.

I. "Involuntary transfer" means a change not initiated by an employee from an employee's current position to <u>a placement into</u> an open position in a different building.

# **Section 78 – New School Year Assignments**

- A. On or before April 15 of each year that staffing changes are anticipated, each principal or program administrator shall distribute an assignment preference form to each employee at a school/program, for the purpose of determining each employee's first, second and third preference for assignment for the following year. Employees shall have at least five (5) work days to return the form.
- B. Principals or program administrators may involve staff members in determining general assignment or deployment schedules for the upcoming school year, and such teams may create an initial assignment or deployment schedule based on employee preferences. However the final assignment or deployment schedule is the responsibility of the principal or program administrator. If it becomes necessary to make reassignments due to staffing or student enrollment changes or other building needs, the principal or program administrator will make those assignment decisions based on individual qualifications and/or preferences.
- C. Before assigning or deploying an employee to a position other than one (1) of the preferences selected by the employee, or if the assignment preference form was not distributed to employees and an employee's assignment or deployment is to be changed, the principal/program administrator will first call a meeting of affected employees to examine options. This step is not necessary if an employee did not submit a preference form.
- D. Employees shall be notified of their final teaching and room assignments as soon as possible, but no later than the Friday before the last day of school. If a change is made subsequent to the final notice, the employee affected by the change will be notified of the change and the reason as soon as possible.
- E. Upon request, the principal/program director will meet with an employee or employees whose assignment(s) have been changed to discuss the reasons for the change(s).
- F. Every effort shall be made to avoid requiring a secondary school teacher to teach more than two (2) subject areas or more than three (3) preparations.
- G. Tentative initial deployment of ESA staff and itinerant employees shall be completed by the Friday before the last day of school annually for the following school year with adjustments due to changes in student placement, academic and behavioral characteristics of students, related service needs, and program location by October 10 annually. In unforeseen circumstances where an extension is necessary the District will notify the Association with the rationale and a new deadline will be established.

H. Every effort should be made by the District or building principals to assure that no staff member is reassigned in two consecutive years. When this is not possible and the District reassigns an employee more than once in two (2) consecutive years, the Principal and the teacher shall agree upon a plan of support, including but not limited to, training, release time, financial support and resources for moving classrooms. Should the Principal and the teacher be unable to agree on a plan, the District and the Association will be available to assist. For purposes of this paragraph, reassignment shall mean reassignment by grade level in elementary and content area in secondary.

# **Section** <u>79</u> – **General Procedure for Open Positions**

For positions which are open, the following apply:

A. Successful applicants for open positions shall be assigned in accordance with the certification they hold as described by current state regulations.

B. Staff will participate in the staffing process by assisting in the preparation of position postings, participating in interviews and making recommendations. The principal will have the responsibility to make the final recommendation to Human Resources.

C. The District and Association will review all open positions. Postings shall include the reason for the vacancy.

D. The District will post all positions (by specific job title and duties, specific building locations, specific open and targeted closing dates, and specific contract type) on the District website.

E. An employee interested in transferring to an open position must complete the online application process on the District website. Employees may indicate their preferred grade levels and buildings on their application. This form will be logged in by date and time, which will be certified by the Human Resources Department.

F. An open position will be filled within fifteen (15) work days of the establishment of the interview pool unless a waiver is obtained from the Association and District.

G. The Association may request an appeal in writing to the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, to seek clarification regarding the qualification criteria for any open positions. No posted position shall be filled if such an appeal has been filed until such time as the appeal has been resolved.

In the event that the District and Association cannot reach agreement regarding the qualification criteria, the District may fill the position on a temporary basis or may revise the qualification criteria and re-advertise the position.

- H. Any position determined through the grievance process to have been filled contrary to the terms of this contract will be opened within fifteen (15) days of such determination, with the date of transfer of the successful applicant to be at the discretion of the successful applicant and administrator.
- I. The Human Resources Department will notify the appropriate administrator of the names of the following qualified (those individuals having appropriate endorsements and meeting highly qualified standards where required by the District in accordance with federal and state requirements or with a plan approved by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources to achieve highly qualified status) applicants for an interview:
  - 1. The three (3) most senior applicants defined by the collective bargaining agreement, and
  - 2. One qualified applicant from the displacement pool and,

3. An applicant of the District's choice, which could include the temporary incumbent, if applicable (a person presently in the position that was filled after the school year began).

Four (4) out of the five (5) interview candidates shall be internal applicants. In the event there are a fewer number of qualified internal candidates in any of the above categories, and fewer than five (5) total, the District may proceed to fill the positions.

A good faith effort will be made to place qualified displaced employees before looking to external candidates.

- J. Upon completion of the interview process, the principal will recommend an applicant for the open position to the Human Resources Department.
- K. The successful applicant for an open position shall have two (2) days to accept or reject the position. Once an employee accepts a position, said employee may not apply for another open position effective that same school year. Positions obtained under Section 82, Displaced Employees, are not restricted by this paragraph.
- L. The Human Resources Department, in consultation with the appropriate administrator and the employee, will establish the beginning date for the position. Positions opened after October 1 will be filled by a long-term substitute or employee on a replacement contract until the next September, when the successful applicant will begin.
- M. All employees who are interviewed for an open position will be notified by the Human Resources Department within five (5) work days after the open position has been filled. Such notification shall include the name of the employee selected and the factors which led to the selection.

# **Section 80 – Timeline Procedures for Filling Positions**

candidate the District will notify the Association of the rationale.

The District will fill open positions occurring at the following times as described below:

A. Outside the staffing season will run June 21 through February 28. Outside the staffing season positions should be filled using the process in Section <u>79</u> (I).

N. On request, the most senior applicant(s) not selected for a position will be notified of the

specific reasons in writing. Additionally if an external candidate is hired over an internal

B. The staffing season will run March 1 through June 20. During the staffing season positions should be filled using the following process:

1. The Human Resources Department will notify the appropriate administrator of the names of the following qualified (those individuals having appropriate endorsements and meeting highly qualified standards where required by the District in accordance with federal and state requirements or with a plan approved by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources to achieve highly qualified status) applicants for an interview:

a. The two (2) most senior applicants defined by the collective bargaining agreement and

b. Two (2) qualified applicants from the displacement pool and

c. An internal applicant of the District's choice, which could include the temporary incumbent,

 d. if applicable (a person presently in the position that was filled after the school year began)

The exception to (1c) is that in hard-to-fill positions (referenced in Section 21 (D 2) the District's choice may include external candidates.

In the event there are a fewer number of qualified internal candidates in any of the above categories, and fewer than five (5) total, the District may seek external candidates to fill the positions.

C. Once forty percent (40%) of the displaced persons are placed, the open positions may be filled in accordance with Section <u>79</u> (I).

# **Section 81 – Supplemental Conditions:**

A. The District may fill up to five (5) open positions per year based upon extracurricular assignments. Such positions shall be posted pursuant to Section <u>79</u>, General Procedures for Open Positions, by listing the extracurricular assignment as the open position; such positions shall include full time teaching assignments at the same school.

7

# 8

9 10 11

12 13 14

15 16 17

18

19 20 21

> 26 27 28

34 35 36

33

37 38 39

40

41 42

43

1.

44

45 46

i. Primary (K-2) ii. Intermediate (3-5)

Elementary staffing categories shall be:

iii. Special Education

# **Section 82 – Displacement**

A. Displacement means the transfer of a Tacoma Public Schools (TPS) staff member due to a loss of building FTE or a reduction in building/program/categorical allocation. Displaced persons will retain their continuing contract status, pay and benefits.

No employee shall be involuntarily transferred from a school because another employee

B. The provisions of this Article shall not be applicable to positions arising after application

was transferred into the school based on an extracurricular assignment.

of Article XIII, Layoff and Recall, of this Agreement.

- B. Displacements shall not be made arbitrarily or capriciously but will be based on staffing needs.
- C. By October 15 of each school year each site shall determine their displacement committee. This committee shall be comprised of the current principal, one (1) Tacoma Education Association (TEA) Building Representative chosen by the TEA members in the building and one (1) Site-Centered Decision Making (SCDM) Chair chosen by the staff.
- D. Each site shall define a mission statement. In addition, sites shall also define any SCDM approved initiatives and/or site-wide common agreements. A written copy of the mission statement and SCDM approved initiatives and/or common agreements shall be shared with the staff, the District and the Tacoma Education Association by October 15. The mission statement, SCDM approved initiatives and/or common agreements defined by the October 15 date govern the information reflected in the self-report.
- E. By October 15 of each school year, staff will be notified of the District approved staffing categories applicable to their site. Staff will then self-select the staffing category that best reflects their current assignment, and for teachers, the area or areas in which they have attained highly qualified status in the manner required under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 2001 and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, as amended by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004. In addition, employees shall possess an appropriate valid Washington state teaching certificate which authorizes them to teach at the appropriate level as per Chapter 181–82 WAC. For the duration of this agreement, the District staffing categories are outlined below.

Changes in District staffing categories must be agreed upon by the TPS/TEA Labor Management Committee before implementation.

1		
2	2.	Middle and High School staffing categories shall be:
3		i. Science
4		ii. Math
5		iii. Language Arts
6		iv. Social Studies
7		v. Humanities
8		vi. Electives by category
9		vii. CTE by category
10		viii. Special Education
11		ix. Physical Education/Health
12		x. Counselor
13		xi. Teacher Librarian
14		xii. Reading
15		
16	3.	District deployed staff including: psychologists, nurses, speech language
17		pathologists, physical therapists, occupational therapists, elementary
18		librarians, elementary counselors, elementary physical education teachers,
19		elementary music teachers, English Language Learners (ELL) teachers,
20		instructional coaches, deans, instructional facilitators, and other areas of
21		special certification shall continue to be deployed based on District
22		demographics.
23		
24		eptember building level staff meetings, or no later than October 15 of each year,
25		report forms ( <u>Appendix XII</u> ) will be disseminated and reviewed. Each
26		al staff member, with the exception of District-deployed categories as listed in
27		32.E.3, is responsible for completing this form. The displacement process
28		shall be determined by the Labor-Management Committee annually and will be
29	posted or	<u>nline.</u>
30		
31	1.	The self-report forms must be submitted to the principal or appropriate
32		supervisor by the determined due date.
33	•	
34	2.	Self-report forms will be scored by the displacement committee using the self-
35		report rubric ( <u>Appendix XIII</u> ). Seniority will be the tie breaker in instances
36		where the scores are equal.
37	2	If4-ff
38	3.	If a staff member has completed a self-report that reflects an assignment that
39		is outside of their scope of licensure or endorsement, and/or that reflects an
40		assignment in which they do not hold highly qualified status, that self-report
41		will result in a score of zero (0) and a waiver of the individual's seniority for
42		the purposes of displacement decisions.
43 44	4.	Failure of any individual staff member to submit a self-report by the
45	4.	determined due date will result in a score of zero (0) and a waiver of the
46		individual's seniority for the purposes of displacement decisions.
40		marvidual 5 semonty for the purposes of displacement decisions.

- 5. In the event that a member of the scoring committee is included in the staffing category subject to displacement, that member shall recuse him/herself. In such an instance, the alternate SCDM representative shall be elected by the staff; the alternate TEA representative shall be elected by the site membership.
- G. Written notification of displacement shall be provided to impacted staff prior to May 15. For staff subject to displacement after May 15, employees shall receive written notice as soon as reasonably possible.
- H. Persons on probation in accordance with Section <u>76</u> in the current collective bargaining agreement shall not be subject to displacement.
- I. Challenges to the process may be appealed to the TEA Employee Rights Commission within five (5) working days of the notice of displacement.
  - 1. If there is a challenge there shall be one (1) review of the entire displacement category.
  - 2. The request shall be made in writing to the TEA representative on the displacement committee.
  - 3. The TEA representative on the displacement committee will notify the chair of the Employee Rights Commission of the request for appeal and will submit all self-report forms and corresponding scoring narratives (<u>Appendix XIV</u>) for the staffing category under consideration with the names redacted.
  - 4. The Employee Rights Commission shall convene within five (5) working days of the notice of appeal to review the scores. No member of the Employee Rights Commission may sit on an appeal from his/her own building.
  - 5. The Employee Rights Commission shall limit their review to the self-report form and scoring narrative.
  - 6. The Employee Rights Commission shall be charged with rescoring, if necessary, all submitted self-report forms for the purpose of making the final determination of displacement within three (3) working days of convening.
  - 7. The Chair of the Employee Rights Commission shall notify the building principal or appropriate Program supervisor and the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources of the decision. The administrator shall inform the affected employees within one (1) working day.
  - 8. The final determination of the Employee Rights Commission is not subject to the grievance process. The results are final and binding.

#### J. Displacement Meeting

1. The Association and the District shall annually conduct a meeting for all displaced employees to review their rights, review the process for being placed, and answer questions.

2. <u>All known vacancies for the coming school year shall be advertised and offered to displaced employees in accordance with Article XII.</u>

3. <u>Displaced staff without an assignment by August 15 will be placed by the District.</u>

K. The displacement process does not apply to fall staffing adjustments. In the event staffing adjustments are required in the fall, TPS administrators shall utilize the reassignment process with input from TEA.

An employee who has been displaced shall have the right to return to his/her former position if reinstated for a period of twenty-four (24) months from the last day of the school year during which he/she was displaced. If and when the employees' former position becomes open, the District shall offer the position to the employee. The employee then will have <u>forty-eight</u> (48) hours in which to accept or decline the position. In the event that the employee opts not to return to his/her former position, the employee will only be considered for subsequent openings consistent with the applicable <u>Assignment and Transfer provisions, Article XII, of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.</u>

The employee may also at his/her option be assigned to an open position for which the employee is qualified at the same school or work site for a period of twenty-four (24) months following the displacement. In the event that the employee opts for an open position for which he/she is qualified, the employee retains the right to his/her former position, if reinstated, during the twenty-four (24) month period. Employees with return rights will automatically be placed in the hiring pool with a preference for the site and position for which they have return rights while their return rights remain in effect.

# **Section 83 –Involuntary Transfer**

A. "Involuntary transfer" means a change not initiated by an employee from an employee's current position to a placement into an open position in a different building.

B. <u>Involuntary transfers will not be made arbitrarily or capriciously.</u>

C. An involuntary transfer may be made in case of categorical funding requirements, unforeseen school closure in whole or in part, change in enrollment (course, grade level or school), reorganization at Central Administration Building, building/program needs,

major program changes, or in an emergency situation. The District shall meet with the Association prior to an involuntary transfer.

- D. Any staff member identified as an involuntary transfer shall not have right of return to his/her former position or school site and shall be assigned a new placement.
- E. Any employee who has been involuntarily transferred and is not satisfied with his/her new placement, may apply for open positions pursuant to Article XII.

# Section 84 – School Closures, Changes in School Attendance Boundaries or Grade Level Reorganizations between More than One (1) Site

- A. In the event of school closures, boundary changes or grade level reorganization between more than one site, employees will be selected for displacement pursuant to Section 82, Displacement, where applicable. In the event that this section does not apply, the Labor Management Committee will meet on a case-by-case basis.
- B. Employees subject to displacement shall be notified in writing within ten (10) work days following action by the School Board. Such notification will be no later than May 1 except in an emergency. Notice will include a list of all schools affected by the Board action and all probable staffing needs at those schools receiving students.
- C. All position openings made available by the Board action will be provided to displaced employees in affected school(s)/site(s) for five (5) workdays.
- D. It is the responsibility of designated displaced employees to apply for open positions for which they are interested and qualified at the sites receiving students pursuant to the Board action.
- E. Qualified <u>employees</u> (those individuals having appropriate endorsements and meeting highly qualified standards) making application will be considered for open or newly created positions at the affected sites. In the event a position is desired by more than one (1) displaced employee, the principals, assisted by appropriate staff, will select the most senior applicant or interview and recommend from the three (3) most senior applicants and an internal applicant of the District's choice as defined by the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- F. Displaced employees not selected for open positions at receiving schools shall be subject to displacement as set forth in Section 82.
- G. Available positions for which no displaced employees apply shall be posted and filled in accordance with Section <u>79</u>, General Procedures for open positions.

## Section 85 – Opening/Reopening a New School

When a new school is to be opened, the following procedures will be followed:

- A. The Superintendent shall place on file in the Human Resources Office the proposed organizational plan of the school as soon it is available but no later than March 1.
- B. The organizational plan shall set forth the number of positions at the new site together with required qualifications for each position.
- C. Once a principal has been named by the Superintendent, he or she shall establish a core team comprised of current employees selected from the District at large. The core team shall engage in such preparations as needed including the selection of remaining employees to fill available positions as set forth herein.
- D. All other positions made available by the newly opened school will be made available first to displaced employees from the school(s)/site(s) transferring students to the new school as set forth in Section 84.
- E. Available positions for which no displaced employees apply shall be posted and filled in accordance with Section <u>79</u>.

# ARTICLE XIII – LAYOFF AND RECALL

In the event of a staff reduction, the Superintendent's staff shall develop a list of employees to be retained by the District to fill the positions and to provide the services that will be offered by the District for the ensuing school year. The following criteria will be applied in the order in which they are listed to the staff in developing the list of employees to be retained.

# Section 86 – Selection of Staffing Categories for Layoff and Recall

Staffing categories for the purpose of reduction in force (RIF) are certification and endorsements held by certificated staff. Official teaching and endorsement certificates date stamped as received by Human Resources prior to March 1 will be valid for planning for staffing for the subsequent school year.

#### Section 87 – Staffing Categories for Layoff and Recall

- A. Teaching Staff Elementary Level (K-5):
  - 1. Certification: An employee shall possess an appropriate valid Washington state teaching certificate other than a temporary or emergency certificate that authorizes the holder thereof to teach at the elementary level, as per Chapter 181–82 WAC.

- 2. Preference for a position of librarian or media specialist will be given to an employee who has successfully completed a program in library/media science or who is in the process of taking/completing such a program.
- B. Teaching Staff Middle and High School Levels (6-8; 9-12):

Certification: An employee shall possess an appropriate valid Washington State teaching certificate, other than a temporary or emergency certificate, that authorizes the holder thereof to teach at the secondary level in identified subject areas, as per Chapter 181–82 WAC.

- C. <u>Education Support Associates</u> (Preschool-12):
  - 1. Definition: The <u>Education Support Associates (ESAs)</u> shall include psychologists, counselors, nurses, speech language pathologists, physical therapists, occupational therapists, librarians and other areas of special certification.
  - 2. Certification: An employee shall possess the special credential or certificate <u>and highly qualified status</u> required for the particular position, as per Chapter 181–82 WAC.
- D. Special Education Staff (Preschool-12):

Definition: The special education staff shall include teachers of special education and other areas of special certification. An employee must satisfy the qualification criteria for the position required by Chapter 181–82 WAC.

#### Section 88 – Tie Breakers

- A. Seniority Tie Breaker: When more than one (1) employee qualifies for a position in a staffing category, the employee with the most seniority shall receive the position. Seniority shall be as defined in Section 1.
- B. Preparation Tie Breaker: If two (2) or more employees are tied after applying the seniority tie breaker, then the employee with the greatest number of credits recorded in the Human Resources Department as of October 1 of the current school year shall receive the position.
- C. Final Tie Breaker: If two (2) or more employees are still identical after applying the tie breakers A and B, then layoff shall be by lot.

#### Section 89 – Layoff

1 2

A. All employees for whom no position is available shall be placed in the District layoff pool. An individual may remain in the layoff pool for no more than two (2) school years (ending August 31) following his/her layoff.

B. Notice shall be given in the manner and at the time required by law to every employee who is affected by the layoff. The District shall make every effort to provide the Association with a listing of all employees to be laid off seventy-two (72) hours prior to Board notification.

C. Performance of employees shall not be a factor in determining the order of layoff.

D. Under such terms and conditions as may be imposed by the various insurance carriers, individuals in the District layoff pool may continue all or part of their group insurance benefit programs by payment, in advance, of the premiums for such insurance. Arrangements shall be made through Sound Partnership.

E. All individuals in the layoff pool shall, upon request, be placed on the substitute teacher list following layoff and shall receive priority consideration for substitute assignments.

F. Individuals in the District's layoff pool shall receive priority consideration for assignment to temporary contracted positions. The acceptance of a temporary contracted position shall not remove the individual from the District layoff pool.

#### Section 90 – Recall

A. As positions become available, the District shall reinstate qualified individuals from the layoff pool, using the criteria specified above in Sections 88 and 89.

B. The District may hire new employees only where there is no individual in the layoff pool who meets the certification, endorsement and highly qualified standards specified for the available position.

C. Individuals who obtain additional certification, qualifications, <u>highly qualified status</u> (where applicable), or college preparation while in the layoff pool shall be entitled to update their records with the Human Resources Department. An individual in the layoff pool may change his/her designation of categories during the first (1st) week in December of each year. In filling a vacancy, the most recent category designation and certification, qualification, <u>highly qualified status</u> (where applicable), and college preparation information on file in the Human Resources Department shall be determinative.

D. An individual in the layoff pool shall have twenty-four (24) hours to respond following actual notice by telephone, <u>other electronic media</u>, in person, or in writing of an offer of recall. If the individual fails to respond, his/her name shall be passed over for the

- position. If the individual fails to respond a second (2nd) time to an offer of recall, his/her name shall be placed at the bottom of the seniority list for the layoff pool in the categories designated.
- E. An individual in the layoff pool shall have the right to reject one (1) offer of recall. If an individual in the layoff pool rejects a second (2nd) offer of recall, his/her name shall be placed at the bottom of the seniority lists for the layoff pool in the categories designated.
- F. Where a position offered for recall has been rejected by all of the qualified individuals in the layoff pool, the District shall assign the position to the qualified individual holding the lowest position on the appropriate seniority list. Failure to accept such assignment shall constitute forfeiture of all recall rights.
- G. The District will notify the Association, in writing, of all employment offers made to individuals in the layoff pool and the final outcome of such offers.

## **Section 91 – Involuntary Transfer Following Layoff**

- A. In completing staff assignments for the school year in which a reduction-in-force occurred, the District will attempt to maintain each employee who is retained in his/her current school or field or level or position; provided, however, that all employees retained are subject to involuntary transfer within their certification and endorsements.
- B. All authorized positions not held by an incumbent, after application of the criteria, shall be deemed vacant and shall be posted for a period of <u>five (5)</u> days for filling from the retained employees.
- C. At the expiration of the posting period, all applicants among the retained employees shall be considered for the positions for which they applied within the staffing categories previously chosen.

# ARTICLE XIV – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### **Section 92 – Definition**

A grievance is a claim based upon an alleged violation of this Agreement, written District policies, regulations and rules adopted by the Board or unfair and inequitable treatment of an employee by an administrator.

#### Section 93 – Procedure

Grievances shall be processed as rapidly as possible; the number of days indicated at each step shall be considered as maximum, and every effort shall be made to expedite the process. Time limits under unusual circumstances may be extended by mutual consent.

At each step of the grievance procedure, the employee may be accompanied by a designated representative of the Association. Any person(s) employed by the District or Association who might contribute to resolution of the grievance may be requested by the employee and/or the official representative.

If a Level II grievance is not filed within fifty (50) business days of the act or the creation of the condition on which the grievance is based, then the grievance shall be waived.

#### Level I

An employee with a grievance shall discuss the grievance first with his/her immediate administrator. Every effort shall be made to solve the grievance at this level in an informal manner. An Association representative may be present at the employee's request.

#### Level II

In the event that the grievance is not resolved informally, it shall be reduced to writing and presented to the immediate administrator. Within five (5) business days after the written grievance is presented, the administrator shall render a decision thereon, in writing, and present it to the grievant.

#### Level III

If the aggrieved employee is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level II, or if no decision has been rendered within five (5) business days after the presentation of the grievance, he/she may file the grievance in writing on the grievance form with the Superintendent, with a copy sent to the immediate administrator and to the Association. The Superintendent or <u>designee</u> shall represent the administration at this level of the grievance procedure. Within five (5) business days after receiving the written grievance, the Superintendent, or <u>designee</u> shall establish a meeting date with the aggrieved in an effort to resolve the grievance. If a Level III grievance is not filed in writing with the Superintendent within five (5) business days after a Level II decision has been received in writing, then the grievance shall be waived.

The decision from Level III shall be in writing and delivered to the aggrieved employee. If the aggrieved employee is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level III, or if no decision has been rendered within five (5) business days after the meeting with the Superintendent, or <u>designee</u> the employee may file a Level IV grievance.

When a grievance hearing is held at Level III and the grievance involves an immediate supervisor, the supervisor shall be present if requested by the grievant.

#### Level IV

A. If the aggrieved is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level III, the grievant may, within five (5) business days after the decision is rendered, request in writing to the Association with a copy to the Superintendent, that the grievance be submitted to arbitration.

#### Employee/Association Option

 At the employee's option, a grievance may be submitted in writing to the Board prior to a request for arbitration, if the aggrieved employee is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level III, or if no decision has been rendered within five (5) business days after the meeting with the Superintendent designee.

The President of the Board shall review the grievance appeal and shall determine whether or not a Board level grievance appeal shall be held. If the Board level grievance appeal is not held, the President of the Board shall reply to the grievant in writing within five (5) days.

B. The Association may, within ten (10) business days after the receipt of the request for arbitration, submit the grievance to arbitration by so notifying the Superintendent; provided, however, that only those grievances based upon an alleged violation of this Agreement shall be subject to arbitration. If the grievance is submitted to the Board, the Association's time limit for requesting arbitration is suspended until the Board action is completed. If a particular grievance is based upon an alleged violation of this Agreement and unfair and inequitable treatment, then only that portion based upon the alleged violation of this Agreement shall be subject to arbitration.

C. The Association may request a list of arbitrators from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The District and the Association will select an arbitrator by alternately striking names from the list until an arbitrator is determined. As an alternative, the Association may submit the grievance to arbitration through the American Arbitration Association (AAA). If the AAA is used, the parties will be bound by the voluntary rules and procedures of the AAA for the selection of the arbitrator.

D. The arbitrator shall confer promptly with the representatives of the Board and of the Association, review the record of prior meetings and hold such further hearings as deemed necessary.

E. The arbitrator will have authority to hold hearings and make procedural rules. Findings will be issued within a reasonable time after the date of the close of the hearings or, if oral hearings have been waived, from the date the final statement and evidence are submitted to the arbitrator.

F. The arbitrator's findings shall be submitted in writing as soon as possible to the Board and to the Association and shall set forth findings of fact, reasoning and conclusions on

- the issues submitted. The arbitrator's decision shall be consistent with existing statutes and shall be binding on both parties.

  G. Any costs for the services of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the District and the Association.

  H. Fees which are charged by an arbitrator for canceling or postponing an arbitration hearing shall be paid by the party who initiates the cancellation or the postponement, unless the
  - H. Fees which are charged by an arbitrator for canceling or postponing an arbitration hearing shall be paid by the party who initiates the cancellation or the postponement, unless the District and the Association mutually agree to other arrangements in reaching a settlement to the grievance.

# **Section 94 – Supplemental Conditions**

- A. Exclusive representation for a <u>grievant</u> shall be through the Association except for an employee who may elect self\_representation.
  - B. There shall be no reprisal by the Association, the District or its employees by reason of the involvement of any person in the grievance procedure.
  - C. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as limiting the right of any employee having a grievance to discuss the matter informally with an appropriate member of the administration.
  - D. A grievance may be lodged by the Association.
  - E. Certain grievances which are not under the jurisdiction of the immediate administrative supervisor and are based upon administrative action taken by an administrator other than the immediate administrative supervisor shall be initiated at Level III of the grievance procedure. A copy of the grievance shall be provided to the immediate supervisor.
  - F. For certificated employee grievances, the arbitrator shall have no power or authority to rule on any of the following:
    - 1. The termination of services of or failure to re employ any provisional employee.
    - 2. The termination of services or failure to re employ any employee to a position on supplemental salary schedules.
    - 3. Any matter involving employee probation procedures, discharge, nonrenewal, adverse effect or reduction in force.
  - G. Upon request, the Board agrees to provide necessary information to a designated representative of the Association.

#### **AGREEMENT**

This Agreement is made and entered into between Tacoma School District No. 10, the Tacoma Association of Education Office Professionals, and the Tacoma Association of Public School Professional and Technical Employees.

For Tacoma School District No. 10

Kurt Miller, President,

**Board of Directors** 

For Tacoma Association of Educational Office Professionals and Tacoma Association of Public School Professional and Technical Employees

Angela Morton, President,

Tacoma Education Association

# Memorandum of Understanding regarding Extended day positions

The purpose of this memorandum is to commemorate in writing the agreement between the Tacoma School District (District) and the Tacoma Education Association (Union).

The District and the Union agree to the following:

Section 24. C of the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be amended as follows: "...Generally if the extra work assignment is a continuation of the employee's full, regular work beyond the school day or year, the appropriate rate of per diem pay is based on the employee's placement on the combined salary schedule (base + personal responsibility stipend). Employees whose position requires working an extended day will receive the rate of per diem pay based on the employee's placement on the combined salary schedule (base + personal responsibility stipend).

This Memorandum of Understanding will be in effect through August 31, 2019.

For the District:

<u> Lynnel Rosellene</u> Lynne Rosellini

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

For the Association:

Angel Morton

President - Tacoma Education

Association

Date: 9/15/1L1

Date: 9/15/14

# Memorandum of Understanding regarding Fingerprinting

The purpose of this memorandum is to commemorate in writing the agreement between the Tacoma School District (District) and the Tacoma Education Association (Union) including the Office Professional/Professional Technical Unit and certificated employees.

The District and the Union agree to the following:

- An applicant who subsequently receives a position with Tacoma School District
  will follow all hiring procedures prior to his/her hire date. If
  fingerprint/background reports are delayed, the District may, at its discretion
  record the employee's hire date prior to fingerprint/background reports being
  received by the District.
- If upon receipt of the fingerprint/background report, the employee did not disclose or did not disclose accurately the reported results, the District, at its discretion, may terminate said person from employment with the District.
- Any person released from employment via the named conditions above, shall waive his/her rights to the grievance procedure or to an appeal of his/her termination.

This agreement remains in effect through August 31, 2017.

For the District:

Lynne Rosellini

Date: 9/9/15

**Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources** 

For the Association:

Angela Morton

President - Tacoma Education

Association

Date: 2/3/15

#### **APPENDICES**

# **Appendix I. Further Agreements**

The District and the Association have continued an interest-based approach to negotiations. This process recognizes that there are many issues for which solutions do not necessarily belong in the collective bargaining agreement but have significant impact on the learning and working environment for students and staff. As a result of the interest-based process used during these negotiations, solutions to mutual concerns were identified. The Agreements reached are as follows:

- 1. Continue the practice of including building/site staff in the selection of administrators from outside the District.
- 2. Continue the practice of evaluating the appropriateness of the District seeking a temporary restraining order on behalf of the employee in event of staff safety concerns.



# Tacoma Public Schools SCHOOL-CENTERED DECISION-MAKING DISTRICT TEAM Waiver Request

#### **Process/Timeline**

All waivers for the next school year are due on the <u>second Monday of April</u> to the Superintendent's Office. The approval/disapproval will be given in writing by the SCDM Anchors and the schools will be notified by the <u>third Monday of April</u>.

- If the waiver has a **financial impact**, the Chief Financial Officer and appropriate Assistant Superintendent must be consulted prior to submitting the request. A budget, with funding source(s), must be signed by the Chief Financial Officer and attached to the waiver application.
- If the waiver requires a change to the current **student transportation** schedule, the Director of Transportation must be consulted prior to submitting the request. A copy of the student transportation schedule(s) must be approved by the Director of Transportation and attached to the waiver application.
- If the waiver requires a change to the **TEA/TPS collective bargaining agreement**, TEA leadership must be consulted and a copy of the affected pages must be signed by the TEA President and attached to the waiver application.

#### **Application**

School	
Principal/Administrator	SCDM Chairperson
Type of waiver being requested:	
Early Release (time)	Alternative Daily ScheduleOther
Late Arrival (time)	_Alternative School Calendar
Please explain details:	
Period of time that the waiver is being requested:	
From (date)	To (date)
Include actual times and dates for <b>L</b>	ate Arrival or Early Dismissal.

Attach a copy of the proposed **Daily Schedule** or **School Calendar**.

SCDM	Waiver Request	School/Site Name	<b>.</b>	(Continued)
The info	ormation listed below an be attached howev	must be provided i	n detail and in the order recall the school/site name and	quested. Additional
2. I 3. V 4. G 5. H 6. V 17. V 8. I	Description of the prowhat are the measural cools that will be used Give a description of Explain how the wait What process was used andividuals who were What is your parent community and, where community in arriving used.  List the financial impulse any impact or prowhat any impact or prowhat are the process of the process of the prowhat is the financial impulsed.	a state waiver be no oposed plan. able expected outcome it to determine impro- the professional dever aligns with your ed by the site/schoose involved in develor communication plans in appropriate, stude g at this request (i.e.	e, i.e. does it include parents nt input? How did you inv e. surveys, etc.)? Attach the e collective bargaining agre	s of the assessment ement. Its the waiver focus. ditation process. Please list the s, members of the rolve the school results of any surveys
	<u>Description</u>		<u>Amount</u>	
		7	TOTAL	
Principa	l/Administrator's sig	nature Date	SCDM Chairperson's s	signature Date
Assistan	t Superintendent's si	gnature Date		
RECOM	MENDATION		APPROVED _	DENIED

Date

Date

TPS Signature

TEA Signature

TPS Signature

Date

# Teachers Hired After 9/1/99

#### 2014-15 TEACHERS' BASE SALARY SCHEDULE

**EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2014** 

COLUMN	<b></b>	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)*	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)
EDUCATIO	N>	BA + 0	BA + 15	BA + 30	BA + 45	N/A	BA + 90	MA + 0	N/A	BA +135	MA + 45	N/A	MA + 90	PHD
YEARS	Steps													_
0	1	34,048	34,348	34,609	34,729	N/A	34,916	40,820	N/A	37,927	41,353	N/A	41,389	42,141
1	2	34,376	34,594	35,093	35,373	N/A	36,435	41,051	N/A	39,447	41,616	N/A	42,458	43,662
2	3	34,884	35,232	35,268	35,804	N/A	37,594	41,149	N/A	40,578	41,772	N/A	43,562	44,755
3	4	35,164	35,340	35,415	36,585	N/A	38,342	41,699	N/A	41,268	42,439	N/A	44,196	45,367
4	5	35,480	35,662	36,532	37,691	N/A	39,430	41,888	N/A	42,329	43,490	N/A	45,229	46,388
5	6	35,862	36,723	37,583	38,731	N/A	40,452	42,119	N/A	43,320	44,468	N/A	46,190	47,338
6	7	37,297	38,157	39,017	40,164	N/A	41,886	43,034	N/A	44,755	45,903	N/A	47,624	48,772
7	8	38,317	39,168	40,019	41,155	N/A	42,858	43,994	N/A	45,696	46,832	N/A	48,534	49,670
8	9	39,736	40,587	41,439	42,574	N/A	44,277	45,413	N/A	47,115	48,251	N/A	49,954	51,089
9	10	41,155	42,006	42,858	43,994	N/A	45,696	46,832	N/A	48,534	49,670	N/A	51,373	52,509
10	11	42,574	43,425	44,277	45,413	N/A	47,115	48,251	N/A	49,954	51,089	N/A	52,792	53,928
11	12	43,994	44,845	45,696	46,832	N/A	48,534	49,670	N/A	51,373	52,509	N/A	54,211	55,347
12	13				48,251	N/A	49,954	51,089	N/A	52,792	53,928	N/A	55,631	56,766
13	14					N/A		52,509	N/A	54,211	58,186	N/A	59,888	61,024
With 20-yr	Increment	46,194	47,087	47,981	50,664	N/A	52,452	55,134	N/A	56,922	61,095	N/A	62,882	64,075

TWENTY YEAR

INCREMENT=

5% above last row in column

\*\* Certificated Teachers hired after September 1, 1999 will be placed on the new Tacoma School District schedule consistent with state guidelines for placement on the LEAP salary allocation documents.

NOTE: For Extra Pay for Extra Work use a base of \$40,105

Reviewed and approved by:	
Lynne C. Rasellene Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources	8/26/14 Date
foraline Melina	8/28/14
Chief Financial Officer	Date

Column	DEGREE	MINIMUM	*
1	Bachelor's	BA + 0	
2	Bachelor's	BA + 15	
3	Bachelor's	BA + 30	
4	Bachelor's	BA + 45	
6	Bachelor's	BA + 90	
7	Master's	MA + 0	
9 *	Bachelor's	BA + 135 (Grandfathered per RCW 28A.150.410)	
10	Master's	MA + 45	
12	Master's	MA + 90	
13	Doctorate	PHD	

#### Teachers Hired After 9/1/99

#### 2014-15 TEACHERS' PRS (PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY STIPEND) SALARY SCHEDULE

**EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2014** 

COLUMN	$\longrightarrow\hspace{-3mm}$	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)*	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)
EDUCATION	ON ——►	BA + 0	BA + 15	BA + 30	BA + 45	N/A	BA + 90	MA + 0	N/A	BA +135	MA + 45	N/A	MA + 90	PHD
<u>YEARS</u>	Steps													
0	1	6,057	6,131	6,241	6,761	N/A	8,763	7,185	N/A	9,498	7,704	N/A	9,854	10,553
1	2	6,102	6,171	6,763	7,940	N/A	9,109	7,329	N/A	9,856	9,262	N/A	10,612	10,912
2	3	6,209	6,947	7,992	8,929	N/A	9,378	7,438	N/A	10,120	10,418	N/A	10,866	11,164
3	4	6,913	7,805	8,826	9,119	N/A	9,554	7,727	N/A	10,283	10,577	N/A	11,015	11,309
4	5	7,972	8,874	9,088	9,376	N/A	9,810	8,811	N/A	10,534	10,820	N/A	11,253	11,542
5	6	8,958	9,172	9,386	9,677	N/A	10,105	9,868	N/A	10,821	11,109	N/A	11,537	11,824
6	7	9,315	9,530	9,750	10,031	N/A	10,462	10,750	N/A	11,181	11,465	N/A	11,897	12,181
7	8	9,615	9,826	10,039	10,327	N/A	10,753	11,035	N/A	11,462	11,744	N/A	12,178	12,461
8	9	9,968	10,180	10,394	10,680	N/A	11,106	11,392	N/A	11,820	12,104	N/A	12,530	12,814
9	10	10,327	10,539	10,753	11,035	N/A	11,462	11,744	N/A	12,178	12,461	N/A	12,887	13,173
10	11	10,680	10,893	11,106	11,392	N/A	11,820	12,104	N/A	12,530	12,814	N/A	13,242	13,528
11	12	11,035	11,250	11,462	11,744	N/A	12,178	12,461	N/A	12,887	13,173	N/A	13,601	13,884
12	13				12,104	N/A	12,530	12,814	N/A	13,242	13,528	N/A	13,954	14,239
13	14					N/A		13,173	N/A	13,601	14,594	N/A	15,024	15,307
With 20-yr	Increment	11,586	11,813	12,035	12,709	N/A	13,156	13,832	N/A	14,281	15,324	N/A	15,776	16,073

**TWENTY YEAR** 

INCREMENT=

5% above last row in column

\*\* Certificated Teachers hired after September 1, 1999 will be placed on the new Tacoma School District schedule consistent with state guidelines for placement on the LEAP salary allocation documents.

Reviewed and approved by:

Column	DEGREE	MINIMUM	**
1	Bachelor's	BA + 0	
2	Bachelor's	BA + 15	
3	Bachelor's	BA + 30	
4	Bachelor's	BA + 45	
6	Bachelor's	BA + 90	
7	Master's	MA + 0	
9 *	Bachelor's	BA + 135 (Grandfathered per RCW 28A.150.410)	
10	Master's	MA + 45	
12	Master's	MA + 90	
13	Doctorate	PHD	

#### Teachers Hired Before 9/1/99

#### 2014-15 TEACHERS' BASE SALARY SCHEDULE

**EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2014** 

COLUMN	<u></u>	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)*	(8)*	(9)*	(10)*	(11)*	(12)*	(13)
YEARS	<u>Steps</u>													
12	13				48,251	49,102	49,954	51,089	51,940	52,792	53,928	54,779	55,631	56,766
13	14							52,509	53,360	54,211	58,186	59,037	59,888	61,024
With 20-yr	Increment	46,194	47,087	47,981	50,664	51,557	52,452	55,134	56,028	56,922	61,095	61,989	62,882	64,075
TWENTY INCREME		5% a	bove last r	ow in colu	mn									

NOTE: For Extra Pay for Extra Work use a base of \$40,105

Reviewed and approved by: Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources Chief Financial Officer Date

Column	DEGREE	MINIMUM
1	Bachelor's	
2	Bachelor's	195 q.h.
3	Bachelor's	210 q.h.
4	Bachelor's	225 q.h.
5	Bachelor's	240 q.h., including 15 graduate
6	Bachelor's	255 q.h., including 30 graduate
7	Master's OR Bachelor's	225 q.h. (M) or 270 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
8	Master's OR Bachelor's	240 q.h. (M) or 285 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
9	Master's OR Bachelor's	255 q.h. (M) or 300 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
10	Master's OR Bachelor's	270 q.h. (M) or 315 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
11	Master's OR Bachelor's	285 q.h. (M) or 330 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
12	Master's OR Bachelor's	300 q.h. (M) or 345 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
13	Earned Doctorate Degree	

# 102

#### Teachers Hired Before 9/1/99

#### 2014-15 TEACHERS' PRS (PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY STIPEND) SALARY SCHEDULE

**EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2014** 

COLUMN	<b></b>	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)*	(8)*	(9)*	(10)*	(11)*	(12)*	(13)
YEARS	<u>Steps</u>													,
12 13	13 14				12,104	12,316	12,530	12,814 13,173	13,031 13,384	13,242 13,601	13,528 14,594	13,741 14,808	13,954 15,024	14,239 15,307
With 20-yr	Increment	11,586	11,813	12,035	12,709	12,932	13,156	13,832	14,053	14,281	15,324	15,548	15,776	16,073
TWENTY INCREME		5% a	ibove last i	row in colu	ımn									

Reviewed and approved by:

8/28/14 Date

2

10 11

12

13

DEGREE Column **MINIMUM** Bachelor's Bachelor's 195 q.h. 210 q.h. Bachelor's Bachelor's 225 q.h. Bachelor's 240 q.h., including 15 graduate Bachelor's 255 q.h., including 30 graduate Master's OR Bachelor's 225 q.h. (M) or 270 q.h., including 45 graduate (B) Master's OR Bachelor's 240 q.h. (M) or 285 q.h., including 45 graduate (B) Master's OR Bachelor's 255 q.h. (M) or 300 q.h., including 45 graduate (B) Master's OR Bachelor's 270 q.h. (M) or 315 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B) Master's OR Bachelor's 285 q.h. (M) or 330 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B) Master's OR Bachelor's 300 q.h. (M) or 345 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B) Earned Doctorate Degree

## 2014-15 TEACHERS' COMBINED SALARY SCHEDULE (INCLUDES BASE + PRS AMOUNTS)

EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2014

	BA=> MA=> PhD=>	01	02	03	04	05	06	07 7A	08 8A	09 9A	10 1A	11 2A	12 3A	13	
YEARS	Pay Steps														
0 1 2	1 2 3	40,105 40,478 41,093 42,077	40,479 40,765 42,179 43,145	40,850 41,856 43,260 44,241	41,490 43,313 44,733 45,704	42,586 44,411 45,850 46,802	43,679 45,544 46,972 47,896	45,167 47,046 48,463 49,362	46,294 48,179 49,580 50,456	47,425 49,303 50,698 51,551	48,931 50,812 52,190 53,016	50,059 51,941 53,305 54,114	51,190 53,070 54,428 55,211	52,694 54,574 55,919 56,676	NOTE:
4 5 6	5 6 7	43,452 44,820 46,612	44,536 45,895 47,687	45,620 46,969 48,767	47,067 48,408 50,195	48,155 49,480 51,270	49,240 50,557 52,348	50,689 51,988 53,784	51,775 53,067 54,858	52,863 54,141 55,936	54,310 55,577 57,368	55,394 56,651 58,444	56,482 57,727 59,521	57,930 59,162 60,953	For calculating Extra Pay Rates (EPR) use \$40,105
7 8 9 10	8 9 10 11	47,932 49,704 51,482 53,254	48,994 50,767 52,545 54,318	50,058 51,833 53,611 55,383	51,482 53,254 55,029 56,805	52,545 54,318 56,095 57,869	53,611 55,383 57,158 58,935	55,029 56,805 58,576 60,355	56,095 57,869 59,643 61,418	57,158 58,935 60,712 62,484	58,576 60,355 62,131 63,903	59,643 61,418 63,197 64,971	60,712 62,484 64,260 66,034	62,131 63,903 65,682 67,456	20 YEAR INCREMENT = 5% above last row in column (applied to Base + PRS Total)
11 12 13 With 20-y	12 13 14 <mark>rr Increment</mark>	55,029 <b>57,780</b>	56,095 <b>58,900</b>	57,158 <b>60,016</b>	58,576 60,355 <b>63,373</b>	59,643 61,418 <b>64,489</b>	60,712 62,484 65,608	62,131 63,903 65,682 68,966	63,197 64,971 66,744 <b>70,081</b>	64,260 66,034 67,812 <b>71,203</b>	65,682 67,456 72,780 <b>76,419</b>	66,744 68,520 73,845 77,537	67,812 69,585 74,912 <b>78,658</b>	69,231 71,005 76,331 <b>80,148</b>	

## INDIVIDUAL PLACEMENT ON SALARY SCHEDULE

## Teachers Hired On or Before 9/1/99

Pay Grade	DEGREE	MINIMUM
01	Bachelor's	
02	Bachelor's	195 q.h.
03	Bachelor's	210 q.h.
04	Bachelor's	225 գ.հ.
05	Bachelor's	240 q.h., including 15 graduate
06	Bachelor's	255 q.h., including 30 graduate
7A/07	Master's OR Bachelor's	225 q.h. (M) or 270 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
8A/08	Master's OR Bachelor's	240 q.h. (M) or 285 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
9A/09	Master's OR Bachelor's	255 q.h. (M) or 300 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
1A/10	Master's OR Bachelor's	270 q.h. (M) or 315 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
2A/11	Master's OR Bachelor's	285 q.h. (M) or 330 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
3A/12	Master's OR Bachelor's	300 q.h. (M) or 345 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
13	Earned Doctorate Degree	

## **Teachers Hired After 9/1/99**

ay Grade	DEGREE	MINIMUM
01	Bachelor's	BA + 0
02	Bachelor's	BA + 15
03	Bachelor's	BA + 30
04	Bachelor's	BA + 45
N/A	N/A	
06	Bachelor's	BA + 90
7A	Master's	MA + 0
N/A	N/A	
9A	Bachelor's	BA + 135 (Grandfathered per RCW 28A.150.410)
1A	Master's	MA + 45
N/A	N/A	
3A	Master's	MA + 90
13	Doctorate	PHD

Certificated Teachers hired after September 1, 1999 will be placed on the new Tacoma School District schedule consistent with state guidelines for placement on the LEAP salary allocation documents.

103

## Teachers Hired Before 9/1/99 2014-15 TEACHERS' COMBINED SALARY SCHEDULE (INCLUDES BASE + PRS AMOUNTS) EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2014

	BA==> MA==> PhD==>	01	02	03	04	05	06	07 7A	08 8A	09 9A	10 1A	11 2 <b>A</b>	12 3A	13
<u>YEARS</u> 12 13	Pay Steps 13 14				60,355	61,418	62,484	63,903 65,682	64,971 66,744	66,034 67,812	67,456 72,780	68,520 73,845	69,585 74,912	71,005 76,331
With 20-yr	Increment	57,780	58,900	60,016	63,373	64,489	65,608	68,966	70,081	71,203	76,419	77,537	78,658	80,148
Percent Inci	rease>	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%

20 YEAR INCREMENT =

5% above last row in column

(applied to Base + PRS Total)

NOTE: For Extra Pay for Extra Work use a base of \$40,105

Pay Grade	DEGREE	MINIMUM
01	Bachelor's	
02	Bachelor's	195 q.h.
03	Bachelor's	210 q.h.
04	Bachelor's	225 q.h.
05	Bachelor's	240 q.h., including 15 graduate
06	Bachelor's	255 q.h., including 30 graduate
7A/07	Master's OR Bachelor's	225 q.h. (M) or 270 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
8A/08	Master's OR Bachelor's	240 q.h. (M) or 285 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
9A/09	Master's OR Bachelor's	255 q.h. (M) or 300 q.h., including 45 graduate (B)
1A/10	Master's OR Bachelor's	270 q.h. (M) or 315 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
2A/11	Master's OR Bachelor's	285 q.h. (M) or 330 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
3A/12	Master's OR Bachelor's	300 q.h. (M) or 345 q.h., including 67.5 graduate (B)
13	Earned Doctorate Degree	

# Teachers Hired After 9/1/99 2014-15 TEACHERS' COMBINED SALARY SCHEDULE (INCLUDES BASE + PRS AMOUNTS) EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 1, 2014

Pay Grade	<b>→</b>	01	02	03	04	05	06	7A	8A	9A	1A	2A	3A	13
Education	<u></u>	BA + 0	BA + 15	BA + 30	BA + 45	N/A	BA + 90	MA + 0	N/A	BA + 135	MA + 45	N/A	MA + 90	PHD
<u>YEARS</u>	Pay Steps													,
0	1	40,105	40,479	40,850	41,490	N/A	43,679	48,005	N/A	47,425	49,057	N/A	51,243	52,694
1	2	40,478	40,765	41,856	43,313	N/A	45,544	48,380	N/A	49,303	50,878	N/A	53,070	54,574
2	3	41,093	42,179	43,260	44,733	N/A	46,972	48,587	N/A	50,698	52,190	N/A	54,428	55,919
3	4	42,077	43,145	44,241	45,704	N/A	47,896	49,426	N/A	51,551	53,016	N/A	55,211	56,676
4	5	43,452	44,536	45,620	47,067	N/A	49,240	50,699	N/A	52,863	54,310	N/A	56,482	57,930
5	6	44,820	45,895	46,969	48,408	N/A	50,557	51,987	N/A	54,141	55,577	N/A	57,727	59,162
6	7	46,612	47,687	48,767	50,195	N/A	52,348	53,784	N/A	55,936	57,368	N/A	59,521	60,953
7	8	47,932	48,994	50,058	51,482	N/A	53,611	55,029	N/A	57,158	58,576	N/A	60,712	62,131
8	9	49,704	50,767	51,833	53,254	N/A	55,383	56,805	N/A	58,935	60,355	N/A	62,484	63,903
9	10	51,482	52,545	53,611	55,029	N/A	57,158	58,576	N/A	60,712	62,131	N/A	64,260	65,682
10	11	53,254	54,318	55,383	56,805	N/A	58,935	60,355	N/A	62,484	63,903	N/A	66,034	67,456
11	12	55,029	56,095	57,158	58,576	N/A	60,712	62,131	N/A	64,260	65,682	N/A	67,812	69,231
12	13				60,355	N/A	62,484	63,903	N/A	66,034	67,456	N/A	69,585	71,005
13	14					N/A		65,682	N/A	67,812	72,780	N/A	74,912	76,331
With 20-yr	r Increment	57,780	58,900	60,016	63,373	N/A	65,608	68,966	N/A	71,203	76,419	N/A	78,658	80,148

20 YEAR INCREMENT = (applied to Base + PRS Total)

5% above last row in column

NOTE: For Extra Pay for Extra Work use a base of \$40,105

Pay Grade	DEGREE	MINIMUM	×
01	Bachelor's	BA + 0	
02	Bachelor's	BA + 15	
03	Bachelor's	BA + 30	
04	Bachelor's	BA + 45	
06	Bachelor's	BA + 90	
7A	Master's	MA + 0	
9A	Bachelor's	BA + 135 (Grandfathered per RCW 28A.150.410)	
1 <b>A</b>	Master's	MA + 45	
3A	Master's	MA + 90	
13	Doctorate	PHD	

<sup>\*\*</sup> Certificated Teachers hired after September 1, 1999 will be placed on the new Tacoma School District schedule consistent with state guidelines for placement on the LEAP salary allocation documents.

#### **Instructions / How to Use This Excel Workbook Application**

This workbook is designed to be a "toolbox," a resource of documents to assist you in evaluating teachers using the comprehensive tool and 8 state criteria.

#### How to Print from the Observation and Additional Evidence tabs:

"Shift-Click" on the Comments/Ouestions cell associated with the last completed observation row.

a. "Select All" by clicking on box in upper left corner of spreadsheet



TEC CEC CFC 7 Comments/Questions

Note
Note 2
Last Comment

c. Click the "**Print Spreadsheet**" button

#### **Tab Overview:**

#### 1. Instructions

This tab contains instructions for using this toolbox.

#### 2. Criteria

A list of the **8** State evaluation criteria.

#### 3. Employee Info - Who, What, When

A place for you to enter basic information: teacher's name, evaluator's name, etc. Once you complete this tab, this data will auto populate on other tabs.

#### 4. Pre-Post Confirmation

Record date and time of observations, including pre and post conferences. Print and save for all observations.

#### 5. Observation1

A place for you to enter your Observation 1 notes, and tie each observation/evidence item to a specific dimension.

#### 6. Observation 2

A place for you to enter your Observation 2 notes, and tie each observation/evidence item to a specific dimension.

#### 7. Observation 3

A place for you to enter your Observation 3 notes, and tie each observation/evidence item to a specific dimension.

#### 8. Additional Evidence

A place for you to enter additional observation notes or evidence, and tie each observation/evidence item to a specific dimension.

#### 9. Student Growth

A place for you to enter Student Growth notes, and tie each note/evidence to a specific dimension.

#### 10. Rubric

The final evaluation document for your teacher. Information from each observation will populate onto this document, under the appropriate dimension based on your elections made on the other tabs.

#### 11. NextSteps

A place to enter next steps for each Criterion.

#### 12. Summary

A document reflecting the teacher's final evaluation score, and student growth score. The State criteria scores will auto populate based on your overall component ratings entered on the Rubric.

#### 13. Explanation

Explanation of Unsatisfactory or Basic Rating

106

#### **Teacher Evaluation - Criteria**

Criterio	n 1: Centering instruction on high expectations for student achievement
P1	Connection to standards, broader purpose and transferable skill
. <u>-</u> Р4	Communication of learning target(s)
г <del>-</del> Р5	Success criteria and performance task(s)
SE3	Work of high cognitive demand
CEC3	Discussion, collaboration and accountability
CECS	Discussion, conductation and accountability
Criterio	n 2: Demonstrating effective teaching practices
SE1	Quality of questioning
SE5	Expectation, support and opportunity for participation and meaning making
SE6	Substance of student talk
CP6	Scaffolds the task
CP7	Gradual release of responsibility
CF7	Gradual release of responsibility
Criterio	n 3: Recognizing individual student learning needs and developing strategies to address those needs
Р3	Teaching point(s) are based on students' learning needs
SE2	Ownership of learning
SE4	Strategies that capitalize on learning needs of students
CP5	Differentiated instruction
A6	Teacher use of formative assessment data Student Growth
SG 3.1	Establish Student Growth Goal(s)
SG 3.2	Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)
30 J.Z	removement of student Growth Godings
Criterio	n 4: Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum
P2	Connection to previous and future lessons
CP1	Alignment of instructional materials and tasks
CP2	Discipline-specific conceptual understanding
CP3	Pedagogical content knowledge
CP4	Teacher knowledge of content
CF4	reactief knowledge of content
Criterio	n 5: Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment
CEC1	Arrangement of classroom
CEC2	Accessibility and use of materials
CEC4	Use of learning time
CEC5	Managing student behavior
	Student status
CEC6	
CEC7	Norms for learning
Critorio	
	n 6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning
	n 6: Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning
A1	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria
A1 A2	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning
A1 A2 A3	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria Demonstration of learning Formative assessment opportunities
A1 A2 A3 A4	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2 Criterion PCC3	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community  Parents and guardians
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2 Criterion PCC3 PCC4	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  n 7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community  Parents and guardians  Communication within the school community about student progress
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2 Criterion PCC3 PCC4	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  n 7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community  Parents and guardians  Communication within the school community about student progress  n 8: Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practice and student learning
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2 Criterion PCC3 PCC4 Criterion	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community  Parents and guardians  Communication within the school community about student progress  18: Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practice and student learning  Collaboration with peers and administrators to improve student learning
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2  Criterion PCC3 PCC4  Criterion PCC1 PCC2	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community  Parents and guardians  Communication within the school community about student progress  18: Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practice and student learning  Collaboration with peers and administrators to improve student learning  Professional and collegial relationships
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2  Criterion PCC3 PCC4  Criterion PCC1 PCC1 PCC2 PCC5	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  T. Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community  Parents and guardians  Communication within the school community about student progress  18: Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practice and student learning  Collaboration with peers and administrators to improve student learning  Professional and collegial relationships  Supports school, district, and state curriculum, policy and initiatives
A1 A2 A3 A4 A5 SG6.1 SG6.2  Criterion PCC3 PCC4  Criterion PCC1 PCC2	Self-assessment of learning connected to the success criteria  Demonstration of learning  Formative assessment opportunities  Collection systems for formative assessment data  Student use of assessment data  Establish Student Growth Goal(s)  Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  7: Communicating and collaborating with parents and the school community  Parents and guardians  Communication within the school community about student progress  18: Exhibiting collaborative and collegial practices focused on improving instructional practice and student learning  Collaboration with peers and administrators to improve student learning  Professional and collegial relationships

Enter Basic Information here									
Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name								
Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name								
School:	Select School								
Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)								
Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)								
School Year:	2014-15								
Teaching in Area of	Select value								
Endorsement?:									
Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type								
Comments:	Enter additional comments here								
Teacher Employee	0								
Number									

#### **Teacher Evaluation - Pre-Post Confirmation**

No

Observation 1	Date	Time	Evaluator's Signature	Teacher's Signature
Pre-Conference				
Observation 1				
Post Conference				

Observation 2	Date	Time	Evaluator's Signature	Teacher's Signature
Pre-Conference				
Observation 2				
Post Conference				

Observation 3	Date	Time	Evaluator's Signature	Teacher's Signature
Pre-Conference				
Observation 3				
Post Conference				

109

		Evidence Gath	ering - Observation	One					
TACOMA	Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Princip	oal Name		School:	Select School	
IACOMA	Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	# of Students:				Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)	
	Observation Date:		Start Time:				School Year:	2014-15	
EVERY STUDENT. EVERY DAY,			End Time:				Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation	n Type
	Teaching in Area of						n n	Enter additional o	omments here
	Endorsement	Select value	Total Time:	0:00			Comments:		
			Dimensions of To	aching :	and Lanuni	na.			
	_	3 1	Dimensions of Te	acning a	ing Learnii	ng:			
1 - PURPOSE P1: Connection to standards, broader purposen and transferable skill P2: Connection to previous and future lessor P3: Teaching point(s) are based on student's learning needs P4: Communication of learning target(s) P5: Success criteria and performance task(s)	SE1: Quality of SE2: Ownersh SE3: Work of SE4: Strategie of ss SE5: Expectat	ENGAGEMENT of questioning hip of learning high cognitive demand es that capitalize on learning needs tudents cion, support and opportunity for ticipation and meaning making the of student talk	3 -CURRICULUM & PI CP1: Alignment of instr tasks CP2: Discipline-specific CP3: Pedagogical conte CP4: Teacher knowled CP5: Differentiated ins CP6: Scaffolds the task CP7: Gradual release of	ructional ma c conceptual ent knowled ge of conten struction	understanding ge	A1: Self-as A2: Demo A3: Forma A4: Collect A5: Stude	sment for students sessment of learning consuccess criteria instration of learning stive assessment opportion systems for format data intuse of assessment deer use of formative asses	tunities sive assessment	5 -CLASSROOM ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE CEC1: Arrangement of classroom CEC2: Accessibility and use of materials CEC3: Discussion, collaboration and accountability CEC4: Use of learning time CEC5: Managing student behavior CEC6: Student status CEC7: Norms for learning
Observation:	Dimension:								

Time Notes P1 P2 P2 P3 P4 P5	O D D C I V U C I O I I I																																
	Time	Notes	P1	P2	Р3	P4	P5	SE1	SE2	SE3	SE4	SE5	SE6	CP1	CP2	СРЗ	CP4	CP5	CP6	СР7	<b>A1</b>	A2	А3	A4	<b>A</b> 5	A6	CEC 1	CEC CE	C CE	C CE	C CE	C CEC	Comments/Questions
																																	1
				1	+	1																						_	_	_	_	+-	<del> </del>
				_	+	+																-		<b>-</b>	+	+	+		_	_	_	_	+
				-	+	+	1								1									<del></del>				_	_	_	_	+-	+
					+	1											_							-	+	+	-		_	_	_	_	-
					+	1									1									-				_	_	_	_	_	
																									1	1			_	_	_		
					4	1	<u> </u>								<u> </u>									L .					_	_	_		
							<u> </u>																										
																													_	_	_		
																									1								1
					1	1																		<b></b>					+	+	+	_	-
				_	+	+																-		<b>-</b>	+	+	+		_	_	_	_	<del> </del>
				-	+	1																		<del>                                     </del>				-	_	_	_	-	-
				-	+	1																		<del>                                     </del>				-	_	_	_	-	-
					+	1									1									-				_	_	_	_	_	4
					4	1	<u> </u>								<u> </u>									L .					_	_	_		
																													_	_	_		4
							<u> </u>																										
							<u> </u>																										
																											-						
																													$\top$	$\top$	$\top$		
				_	+	+	-								<del>                                     </del>		1							<del></del>			-		+	+	+	_	+
				<del>                                     </del>	+-	+	<b>-</b>								_									H			-		+	+	+	+	4
				_	_	-	-								-		-							-		_			+	+	+	_	
						1																							+	+	+	_	4
				_	-	1									-									<b></b>								_	
																													_	_	_		4

		1													_																						
											Gath	ering			l Evi																						
TA	CÔMA			Name				cher's I	Name	!	100			iator:		Enter	Princ	ipal Na	ame		J		Scho				ct Scl										
IA	COMA			vel(s)		Ente	r Grac	des(s)						Studer				1						ect(s):				ject(s)									
PILBI	IC SCHOOLS	Obse	ervati	ion D	ate:									Time:										ol Year:			4-15										
	RY STUDENT. EVERY DAY.			. :	<b>.</b>		_						End 1	Γime:									Evalu	ıation T	уре:			aluatio									
				seme	rea of	Selec	+ valu	10					Total	Time:		n.	00						Comi	ments:		Ente	er add	itional	comn	nents he	e						
		-	illuor	seme	:110	Selec	L Valu	Je					IULai	mine.		0.	00						Com	iieiits.													
																	in i	mor	sion	ns +																	
																_	וטי	IIICI	13101	13 1											_	_	_	_	=	_	1
1 - PURPOSE			2 -67	TUDE	NT EN	ic vei	ENJEN	JT				3 -CUR	DICIIII	INA S.	DEDA	cocv	,			4-7	CCEC	SMEN!	T EOD	STUDE	NTIE	DNIIN	ıc	5 -0	۸ ۷ ۲ ۲	ROOM E	NIVIE	ONIN	ENIT	s. cu		DE.	
P1: Connecti	ion to standards, broader purpos	ie .			lity of c			••				CP1: A						als and	.					leaming						ange mer				a co	-101	,,	
and	d transferable skill				ership								task									success						CEC	2: Acc	essibility	/ and u	use of i	mate	rials			
P2: Connection	on to previous and future lesson: point(s) are based on student's	S	SE3	: Wor	k of hig	gh cog	nitive	demar	nd			<b>CP2</b> : D	isciplin	e-specif	fic con	ceptua	al und	erstan	ding					earning				CEC	3: Dis	cussion,	collab	oratio	n and	ı			
lea lea	rning needs		SE4		egies t			ze on le	earnin	ig nee	ds	CP3: P												ent oppo				656		account							
P4: Commun	ication of learning target(s)		SES		ctation			nd onn	ortun	ity for		CP4: Te					nt			A4:		tion sys data	stems	for form	ative as	sessir	ent			of learn			wior				
P5: Success c	riteria and performance task(s)		023		partici							CP6: So								A5:			of as se	essment	data					dent stat		Dema	•				
			SE6	: Subs	tance (	of stud	lent ta	alk				<b>CP7</b> : G	ra du al	re le ase	of res	ponsib	ility			A6:	Teach	er use o	of forr	native as	ses sme	nt dat	а	CEC	<b>7:</b> No	ms for le	arnin	g					
																															_	_		_	_	_	
	AL COLLABORATION & COM																																				
	C1: Collaboration with peers and C2: Professional and collegial rela			ors to	ımpro	ve stu	dent l	eamin	g			arentsa ommun			tho c-	hool -		mitre -	hout -	tudo:-+	nro.c.				: Suppo : Ethics				and st	ta te curri	culum	ı, polic	y and	J initia	tives		
			_							P	<b>UL4</b> : C	ommun	ıcation	within i	LIE SC	ווטטו כנ	riiffiU	нику а	DOUT S	Luuent	progre	E 55		rut:	CUIICS	and a	avo(cd(	У			_	_	_	_	_		
Observation	<u> </u>	Dim	ensi	on:																											_						
Time	Notes	P1	P2	Р3	P4	P5	SE1	SE2	SE3	SE4	SE5	SE6	CP1	CP2	СРЗ	CP4	CP5	CP6	CP7	A1	A2	А3	A4	A5 A	16 CE	C CEC	CEC	CEC	CEC	CEC CEC	PCC	PCC	PCC	PCC	PCC	PCC 6	Comments/Questions
						+			+	+	+	+							+	+							3	4	5	6 /	++		3	4	<u> </u>	-6	
						1													1												$\mathbf{T}$	$\top$		$\vdash$			
																				4									_		4	1				<u> </u>	
			-	+	+	+	1	+	1	+-	+	+				1		-	+	+					_	+	1		-		+	+-	╁	$\vdash$	_	+-	
																				4									_		4	1				<u> </u>	
				-	+	+		-		-	+	-							1	+					_	+-			-		+	+-	$\vdash$	+	<del> </del>	₩	
																				1											4	1	ш		Ш.	<u> </u>	
			-	+	+	+	1	+	1	+-	+	+				1		-	+	+					_	+	1		-		+	+-	╁	$\vdash$	_	+-	
																															┺	$\blacksquare$				$\sqsubseteq$	
			-	+	+	+	1	+	1	+-	+	+				1		-	+	+					_	+	1		-		+	+-	╁	$\vdash$	_	+-	
				1	1	1	<u> </u>			_		_							1	4—					_	-					4—	4—'	<u> </u>	+	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
				+	+	+		+	1	+	+	+						1	1	+-						+-	1		-		+	+	$\vdash$	${m  o}$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	
						<del>                                     </del>			+	_		-							<u> </u>	4						_	+		_		4			+	—	<del></del> '	
							1																								+	+		$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	
					-	-	<u> </u>	_				-				_			_	4—					_	_		$\vdash$			4	+-	<u> </u>	+	$\vdash$	<del>                                     </del>	
							1																								+	+		$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	
			-		-	-	1			-	-	+							1	-						-	-				4	+-	$\vdash$	$m{-}$	$\vdash$	<del></del>	
																															+	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	
			1		-	-	1			-	-	+							1	-						-	-				4	+-	$\vdash$	$m{-}$	$\vdash$	<del></del>	
																															+	+	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	
																															lacksquare						
			-		-	-	1			-	-	+							1	-						-	-				4	+-	$\vdash$	$m{-}$	$\vdash$	<del></del>	
										1																$\top$			7		+	T	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	Н	
							1	-				-							1	+-								$\vdash$			+-	+-	$\vdash$	+	$\vdash$	<del>                                     </del>	
																															+	+	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	$\vdash$	
							1	-	1	-	-	+							1	_						-			_		+	+-	$\vdash$	+	$\vdash$	<del>                                     </del>	
									L																		L				lacktriangleq	$t^{-}$			t		
							1	-				-							1	+-								$\vdash$			+-	+-	$\vdash$	+	$\vdash$	<del>                                     </del>	
						1			1										1	+-							+				+	+-	$\vdash$	-	$\vdash$	+	

		Stı	udent Growth Notes			
TACOMA PUBLIC SCHOOLS EVERY STUDENT. EVERY DAY.	SG 3.2 Achievement SG 6.1 Establish SG 6.2 Achievement	Enter Teacher's Name Enter Grades(s) 2014-15 Select value  Student Growth Goal(sent of Student Growth Goal(sent Growth Goal(sent of Student Growth Goal(sent of Student Growth Goal(sent of Student Growth Goal(sent of Student Growth Goal)	s) Goal(s) s) Goal(s)	Evaluator: School: Subject(s): Evaluation Type: Comments:	Enter Principal Name Select School Enter Subject(s) Select Evaluation Type Enter additional commer	its here
Observation:		Dimension:				
Date	Notes	3.1	3.2	6.1	6.2	8.1
Date		3.1	3.2	0.1	6.2	6.1

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	School:	Iselect School
School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	ISelect value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
		Comments:	Enter additional comments here
Criterion 1: Centering instruction on his	gh expectations for student achievement		
P1: Purpose – Standards: Connection to standa			
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
The lesson is not based on grade level standards. There are no learning targets aligned to the standard. The lesson does not link to broader purpose or a transferable skill.	The lesson is based on grade level standards and the learning target(s) align to the standard. The lesson is occasionally linked to broader purpose or a transferable skill.	The lesson is based on grade level standards and the learning target(s) align to the standard. The lesson is frequently linked to broader purpose or a transferable skill.	The lesson is based on grade level standards and the learning target(s) align to the standard. The lesson is consistently linked to broader purpose or a transferable skill.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
P4: Purpose – Learning Target: Communication	of loarning target(s)		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Olisatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2		
Teacher rarely or never states or communicates with students about the learning target(s).	Teacher states the learning target(s) at the beginning of each lesson.	Teacher communicates the learning target(s) through verbal and visual strategies and checks for student understanding of what the target(s) are.	Teacher communicates the learning target(s) through verbal and visual strategies, checks for student understanding of what the target(s) are and references the target throughout instruction.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
DF: Drumana Lagurius Tourst: Cusses suitsuis			
P5: Purpose – Learning Target: Success criteria Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished 4
Unsatisfactory – 1		Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
The success criteria for the learning target(s) are nonexistent or aren't clear to students.	The success criteria for the learning target(s) are clear to students. The performance tasks align to the success criteria in a limited manner.	The success criteria for the learning target(s) are clear to students. The performance tasks align to the success criteria.	The success criteria for the learning target(s) are clear to students. The performance tasks align to the success criteria. Students refer to success criteria and use them for improvement.
Evidence:			
		<u> </u>	
	Rating:		
CF2: Children Franciscon Francisco Children	anian Hink comitive domand		
SE3: Student Engagement – Engagement Strate	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished 4
Unsatisfactory – 1 Teacher expectations and strategies engage few or no		Teacher expectations and strategies engage most students in work	<b>Distinguished – 4</b> Teacher expectations and strategies engage most students in work
students in work of high cognitive demand.  Evidence:	of high cognitive demand.	of high cognitive demand.	of high cognitive demand.
	Rating:		

<u>\_\_</u>

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
Grade Level(s):	Enter Teacher's Name Enter Grades(s)	School:	Iselect School
School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	ISelect value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
	sroom Routines & Rituals: Discussion, collaboration an		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Routines for discussion and collaborative work are absent, poorly executed or do not hold students accountable for their work and learning.	Routines for discussion and collaborative work are present, but may not result in effective discourse. Students are held accountable for completing their work but not for learning.	Routines for discussion and collaborative work have been taught, are evident, and result in effective discourse related to the lesson purpose. With prompts, students use these routines during the lesson. Students are held accountable for their work and learning.	Routines for discussion and collaborative work have been explicitly taught, are evident, and result in effective discourse related to the lesson purpose. Students independently use these routines during the lesson. Students are held accountable for their work, take ownership for their learning and support the learning of others.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
	Katiny.		
		Criterion 1 Average Rating:	0.000
		Criterion 1 Average Rating:	0.000
Criterion 2: Demonstrating effective te			
SE1: Student Engagement – Intellectual Work:			
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never asks questions to probe and deepen students' understanding or uncover misconceptions.	Teacher occasionally asks questions to probe and deepen students' understanding or uncover misconceptions.	, Teacher frequently asks questions to probe and deepen students' understanding or uncover misconceptions. Teacher assists students in clarifying their thinking with one another.	Teacher frequently asks questions to probe and deepen students' understanding or uncover misconceptions. Teacher assists students in clarifying and assessing their thinking with one another. Students question one another to probe for deeper thinking.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
SE5: Expectation, support and opportunity for			
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never uses engagement strategies and structures that facilitate participation and meaning making by all students. Few students have the opportunity to engage in quality talk.	Teacher uses engagement strategies and structures that facilitate participation and meaning making by students. Some students have the opportunity to engage in quality talk.	Teacher sets expectation and provides support for a variety of engagement strategies and structures that facilitate participation and meaning making by students. Most students have the opportunity to engage in quality talk.	Teacher sets expectation and provides support for a variety of engagement strategies and structures that facilitate participation and meaning making by students. All students have the opportunity to engage in quality talk. Routines are often student-
Evidence:			HEU.
	Rating:		
SE6: Student Engagement – Talk: Substance of	student talk		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Student talk is nonexistent or is unrelated to content or is limited to single-word responses or incomplete sentences directed to teacher.	Student talk is directed to teacher. Talk associated with content occurs between students, but students do not provide evidence for their thinking.	Student-to-student talk reflects knowledge and ways of thinking associated with the content. Students provide content. Students provide evidence to support their thinking.	Student-to-student talk reflects knowledge and ways of thinking associated with the content. Students provide evidence to support their arguments and new ideas.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
	Katnigi		

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
Grade Level(s): School Year:	Enter Grades(s) 2014-15	School:  Subject(s):	Select School   Enter Subject(s)
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
CP6: Curriculum & Pedagogy – Scaffolds for Le		TEVALUACION TYPE:	TSCICCL EVALUATION TYPE
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never scaffolds tasks for group or	Teacher provides limited scaffolds for individual or group learning	Teacher provides scaffolds and structures that are clearly related	Teacher provides scaffolds and structures that are clearly related
individual learning needs or teacher uses strategies that	needs. Strategies may or may not be relevant to the concepts	to and support the development of the targeted concepts and/or	to and support the development of the targeted concepts and/or
are generic and/or not relevant to the concepts and/or	and/or skills to be learned.	Iskills.	skills. Students use scaffolds across tasks with similar demands.
skills to be learned. <b>Evidence:</b>	,		
Evidence:			
	B (1		
	Rating:		
CP7: Curriculum & Pedagogy – Scaffolds for Le	parning: Gradual release of responsibility		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never uses strategies for the purpose of	Teacher occasionally uses strategies for the purpose of gradually	Teacher frequently uses strategies for the purpose of gradually	Teacher consistently uses strategies for the purpose of gradually
gradually releasing responsibility to students to promote	releasing responsibility to students to promote learning and	releasing responsibility to students to promote learning and	releasing responsibility to students to promote learning and
learning and independence.	independence.	independence.	independence. Students expect to be self-reliant.
	independence.		interportation ordinario dispete to be sen rendita
Evidence:			
	5 ./		
	Rating:		
		Criterion 2 Average Rating:	0.000
Cuitanian 2: Bassaniaina individual atus	doubles wine woods and double wine streets also		0.000
	dent learning needs and developing strategies	s to address those needs.	
P3: Purpose – Teaching Point: Teaching point(s Unsatisfactory – 1		Dueficient 2	Distinguished
	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never bases the teaching point(s) on	Teacher bases the teaching point(s) on students' learning needs –	Teacher bases the teaching point(s) on students' learning needs –	Teacher bases the teaching point(s) on students' learning needs –
students' learning needs – academic background, life experiences, culture and language.	academic background, life experiences, culture and language.	academic background, life experiences, culture and language – for some groups of students	academic background, life experiences, culture and language for groups of students and individual students.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		some groups or students	groups of students and individual students.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
SE2 Student Engagement – Intellectual Work:		Proficient – 3	Distinguished 4
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2		Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never provides opportunities and	Teacher occasionally provides opportunities and strategies for	Teacher provides opportunities and strategies for students to take	Teacher consistently provides opportunities and strategies for
strategies for students to take ownership of their own	students to take ownership of their learning. Locus of control is	ownership of their learning. Some locus of control is with students	students to take ownership of their learning. Most locus of control
learning to develop, test and refine their thinking.	with teacher.	in ways that support students' learning.	is with students in ways that support students' learning.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
CEA Chudont Engagoment Francisco Church	ngios. Stratogios that canitaline on learning useds of st	udonte	
		Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
SE4 Student Engagement – Engagement Strate	Rasic - 2	m romaicht – J	Distinguished = T
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2		Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning
Unsatisfactory – 1 Teacher rarely or never uses strategies based on the	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning
Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher rarely or never uses strategies based on the learning needs of students – academic background, life	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and	needs of students – academic background, life experience and
Unsatisfactory – 1 Teacher rarely or never uses strategies based on the	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning	
Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher rarely or never uses strategies based on the learning needs of students – academic background, life experiences, culture and language of students.	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group and small	needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group, small
Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher rarely or never uses strategies based on the learning needs of students – academic background, life	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group and small	needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group, small
Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher rarely or never uses strategies based on the learning needs of students – academic background, life experiences, culture and language of students.	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group.	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group and small	needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group, small
Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher rarely or never uses strategies based on the learning needs of students – academic background, life experiences, culture and language of students.	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and	Teacher uses strategies that capitalize and are based on learning needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group and small	needs of students – academic background, life experience and culture and language of students – for the whole group, small

index Level(s):	Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
school Year) eschibility Assessment (2) eschibil				
Select value (Proposition of Evaluation Trops)  Five Curriculum & Pedagogy - Teaching Approaches and or Strategies: Differentiated instruction  Insultifactory - 1  Basic - 2  Rating:  Select Valuation Trops  Forficient - 3  Select Valuation Valuation Assertion Trops  Forficient - 3  Select Valuation Valuation Valuation Valua				
### Section of Stategies State differentiates for individual Faming strengths and needs.  #### Section of Individual Faming Strengths and needs.  #### Stategies Stategies State differentiate for individual Faming strengths and needs.  ##### Stategies Stategies State differentiate for individual Faming strengths and needs.  ##### Stategies Stategies State differentiate for individual Faming strengths and needs.  ###################################				
Proficient -3   Distinguished -4			TETATION TYPE	Ocicce Evaluation Type
Teacher consistently uses strategies that differentiate per individual learning strengths and needs.  Teacher consistently uses strategies that differentiate for individual learning strengths and needs.  Teacher consistently uses strategies that differentiate for individual learning strengths and needs.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, profit per uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, profit per uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, profit per uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, profit profit per uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, profit profit per uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional			Proficient - 3	Distinguished – 4
learning strengths and needs. learning strengths and strength and strengths an				
Rating:  166: Assessment for Student Learning — Adjustments: Teacher use of formative assessment data Basic — Proficient — 3 Eacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, give feedback to students or nearly uses formative assessment data to modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  167: Assessment for Student Learning — Adjustments: Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, give feedback to students or nearly lessons.  168: Assessment for Students, give feedback to students or teaching full learning potential. Coal(s) for subgroups of students or teaching full learning potential. Coal(s) of subgroups of students not montion, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  169: Rating:  170: Rating:  180: Ra				
Rating:  16: Assessment for Student Learning – Adjustments: Teacher use of formative assessment data mastifactory – 1  Rasic – 2  Rasic – 2  Rasic – 3  Rasic – 3  Rating:  Ra	for individual learning strengths and needs.	learning strengths and needs.	learning strengths and needs.	learning strengths and needs.
Assessment for Student Learning – Adjustments: Teacher use of formative assessment data Insatisfactory – 1  Basic – 2  Basic – 3  Basic – 2  Basic – 3  Ba	Evidence:			
Assessment for Student Learning – Adjustments: Teacher use of formative assessment data Insatisfactory – 1  Basic – 2  Basic – 3  Basic – 2  Basic – 3  Ba				
Insatisfactory - 1  Basic - 2  Proficient - 3  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, give feetback to students or modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make lends at the learning target.  Teacher uses forma		Rating:		
Insatisfactory - 1  Basic - 2  Proficient - 3  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, give feetback to students or modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make lends at the learning target.  Teacher uses forma				
Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, give feedback to students and productive assessment data to modify future lessons.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment instructional adjustments, modify future lessons.  Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-th				
Teacher uses formative assessment data to modify future lessons. Instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Rating:	Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher uses formative assessment data to modify future lessons. Instructional adjustments, modify future lessons and give general feedback aligned with the learning target.  Rating:	Teacher rarely or never uses formative assessment data to		Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment	Teacher uses formative assessment data to make in-the-moment
rmodify lessons. feedback aligned with the learning target. feedback aligned with the learning target to individual students.  Rating:				
Rating:    Rating:   Student Growth 3.1: Establish Student Growth Goal(s)   Basic 2   Proficient - 3   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) or establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Stablish	or modify lessons.	Todalis association association and to mount todalis issues.		
Rating:    Rating:   Student Growth 3.1: Establish Student Growth Goal(s)   Basic 2   Proficient - 3   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) or establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Stablish	Evidence:			
Insatisfactory — 1 Distinguished — 4 Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) or establishes appropriate goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nulti				
Insatisfactory — 1 Distinguished — 4 Stablishes appropriate student growth goal(s) or establishes appropriate goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  Full learning potential. Goal(s) identify nulti		Patings		
Insatisfactory - 1   Basic - 2   Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) or establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not eaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Evidence:		Katiliy.		
Insatisfactory - 1   Basic - 2   Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) or establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not eaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Evidence:	Charles County 2.1 Establish Charles County	01/-)		
Establishs student growth goal(s) or establish student growth goal(s) or subgroups of supropriate goal(s) for subgroups of students not caching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  **Extudence:**  **Rating:**  **Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  **Extudence:**  **Rating:**  **Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).  **Extudence:**  **Rating:**  **Rating:**  **Basic 2			In e	
Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify nultiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).    Rating:   Students from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for most students.   Rating:	•	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	
Rating:	inappropriate goal(s) for subgroups of students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust,	students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and	students not reaching full learning potential. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and	students not reaching full learning potential in collaboration with students, parents, and other school staff. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate
Rating:  Student Growth 3.2: Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  Insatisfactory – 1  Insertification or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Evidence:  Rating:  Rating:  Distinguished – 4  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Rating:			1 11	achievement of goal(s).
Student Growth 3.2: Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  Insatisfactory - 1  Basic - 2  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in me shows no evidence of growth for most students.  Multiple sources of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show high growth for all or nearly all students .  Multiple sources of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show high growth for all or nearly all students .  Rating:	Evidence:			
Student Growth 3.2: Achievement of Student Growth Goal(s)  Insatisfactory - 1  Basic - 2  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in me shows no evidence of growth for most students.  Multiple sources of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show high growth for all or nearly all students .  Multiple sources of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show high growth for all or nearly all students .  Rating:				
Insatisfactory – 1 Insatisfactor		Rating:		
Insatisfactory – 1 Insatisfactor	Charles County 2.2 Anti-			
with or achievement data from at least two points in me shows no evidence of growth for most students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two points in time show high growth for all or nearly all students.  Fvidence:  Rating:			Duefficient 2	Diskin swish ad A
me shows no evidence of growth for most students. points in time show some evidence of growth for some students. points in time show some evidence of growth for some students. points in time show high growth for all or nearly all students .  Fvidence:  Rating:				
Rating:	Growth or achievement data from at least two points in time shows no evidence of growth for most students.			,
Rating:	Evidence	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	j. , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	LVIGENCE			
		D = Mo au		
Criterion 3 Average Rating: 0.000		Rating:		
Criterion 5 Average Rating: 0.000			Critorion 3 Avorago Patings	0.000
			Criterion 3 Average Rating.	0.000

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	School:	ISelect School
School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
	onal focus on subject matter content and curi		44
P2: Purpose – Standards: Connection to previo			
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
The lesson is rarely or never linked to previous and future lessons.	The lesson is clearly linked to previous and future lessons.	The lesson is clearly linked to previous and future lessons. Lessons build on each other in a logical progression.	The lesson is clearly linked to previous and future lessons. Lessons build on each other in ways that enhance student learning. Students understand how the lesson relates to previous lesson.
Evidence:			
		1	
	Rating:		
CD1 Comingly C Dada as a Comingly C			
CP1: Curriculum & Pedagogy — Curriculum: Alig Unsatisfactory — 1	nment of instructional materials and tasks  Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished 4
		Instructional materials and tasks align with the purpose of the unit	Distinguished – 4 Instructional materials and tasks align with the purpose of the unit
	Instructional materials and tasks align with the purpose of the unit	and lesson. Materials and tasks frequently align with student's level	
the purpose of the unit and lesson.	and lesson.	of challenge.	level of challenge.
Evidence:		Tor Challeride.	never of challenge.
	Rating:	,	
CP2: Curriculum & Pedagogy - Teaching Appro	aches and/or Strategies: Discipline-specific conceptua	l understanding	
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never uses discipline-specific teaching			
approaches and strategies that develop students'	Teacher occasionally uses discipline-specific teaching approaches	Teacher frequently uses discipline-specific teaching approaches and	
conceptual understanding.	and strategies that develop students' conceptual understanding.	strategies that develop students' conceptual understanding.	and strategies that develop students' conceptual understanding.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
	aches and/or Strategies: Pedagogical content knowled		District 4
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Instruction is rarely or never consistent with pedagogical	Instruction is occasionally consistent with pedagogical content	Instruction is frequently consistent with pedagogical content	Instruction is always consistent with pedagogical content
	knowledge and supports students in discipline-specific habits of	knowledge and supports students in discipline-specific habits of	knowledge and supports students in discipline-specific habits of thinking.
content knowledge and does not support students in	thinking		
discipline-specific habits of thinking.	thinking.	thinking.	unindig.
	thinking.	tninking.	Liming.
discipline-specific habits of thinking.			Liming.
discipline-specific habits of thinking.	thinking.  Rating:		uning.

Too ah ay Mayray	Inter Took ode News	Fralmatan	Enter Dringing News
Teacher Name: Grade Level(s):	Enter Teacher's Name Enter Grades(s)	Evaluator:  School:	Enter Principal Name  Select School
School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	2014-15  Select value	Subject(s):  Evaluation Type:	Enter Subject(s) Select Evaluation Type
	aches and/or Strategies: Teacher knowledge of conten		ISEIECC Evaluation Type
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Olisatistactory – 1	Dasic – Z		1
		Teacher demonstrates a solid understanding of how discipline-	Teacher demonstrates an in-depth understanding of how discipline-
Teacher demonstrates a lack of knowledge of discipline-	Teacher demonstrates a basic knowledge of how discipline-based	based concepts relate to or build upon one another. Teacher	based concepts relate to or build upon one another. Teacher
based concepts by making content errors.	concepts relate to or build upon one another.	identifies and addresses student misconceptions in the lesson or	identifies and addresses student misconceptions that impact
		unit.	conceptual understanding over time.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
		Criterion 4 Average Rating:	0.000
Criterion 5: Fostering and managing a s	safe, positive learning environment.		
	of Physical Environment: Arrangement of classroom		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Physical environment of the room is unsafe and the	The physical environment is safe but the arrangement neither		The physical environment is safe, and the arrangement supports
arrangement gets in the way or distracts from student	supports nor distracts from student learning or the purpose of the	The physical environment is safe, and the arrangement supports	student learning and the purpose of the lesson. Teacher and
learning and the purpose of the lesson.	lesson.	student learning and the purpose of the lesson.	students use the physical arrangement for learning.
<u> </u>	lesson.		students use the physical arrangement for learning.
Evidence:	<del>,                                      </del>		
	Rating:		
CEC2 Classroom Environment & Culture – Use of	of Physical Environment: Accessibility and use of mater	ials	
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
			The resources, materials and technology in the classroom relate to
The resources, materials and technology in the classroom	The resources, materials and technology in the classroom relate to	The resources, materials and technology in the classroom relate to	the content or current unit studied, are accessible to all students
do not relate to the content or current units studied, or are	the content or current unit studied and are accessible to all	the content or current unit studied, are accessible to all students	and are intentionally used by both the teacher and student to
not accessible to all students to support their learning	students but are not referenced by teacher.	and are intentionally used by teacher to support learning.	support learning. Students are familiar and comfortable with using
during the lesson.	Stadents but are not referenced by todener	and the intentionally used by teacher to support learning.	the available resources.
Evidence:			
LVIUCIICE.			
	Rating:		
CEC4 Classroom Environment & Culture – Class			
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
	Teacher or students occasionally disrupt or interrupt learning	Learning time is mostly maximized in service of learning.	All available time is maximized in service of learning. Transitions
	activities, which results in some loss of learning time. Some	Transitions are teacher-dependent and maximize instructional	are student-managed, efficient, and maximize instructional time.
are disorganized and result in loss of instructional time.	transitions are disorganized and result in loss of instructional time.	time.	are seasone managed, emolency and maximize instructional time.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	School:	Select School
School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
	sroom Routines & Rituals: Managing student behavior		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never responds to student misbehavior			Teacher responds to student misbehavior by following classroom
by following classroom routines and/or building discipline	Teacher responds to student misbehavior by following classroom	Teacher responds to student misbehavior by following classroom	routines and building discipline procedures. Student behavior is
procedures. Student behavior does not change or may	routines and/or building discipline procedures, but with uneven	routines and building discipline procedures. Student misbehavior is	appropriate. Students manage themselves, assist each other in
escalate.	student behavior results.	rare.	managing behavior, or there is no student misbehavior.
			managing benavior, or there is no student misbenavior.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
	Ratingi		
CEC6 Classroom Environment & Culture – Class	sroom Culture: Student status		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
onsutisfactory — I	DUSIC Z	i iondat – J	
Teacher does not develop appropriate and positive teacher	4	Teacher and students demonstrates appropriate teacher-student	Teacher and students demonstrates appropriate teacher-student
student relationships that attend to students' well-being.	reacher demonstrates appropriate teacher-student relationships	and student-student relationships that foster students 'well-being	and student-student relationships that foster students 'well-being
Patterns of interaction or lack of interaction promote	that foster students' well-being. Patterns of interaction between	and adapt to meet individual circumstances. Patterns of interaction	and adapt to meet individual circumstances. Patterns of interaction
rivalry and/or unhealthy competition among students or	teacher and students may send messages that some students'	between teacher and students and among students indicate they	between teacher and students and among students indicate they
some students are relegated to low status positions.	contributions are more valuable than others.	are all valued for their contributions.	are all valued for their contributions. Teacher creates
some stadents are relegated to low status positions.		are all values for their contributions.	opportunities for students' status to be elevated.
Evidence:			
	B 11		
	Rating:		
CEC7 Classroom Environment & Culture – Class			
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
CEC7 Classroom Environment & Culture – Classroom Culture: Norms for learning	Routines for discussion and collaborative work are present, but may not result in effective discourse. Students are held accountable for completing their work but not for learning.	Routines for discussion and collaborative work have been taught, are evident, and result in effective discourse related to the lesson purpose. With prompts, students use these routines during the lesson. Students are held accountable for their work and learning.	Routines for discussion and collaborative work have been explicitly taught, are evident, and result in effective discourse related to the lesson purpose. Students independently use these routines during the lesson. Students are held accountable for their work, take ownership for their learning and support the learning of others.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
	Kating.		
		Criterion 5 Average Rating:	0.000
			0.000
	a elements to modify instruction and improve		
A1: Assessment for Student Learning – Assessi	ment: Self-assessment of learning connected to the su	ccess criteria	
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Students are rarely or never given an opportunity to	Students are occasionally given an opportunity to assess their own	Students frequently assesses their own learning in relation to the	Students consistently assesses their own learning in relation to the
assess their own learning in relation to the success criteria			success criteria and can determine where they are in connection to
for the learning target.	learning in relation to the success criteria for the learning target.	success criteria for the learning target.	the learning target.
Evidence:			
Lindence.			
Evidences			
Evidence:	Rating:		

Tonchor Namo	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluates	Entar Principal Name
Teacher Name: Grade Level(s):	Enter Teacher's Name Enter Grades(s)	Evaluator:  School:	Enter Principal Name  Select School
School Year: Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
A2 Assessment for Student Learning – Assessn		In st	Ter. 1. 1. 4
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2 Assessment tasks are partially aligned with the learning targets,	Proficient - 3	Distinguished – 4
A		Assessment tasks are aligned with the learning targets, allowing	Assessment tasks are aligned with the learning targets and allow
Assessments are not aligned with the learning targets.	allowing students to demonstrate some understanding and/or skill	students to demonstrate their understanding and/or skill related to	
Evidence:	related to the targets.	the targets.	related to the targets.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
A3 Assessment for Student Learning – Assessn			
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never provides formative assessment opportunities during the lesson.	Teacher only provides formative assessment opportunities to determine students' understanding of directions and task.	Teacher provides formative assessment opportunities that align with the learning target(s).	Teacher provides a variety of strategies for formative assessment that align with the learning target(s).
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
	Katng		
A4 Assessment for Student Learning – Assessr	nent: Collection systems for formative assessment data		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
onoutionactory 1			
Teacher rarely or never uses an observable system and/or	Teacher has an observable system and routines for recording	Teacher has an observable system and routines for recording	Teacher has an observable system and routines for recording
routines for recording formative assessment data.	formative assessment data and occasionally uses the system for instructional purposes.	formative assessment data and frequently uses the system for instructional purposes.	formative assessment data, uses multiple sources and consistently uses the system for instructional purposes.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
	Tta ting:		
A5 Assessment for Student Learning – Assessn	nent: Student use of assessment data		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
•			
Students rarely or never use assessment data to assess their own learning.	Students occasionally use assessment data to assess their own learning, determine learning goals and monitor progress over time.	Students frequently use assessment data to assess their own learning, determine learning goals and monitor progress over time.	Students consistently use assessment data to assess their own learning, determine learning goals and monitor progress over time.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
Student Growth 6.1: Establish Student Growth	ı Goal(s)		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Does not establish student growth goal(s) or establishes			Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for students in
	Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for whole	Establishes appropriate student growth goal(s) for whole	collaboration with students and parents. These whole classroom
inappropriate goal(s) for whole classroom. Goal(s) do not	classroom. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of	classroom. Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality sources of data	goals align to school goal(s). Goal(s) identify multiple, high-quality
inappropriate goal(s) for whole classroom. Goal(s) do not identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor.			
identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor,	data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of
identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).		to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of local(s).
identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor,		to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	
identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	
identify multiple, high-quality sources of data to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).		to monitor, adjust, and evaluate achievement of goal(s).	

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	School:	Select School
	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
Student Growth 6.2: Achievement of Student G		Due Salanta 2	Blatte metals at 4
	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4  Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two
	Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two	Multiple sources of growth or achievement data from at least two	points in time show evidence of high growth for all or nearly all
time shows no evidence of growth for most students.	points in time show some evidence of growth for some students.	points in time show clear evidence of growth for most students.	students.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
		Criterion 6 Average Rating:	0.000
Critorian 7. Communicating and collaboration	orating with parents and the school communi		0.000
	ion – Communication and Collaboration: Parents and		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	
	Teacher occasionally communicates with all parents and guardians about goals of instruction and student progress, but usually relies on only one method for communication or requires support or reminders.	Teacher communicates with all parents and guardians about goals of instruction and student progress and uses multiple tools to communicate in a timely and positive manner. Teacher effectively engages in two-way forms of communication and is responsive to parent and guardian insights.	Teacher communicates with all parents and guardians about goals of instruction and student progress using multiple tools to communicate in a timely and positive manner. Teacher considers the language needs of parents and guardians. Teacher effectively engages in two-way forms of communication and is responsive to parent and guardian insights.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
DCC4 Professional Callaboration & Communication			
	ion – Communication and Collaboration: Communicati	on within the school community about student progre	SS Distinguished – 4
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2		-
Teacher maintains minimal student records. Teacher rarely communicates student progress information to relevant individuals within the school community.	Teacher communicates student progress information to relevant individuals within the school community; however, performance data may have minor flaws or be narrowly defined (e.g., test scores only).	Teacher maintains accurate and systematic student records.  Teacher communicates student progress information to relevant individuals within the school community in a timely way, accurately, and in an organized manner, including both successes and challenges.	Teacher maintains accurate and systematic student records.  Teacher communicates student progress information to relevant individuals within the school community in a timely way. Teacher and student communicate accurately and positively about student successes and challenges.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
		Criterion 7 Average Rating:	0.000
		Criterion / Average Rating.	0.000

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	School:	Select School
School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
Criterion 8: Exhibiting collaborative and	d collegial practices focused on improving ins	tructional practice and student learning.	
PCC1: Professional Collaboration & Communica	tion - Professional Learning and Collaboration: Collab	oration with peers and administrators to improve stud	ent learning
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
Teacher rarely or never collaborates with peers or engages	Teacher collaborates and engages in reflective inquiry with peers	Teacher collaborates and engages in reflective inquiry with peers	Teacher collaborates and engages in reflective inquiry with peers
in reflective inquiry for the purpose of improving	and administrators for the purpose of improving instructional	and administrators for the purpose of improving instructional	and administrators for the purpose of improving instructional
instructional practice or student learning.	practice and student learning. Teacher provides minimal	practice and student learning. Teacher contributes to collaborative	practice, and student learning and teacher learning. Teacher
	contributions.	work.	occasionally leads collaborative work.
Evidence:			
	Rating:		
	Rating.		
PCC2: Professional Collaboration & Communica	tion – Professional Learning and Collaboration: Profes	sional and collegial relationships	
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4
-	Dasic - Z	FIUILICEIL - 3	Distinguished = 4
Teacher rarely or never develops or sustains professional			Teacher develops and sustains professional and collegial
and collegial relationships for the purpose of student, staff	Teacher develops limited professional and collegial relationships for		relationships for the purpose of student, staff or district growth.
or district growth. Teacher may subvert professional and	the purpose of student, staff or district growth.	relationships for the purpose of student, staff or district growth.	Teacher serves as a mentor for others' growth and development.
collegial relationships.			reaction serves as a mentor for outers growth and development.
Evidence:			
	D-Maria		
	Rating:		
	tion – Professional Responsibilities: Supports school,		
Unsatisfactory – 1	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4  Teacher supports and looks for opportunities to take on leadership
		Teacher supports and has a solid understanding of school, district,	roles in developing and implementing school, district, and state
		and state to think the Tanada of College, district to all the and	
Teacher is unaware of or does not support school, district,	Teacher supports and has a basic understanding of school, district,	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and	
Teacher is unaware of or does not support school, district, or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or	Teacher supports and has a basic understanding of school, district, and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district
			initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an alianed curriculum  Distinguished – 4
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:  Aution – Professional Responsibilities: Ethics and advoca	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.  CCY  Proficient – 3	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.  Distinguished – 4 Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly,
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:    Rating:	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.   Cy  Proficient – 3  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly,	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.  Distinguished – 4 Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students,
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:    Rating:	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.   Cy  Proficient – 3  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students,	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.   Distinguished – 4  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is unfriendly or demeaning, crosses ethical boundaries, or is	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:  Rating:  Teacher's professional Responsibilities: Ethics and advoca Basic – 2  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students,	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.     Cy   Proficient - 3   Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum   Distinguished – 4  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students. Teacher challenges adult
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:    Rating:	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.   Cy  Proficient – 3  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students,	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum  Distinguished – 4  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students. Teacher challenges adult attitudes and practices that may be harmful or demeaning to
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is unfriendly or demeaning, crosses ethical boundaries, or is unprofessional.	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:  Rating:  Teacher's professional Responsibilities: Ethics and advoca Basic – 2  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students,	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.     Cy   Proficient - 3   Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum  Distinguished – 4  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students. Teacher challenges adult
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is unfriendly or demeaning, crosses ethical boundaries, or is	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:  Rating:  Teacher's professional Responsibilities: Ethics and advoca Basic – 2  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students,	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.     Cy   Proficient - 3   Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum  Distinguished – 4  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students. Teacher challenges adult attitudes and practices that may be harmful or demeaning to
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is unfriendly or demeaning, crosses ethical boundaries, or is unprofessional.	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:  Rating:  Teacher's professional Responsibilities: Ethics and advoca Basic – 2  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students,	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.     Cy   Proficient - 3   Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum  Distinguished – 4  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students. Teacher challenges adult attitudes and practices that may be harmful or demeaning to
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is unfriendly or demeaning, crosses ethical boundaries, or is unprofessional.	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:  Rating:  Teacher's professional Responsibilities: Ethics and advoca Basic – 2  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students,	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.   CY  Proficient – 3  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students.	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum  Distinguished – 4  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students. Teacher challenges adult attitudes and practices that may be harmful or demeaning to
or state initiatives. Teacher violates a district policy or rarely or never follows district curriculum/pacing guide.  Evidence:  PCC6: Professional Collaboration & Communica Unsatisfactory – 1  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is unfriendly or demeaning, crosses ethical boundaries, or is unprofessional.	and state initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and curriculum/pacing guide.  Rating:  Rating:  Teacher's professional Responsibilities: Ethics and advoca Basic – 2  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically undeserved.	implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum.   CY  Proficient – 3  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students.	initiatives. Teacher follows district policies and implements district curricula and policy. Teacher makes pacing adjustments as appropriate, to meet whole group needs without compromising an aligned curriculum  Distinguished – 4  Teacher's professional role toward adults and students is friendly, ethical, and professional and supports learning for all students, including the historically underserved. Teacher advocates for fair and equitable practices for all students. Teacher challenges adult attitudes and practices that may be harmful or demeaning to

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name			
Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	School:	Select School			
School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)			
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type			
Student Growth 8.1: Establish Team Student G	rowth Goal(s)					
	Basic – 2	Proficient – 3	Distinguished – 4			
grade, school, or district team members to establish goal(s), to develop and implement common, high-quality measures and to monitor growth and achievement during	district team members to establish goal(s), to develop and implement common, high-quality measures, and to monitor growth	district team members to establish goal(s), to develop and implement common, high-quality measures, and to monitor growth	Leads other grade, school, or district team members to establish goal(s), to develop and implement common, high-quality measures, and to monitor growth and achievement during the year.			
	Rating:					
Criterion 8 Average Rating: 0.000						

## **Next Steps**

Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	School:	Select School
School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
		Comments:	Enter additional comments here
NEXT STEPS:			
Criterion 1:			
Criterion 2:			
Criterion 3:			
0.11.1			
Criterion 4:			
Criterion 5:			
Criterion 6:			
Criterion 7:			
Criterion 8:			

# **Teacher Evaluation Summary**

Teacher N	lame:	Enter Teacher	's Name			Evaluator	:	Enter Princi	pal Name	
<b>Grade Lev</b>	/el(s):	Enter Grades(	(s)			School:		Select Scho	ol	
School Ye	ar:	2014-15	2014-15 Subject(			Subject(s	<b>)</b> :	Enter Subject(s)		
Teaching Endorsem	in Area of ent?:	Select value	lect value Evaluatio		n Type:	Select Eval	Select Evaluation Type			
						Comment	s:	Enter addition	onal comme	nts here
State Crit	teria Score	s:								29-32
Criteria	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	Total Score	4-Distinguished 22-28
Score	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3-Proficient 15-21 2-Basic
Student (	Growth Sco	ores:						18-20 High		8-14 1-Unsatisfactory
Criteria	3.1	3.2	6.1	6.2	8.1	Total Score		13-17 Average		
Score						0		5-12 Low		
Evalı	uator:		(Evaluator S	ignature)		(1	Printed Nam	ne)	(Da	te)
Empl	oyee:		(Evaluator S	ignature)		(1	Printed Nam	ne)	(Da	te) <u>0</u> (Employee Nbr)
	My signature	indicates that I	have received	this evaluatior	n. It does not	t necessarily i	indicate agree	ement with the	findings.	

	Explanation of Unsatisfac	tory or Basic Rating		
TACÔMA	Teacher Name:	Enter Teacher's Name	Evaluator:	Enter Principal Name
	Grade Level(s):	Enter Grades(s)	School:	Select School
PUBLIC SCHOOLS  EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY.	School Year:	2014-15	Subject(s):	Enter Subject(s)
	Teaching in Area of Endorsement?:	Select value	Evaluation Type:	Select Evaluation Type
			Comments:	Enter additional comments here
Original to Human Resources	Copy to	Building File	Copy to Employee	
Observation Number:		Observation Date	e:	
Explanation of Rating:				
Evaluatorio Giovaturo				
Evaluator's Signature			<u></u>	
Teacher's Signature:			<u> </u>	

## **Employee Personal Property Loss/Damage Claim Form Instructions**

- 1. The loss or damage must be reported to Tacoma Police within 48 hours of the incident and a copy of the Police Report must be provided to the principal/supervisor within 48 hours of the incident or the claim will be denied.
- 2. The claim must be submitted on the District form and must be provided to the Risk Manager within the number of days specified by the employee's Collective Bargaining Agreement or the claim will be denied. Certificated staff must submit the claim within 30 days of the incident, ParaEducators must submit their claim within 15 days.
- 3. The employee is required to submit the following documents with the Claim Form:
  - a. For vehicle damage: Include a copy of repair estimate or bill, insurance policy
     Declarations page showing the deductible amount, and a copy of the Police

     Report.
  - b. **For items stolen or damaged**: Include a copy of the original purchase receipt showing the price of the item, a copy of the repair bill or estimate, a copy of the employees' homeowners insurance policy Declaration page <u>showing the</u> <u>deductible amount</u>. (If the original purchase receipt is not available, a written price quote from the store or a receipt for replacing the items and a statement of the age of the original items will be adequate.)
- 4. The District may, at the District's discretion, require an employee to show additional evidence of theft or damage.
- 5. Reimbursement is limited to a maximum of \$1,000 per occurrence or as stated in the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement. An employee's personal insurance policy is primary coverage and the District will reimburse the employee for their deductible ONLY, not to exceed \$1,000. If the employee does not have insurance the District will reimburse the actual repair expense amount up to \$1,000.
- 6. For further information please refer to the employee's Collective Bargaining Agreement and District Policy 6540 and 6540R.

Last Updated: 1/31/12

#### Tacoma School District No. 10

## **Employee Personal Property Loss/Damage Claim Form**



Employee Name				Employee ID#	<i>#</i>	
Mailing Address				Zip		
Work Location / Bargaining Gro	up					_
Date of Loss	Time of Loss	Lo	cation of Loss			
Property Description						
Date of Purchase		Purchase Cost (Inc	lude copy of receipt or	repair estimate	)	
lame of Insurance Company Please include a copy of insurance polic	ry showina deductible a	amount.				
Describe how damage/loss occurre	-					
Reported to: Police Report		Principal/Admin	istrator	Date Reported	t	
Police No.						
Employee Signature PRINCIPAL/ADMINISTRATOR REC	Title		Date			
☐ APPROVE ☐ DISAPPRO						
AFFROVE DISAFFRO	VE REASON					
Principal / Administrator Signature	Title	Da	ate			
						1
			\$	AMOUNT TO B	E PAID	
Claims Manager Signature	Date	<del></del>	φ			
I, the undersigned, do hereby cert		Company	Accounting	Unit	Account	Amount
penalty of perjury that the mater been furnished, the services render	ed or the	10	97000.68	012	5737	\$
labor performed as described he that the claim is a just, due an	d unpaid			Account	ing Control	Payment Date
obligation against Tacoma School D  10 and that I am authorized to au						j
and certify to said claim.		SUBMIT	ORIGINAL TO DIS	TRICT CLAIM	IS MANAGE	R (CAB - 4th Floor):
			RETAIN ONE			

RESET FORM

Director of Financial Services

## WAIVER OF CLASS SIZE LIMITS FORM GRADES 6-12



Teacher:	School:
Class Period(s) and maximum number of studen	ts accepted for each period listed:
Subjects:	
Semester/Trimester:	School Year:
I agree to waive the class size limits specified in cpf '85.'for the above named class(es), during th conditions: 1. My agreement to this waiver is str does not grant to me any right to preferential sel waiver shall only be valid for the time specified; be valid for the period(s) and number(s) of stude	rictly voluntary; 2. My agreement to this waiver ection of students; 3. My agreement to this; and 4. My agreement to this waiver shall only
To be valid, this form must be completed by the day (whichever is later) of the semester/trimeste at which I have agreed to waive class size maxim second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) Friday of the semester/trimester.	r, in which this waiver is specified or at the date
A teacher's decision to agree or not agree to a clevaluation, shall not be noted in any personnel f treatment.	
Teacher Signature:	Date:
Principal Signature:	Date:

Copies: Human Resources, Tacoma Education Association



# Appendix VII. Request for Peer Review of Individual Workload Equity Form

Requests are to be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources. Copies are also to be submitted to the Association and the employee's supervisor.

To be completed by employee
Date Requested:
Requester:
School / Department:
Positions impacted:
Participants necessary to solve the problem:
Brief statement of the issue(s) to be resolved:
To be completed by Human Resources
Date Received:
Committee Meeting Scheduled: Meeting Date:
Participants necessary to solve the problem:
Deputy Supt. / Designee:
Asst. Supt. HR / Designee:
Program Director:
Association UniServ Rep:
District Appointees:
Association Appointees (Peers):
Others:
Requests for information sent to: Responses to information requests due:
— Disposition —
Timeline extensions made: Recommendations due:
Recommendations forwarded to Asst Supt HR or Designee:
Recommendations approved: yes / no
If committee recommendations not approved – recommended actions:
Statement and date of resolution:
Timeline for implementation:
Were the conclusions of the committee unanimous? Y/N if No, dissenting opinions listed.
Assistant Superintendent Human Resources - Signature:

#### TACOMA PUBLIC SCHOOLS Contract

It is hereby agreed by and between the **Board of Directors of Tacoma School District No. 10**, Pierce County, Washington, hereinafter called the District and

Name: (Hereinafter called the Employee)
Empl Nbr:
<b>Position:</b> Non-Supervisory Certificated Position
Contract Year: 2014-2015
*Contract days: (prorated if starting after start of school year)
FTE:

That this contract is subject to the laws of the state of Washington and that the Employee shall teach and/or perform other assigned services in the public schools of said District, and perform such duties as are prescribed by the laws of the state of Washington and by the policies, rules and regulations of said District, for the number of days during the school year indicated, exclusive of holidays and vacation periods, at the above contract salary, payable in accordance with personnel policies and regulations of said District. The position of said Employee shall be that indicated, with it being understood that said Employee shall be subject to assignment, reassignment or transfer of duties by the District.

This contract does not become effective until said Employee registers a valid teaching certificate and any other required credential with the District Human Resources Office, and there has been successful completion of a criminal background check.

Compensation will be based upon an individual's appropriate placement on the salary schedule for non-supervisory certificated staff set by the terms and conditions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Tacoma Education Association and the Tacoma School District. Salary schedule placement (and in turn compensation) is subject to verification of education and experience. During the term of this contract, compensation is subject to change based upon any change in the salary schedule agreed to by the Tacoma Education Association and the Tacoma School District, or if the individual provides sufficient documentation that their experience, education, and/or endorsement/certification areas has increased warranting a change in placement on the salary schedule. Compensation shall be subject to adjustment by the District as necessary to reflect underpayment or overpayment due to clerical or other errors in the computation of the individual's proper placement on the salary schedule.

This contract is offered for acceptance by the Employee only on the terms stated herein. If the contract is not signed by the Employee and returned to the Human Resources Office of Tacoma School District No. 10 within ten (10) calendar days of the date hereof, the Employee shall be deemed to have waived any and all rights to employment by the District.

\*Contracted days, as well as other terms of this contract, shall be subject to the terms and conditions of any agreement between the District and the exclusive bargaining representative.

Sign and return one copy to the Human Resources Office within ten (10) calendar days of

By order of the Board of Directors

Carla J. Santordo,
Superintendent

Retain the second copy for your records.

Employee's Signature

Date Carla J

#### Superintendent

Sign and return one copy to the Human Resources Office within ten (10) calendar days of

APPENDIX VIII

#### TACOMA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 10 Professional Responsibility Supplemental Contract

This Supplemental Employment contract is made between the Tacoma School District No. 10 and for the 2014-2015 school year. In accordance with RCW 28A.400.200(4) and RCW 28A.405.240 and the collective bargaining agreement between the District and the Tacoma Education Association, the District agrees to pay the above-named Employee an incentive for performing additional professional services required of all certificated contract staff outside of the base contract and supplemental work days. These services must be provided at a professionally responsible level consistent with Project Quality Standards, and include, but are not limited to:

- (1) attendance on the day before the first student day of the year and at the conference/semester day;
- (2) preparation of the classroom or work spaces during the school year for quality instruction or support of instruction;
- (3) conference with parents and/or students;
- (4) preparation for and attendance at reasonable building activities, such as open houses, curriculum nights, parent education nights, school and community functions, student orientation and concerts;
- (5) participation in self-reflection, goal setting and related professional growth activities, such as workshops, classes, conferences, seminars or research projects;
- (6) participation in a reasonable and equitable number of grade level, department, building, job-alike and/or District committees, task forces, processes and activities.
- (7) planning for instruction and curriculum, the evaluation of student's work, the preparation of student assessments, the preparation of summative progress and grade reports for timely distribution, participation in a reasonable and equitable number of IEP and Section 504 meetings, and communicating with the parents and students.

Compensation for these additional responsibilities is determined by the Employee's placement on the negotiated Professional Responsibility Stipend Schedule. If part-time, the Employee will receive a pro-rata share of the stipend based on the Employee's full-time equivalency (FTE). Payment shall be made in twice-monthly installments throughout the contract year, in accordance with District payroll procedures.

The Employee shall document the completion of these activities on the District's payroll system. The Employee shall be responsible for documentation of Professional Stipend activities. In the event Employee's Professional stipend is audited by federal, state, or District auditors, the Employee shall provide such documentation demonstrating that the work was performed. In the event the Employee does not verify the activities, Employee's pay shall be adjusted in accordance with the collective bargaining agreement. The Employee agrees that any compensation owed for Professional Stipend activities shall be subject to adjustment by the District as necessary to reflect underpayments or overpayments due to clerical or other errors in the computation of the compensation.

This is not a continuing contract within the scope of RCW 28A.405.210.

This contract is offered for acceptance by the Employee only on the terms stated herein. If it is not signed by the Employee and returned to the Human Resources Office of the Tacoma School District No. 10 without modification within ten (10) calendar days of the date hereof, the Employee shall be deemed to have waived any and all rights to the Professional Responsibility compensation set out in this agreement.

**Employee's Signature** 

Date

Issue Date	

# TACOMA PUBLIC SCHOOLS SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACT

It is hereby agreed that:\_\_\_\_\_\_ ID#:\_\_\_\_\_

AS NEEDED TO FULFILL RESPONSIBILITIES OF ABOVE P  This supplemental contract is in accordance with the supplemental contract law RCW 28  In the event insufficient students turn out for the season/activity identified I continue to turn out during the season to justify the program, in the opinion appropriate administrator, the program may be eliminated. In the event the eliminated, the stipend shall be reduced and the amount stated shall be protouched the portion of the season/activity during which the program is conduct total.  By order of the Board of Directors Tacoma School District No. 10 Tacoma, Washington  Signature on file>		osition:Stipen
AS NEEDED TO FULFILL RESPONSIBILITIES OF ABOVE P  This supplemental contract is in accordance with the supplemental contract law RCW 28  In the event insufficient students turn out for the season/activity identified I continue to turn out during the season to justify the program, in the opinion appropriate administrator, the program may be eliminated. In the event the eliminated, the stipend shall be reduced and the amount stated shall be program that the portion of the season/activity during which the program is conduct total.  By order of the Board of Directors Tacoma School District No. 10 Tacoma, Washington <signature file="" on=""></signature>	ive date:	ocation: Effe
In the event insufficient students turn out for the season/activity identified I continue to turn out during the season to justify the program, in the opinion appropriate administrator, the program may be eliminated. In the event the eliminated, the stipend shall be reduced and the amount stated shall be protected that the portion of the season/activity during which the program is conduct total.  By order of the Board of Directors Tacoma School District No. 10 Tacoma, Washington <signature file="" on=""></signature>		ervices to be rendered
In the event insufficient students turn out for the season/activity identified I continue to turn out during the season to justify the program, in the opinion appropriate administrator, the program may be eliminated. In the event the eliminated, the stipend shall be reduced and the amount stated shall be protected to the program is conducted to the season/activity during which the program is conducted to the season of the Board of Directors (accoma School District No. 10 (faccoma, Washington)).	TLL RESPONSIBILITIES OF ABOVE POSITION	AS NEEDED TO FUI
continue to turn out during the season to justify the program, in the opinion appropriate administrator, the program may be eliminated. In the event the eliminated, the stipend shall be reduced and the amount stated shall be protected that the portion of the season/activity during which the program is conduct total.  By order of the Board of Directors Facoma School District No. 10 Facoma, Washington  Signature on file>	ordance with the supplemental contract law RCW 28A.405.240.	nis supplemental contract is in a
Tacoma School District No. 10 Tacoma, Washington <signature file="" on=""></signature>	ng the season to justify the program, in the opinion of the r, the program may be eliminated. In the event the program is all be reduced and the amount stated shall be prorated in the rat	continue to turn out du appropriate administra eliminated, the stipend that the portion of the s
		coma School District No. 10
Coulo I. Contouro		signature on file>
Superintendent		arla J. Santorno, uperintendent
Employee's Signature	Employee's Signature	
Date		
	Date	

# Tacoma Public Schools **Discrimination Complaint Form**

APPENDIX X

Tacoma School District No. 10 shall provide equal employment opportunity and treatment for all applicants and staff in recruitment, hiring, retention, assignment, transfer, promotion and training. Such equal employment opportunity shall be provided without discrimination with respect to race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, honorably-discharged veteran or military status, sex, sexual orientation including gender expression or identity, marital status, the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability. The district also prohibits the use of racial, ethnic, and/or sexual slurs, including sexual harassment

I was discriminated based on the following protected class(es):

- o Age
- o Creed
- Color
- o Disability or use of a Trained Dog Guide/Service Animal by a Person with a Disability
- Gender/Sex (including Sexual Harassment or Pregnancy Discrimination)
- o Gender Expression or Identity
- o Honorably-discharged Veteran or Military Status
- Marital Status
- National Origin
- o Race
- o Religion
- o Sexual Orientation

Complainant Name:	Date:		
Work Location:			
Telephone (Home/Work/Cell):			
Alleged harasser(s)/individual(s) alleged to be engaging in discrimination:			
Complaint:			

See also: Nondiscrimination Policy 5265, Nondiscrimination Regulation 5265R, Sexual Harassment Policy 5266

Return completed form to: Human Resources Office

Rev. 4/1/15

# Tacoma Public Schools **Discrimination Complaint Form**

Discrimination Complaint Form			
Resolution requested:			
List witnesses or others involved in the complaint (Pleas	se list contact information for each, if known.):		
Signature of complainant	Date		
Date received:	Received by:		

See also: Nondiscrimination Policy 5265, Nondiscrimination Regulation 5265R, Sexual Harassment Policy 5266

Return completed form to: Human Resources Office

Rev. 4/1/15

## **FOUR-YEAR EVALUATION SCHEDULE**

The four year evaluation cycle begins with the 2014-2015 school year. The four year evaluation schedule listed below is to be used with all teachers, educational staff associates, ESA, and teachers on special assignment. TOSAs use the long evaluation record.

If you have concerns with the performance of a staff member scheduled for a focused evaluation, your decision to evaluate such an individual on a Comprehensive Evaluation would take precedence.

In order to avoid future scheduling problems, it is important that this schedule be adhered to without exception

# EVALUATION DESIGNATION FOR A FOUR-YEAR CYCLE

Last Name	2014-2015	2015-2016	2016-2017	2017-2018
A-D	Comprehensive	Focused	Focused	Focused
E-J	Focused	Comprehensive	Focused	Focused
K-Q	Focused	Focused	Comprehensive	Focused
R-Z	Focused	Focused	Focused	Comprehensive





School Year: 2014 - 2015

Name: Click here to enter text.

Staffing Category: Click here to enter text.

Current Assignment: Click here to enter text.

Date Submitted: Click here to enter text.

**School Mission:** Click here to enter text.

**SCDM Approved Building Initiatives:** Click here to enter text.

## I. Professional Expertise

Click here to enter text.

## II. Implementation of School Mission/Initiatives & Common Agreements

Click here to enter text.

#### III. Contributions

Click here to enter text.

## IV. Student Learning/Growth: Self-Selected

Goal: Click here to enter text.
 Goal: Click here to enter text.
 Goal: Click here to enter text.
 Evidence: Click here to enter text.
 Evidence: Click here to enter text.

**Signature:** Date: Click here to enter text.

### **SELF-REPORT SCORING RUBRIC**

**PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE**: Certifications, endorsements, and specialized skills that are relevant and connected to building focus and/or current placement.

1 NOT EDUTORINE EXIT ENTITIES. Get effections, endot sements, and specialized skins that are relevant and connected to building focus and or current placement.			
4	3	2	1
Possesses minimum certification requirements	Possesses minimum certification	Possesses minimum certification	Possesses minimum certification
AND	requirements	requirements	requirements (degree, certification,
Provides <i>multiple</i> pieces of evidence of	AND	AND	endorsement or HQ status) for
participation in professional growth within the last	Provides <i>multiple</i> pieces of	Provides some evidence of	declared assignment/position.
5 years relevant to declared assignment/position	evidence of participation in	participation in professional	
AND	professional growth within the last	growth within the last 5 years	
Professional development learning is evident in	5 years relevant to declared	relevant to declared	
current assignment.	assignment/position.	assignment/position.	

**IMPLEMENTATION OF SCHOOL MISSION, INITIATIVES, and COMMON AGREEMENTS**: Contributions to the implementation of the school's SCDM approved mission, initiatives, and common agreements.

4	3	2	1
Provides <i>multiple</i> pieces of evidence that the	Provides multiple pieces of	Provides some evidence that	Provides <i>no</i> evidence that educator
educator keeps collective commitments to	evidence that educator keeps	educator keeps collective	keeps collective commitments to
practices that promote school mission, initiatives,	collective commitments to	commitments to practices that	practices that promote school
and common agreements	practices that promote school	promote school mission, initiatives,	mission, initiatives, and common
AND	mission, initiatives, and common	and common agreements.	agreements.
Takes a proactive and collaborative role in the	agreements.		
implementation of these agreements.			

**CONTRIBUTIONS**: Curricular and extracurricular activities that enhance the school community.

4	3	2	1
Provides <i>multiple</i> pieces of evidence of <i>participation</i> in activities that enhance the school community beyond those required for current assignment AND  Provides evidence of <i>leadership</i> in activities that enhance the school community beyond those required for current assignment.	Provides <i>multiple</i> pieces of evidence of <i>participation</i> in activities that enhance the school community beyond those required for current assignment.	Provides <i>some</i> evidence of participation in activities that enhance the school community beyond those required for current assignment.	No evidence of participation in activities that enhance the school community beyond those required for current assignment.

**STUDENT LEARNING/GROWTH**: Educator-set goals are self-defined within the context of the specific students and staffing category. The intent is not to compare teachers or student growth based solely on state or district assessment scores.

4	3	2	1
The educator provides <i>multiple pieces</i> of evidence	The educator provides evidence	The educator provides evidence	The educator <i>provides no</i> evidence
that demonstrate growth meeting educator-set	that demonstrates growth meeting	that demonstrates growth	that demonstrates growth toward
goals for student learning.	educator-set goals for student	approaching educator-set goals	educator-set goals for student
	learning.	for student learning.	learning.





## APPENDIX XIV

# SCORING NARRATIVE

**School Year** Click here to enter text.

Principal: Click here to enter text.

Employee Name: Click here to enter text.

TEA Representative: Click here to enter text.

Staffing Category: Click here to enter text.

SCDM Chair: Click here to enter text. Date Scored by Building Committee: Click here to enter text.

School: Click here to enter text. Displacement Decision: Click here to enter text.

**DIRECTIONS:** Using the 4-point rubric, score the following sections of the employee's *Self-Report* and provide

justification in the space provided.

I. Professional Expertise Score: Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter text.

II. Implementation of School Mission/Initiatives & Common Agreements Score: Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter text.

III. Contributions Score: Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter text.

IV. Student Learning/Growth: Self-Selected Score: Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter text.

Appeals Review to be Conducted By...... Click here to enter text. (within 5 working days of TEA ERC Notification)

Date Appeals Review Conducted...... Click here to enter text.

Date of Final Determination to Principal...... Click here to enter text.

I, Click here to enter text., elect to file an appeal of my *Self-Report* score, and submit this signed Scoring Narrative as my notice of appeal on this, the Click here to enter text. day of Click here to enter text., 20 Click here to enter text..

SIGNATURE: